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Volex is committed to enhancing shareholder value by
providing high-quality interconnect solutions and power
products to our customers around the world, and to
working closely with our customers to optimise our
solutions’ contribution to the performance of their own
high-tech products and solutions.

With expertise across a broad range of interconnect and
power products, Volex provides its customers with
complete cable-assembly solutions encompassing design,
manufacturing, testing and flexible delivery to all regions.

Our products are used in many high-tech products and
services vital to modern life: communications networks,
medical equipment, power generation, and everyday
business devices and domestic equipment.




Highlights
Operating highlights

> Executive management team now fully
established and set to drive strategic and
operational Improvements

> Reorganisation of business along market
sector and functional Iines completed, enabling
implementation of coherent, global initiatives

> Strategy of increasing Volex designed content
contrnbuting to improving gross margins

> Targeted investment in new product
development reaping benefits in halogen-free
power cords, high-speed data transmission
products and outdoor fiore-optic solutions

Financial highlights

> Revenue up quarter on quarter from Q2

> Gross margin up to 20 2% (2009° 15 9%)

> Adjusted operating profit up 19% to £13.4m

> Adjusted EPS up 36% to 14 8 pence

> Net debt halved to £7 6m (2009. £14 8m)
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| Overview

Introduction to Volex: a global business operating
in high-growth markets

Volex 1s a leading provider of interconnect
solutions and power products, servicing the
telecommunications, datacoms/data-centre,
industnal, consumer and healthcare sectors
Qur range of products and solutions

encompasses Interconnect cable assemblies

- including fibre-optic (FO), high-speed

copper, radio frequency (RF), and

Industry-standard assemblies — and a

wide range of power products

Established over 100 years ago, Volex operates
nine manufactunng locations around the

Telecoms / Datacoms

We supply to manufacturers of
equipment for telecoms networks and
high-performance computing centres
and data-centres Qur product
Innovation 1s geared to supporting
requirements for ever-increasing rates
of data transnussion and the roll-out of
broadband and mobile-phone networks
in developing countnes

globe, with strong capabilities in product
development, manufacturing and testing
Volex also runs over twenty sales and support
offices located strategically in Asia, North and
South America and Europe

Wa seek to offer our customers a complete

solution to their interconnect or power-cable

requirements, by exploiting our broad

product portfolio, our engineering design
and development capabilities, our superior

supply services

Healthcare

Volex has a successful history serving
key accounts in the medical equipment
field, including supply to all forms of
medical imaging equipment We aim to
continue developing our healthcare
business in North Amenca and Europe,
while also targeting the manufacturers
located in Asian countnes

quality and wide varety of assembly and

Consumer

Qur Consumer sector supplies to
manufacturers of electncal / electronic
dewvices and appliances targeted at
domestic consumers and business
users We supply into laptop / desktop
computers, pnnters, televisions, power
tools and floor cleaning equipment

Dnvers

> Demand for data-intensive
services delivered over
mobile-phone networks, leading
to deployment of 3G and 4G/LTE
networks

> On-going build-out of mobile-
phone networks in developing
countries

> Investment in data-centre

Drnvers

> Increased demand in developing
counines for good-quality
healthcare provision

> Treatment requirements for
ageing populations in developed
countnes

> Emphasis on preventative health
monttonng and earty diagnosis to
avold high-cost hospital

Dnvers

> Growth in new product categones
such as netboock computers,
tablet PCs, 3D-TVs

> Increasing demand for
environmentally-friendly power
cords, e g using halogen-free
matenals

> Manufacturers moving from
in-house or local suppliers o

infrastructure - for example to treatments global, high-qualtty suppliers
support hosted business services
and increasing video traffic on
the internet
Key product examples Key product examples Key product examples

> High-speed copper cable
assemblies

> Fibre-optic cable assemblies

> Radio frequency cable
assemblies

> Complex equipment harness
assemblies

> Patient monitonng cables
+ for ECG / EKG machines
+ for home-healthcare monitonng
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> High-volume power cords and
adaptors

> Video-monitor cables

> Power distnibution units




Industrial

Qur Industnial sector supplies to
customers 1n industries such as
test and measurement equipment,
manufacturing automation,
refrigeration, vehicle telematics,
and renewable energy

Bnvers

> Pnivate and pubhc investment in
renewable energy, such as solar
and wind power

> Enhanced manufactunng quality
and productivity through
autormation of manufacturing /
operational processes

Key product examples

> Solar power gnd cable
assemblies

> Machine tool cable harnesses

Global headquarters
1 Londen, United Kingdom

Manufactunng units
Tijuana, Mexico
Jacarel, Brazit
Bydgoszez, Poland
Channal, India
Batam Indonesia
Ha Nay, Vigtnam
Shenzhen, China
Zhangshan, China
Suzhou, China
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Sales/Engineering units
11 Castlebar, Iratand
12 Hickory, NC, USA
13 Singapore

14 Indianapolis, IN, USA
15 Istanbul Turkey

16 Bangkok, Thailland
17 Selangor, Malaysia
18 Hong Kong China
19 Belgng, China

20 Yokohama Japan
21 Osaka, Japan

22 Ottawa Canada
23 Taiper, Taiwan

24 Laguna Philippines
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| Overview

Telecoms / Datacoms

Volex has a successful track record of
servicing the world’s top telecommunication
and data-communication equipment
manufacturers in Europe and North
America. More recently we have secured
significant new business with a number of
Asian manufacturers who are increasingly
at the forefront of market innovation. One
such example is Huawei from whom we
received a prestigious Core Partner Award
during the year.

Volex's Industry-leading high-speed copper solutions and
patented manufactunng technology have allowed us to
meet these companies’ demanding technical specifications
for therr next generation telecomrmunications equipment
Our global manutacturing footprnt and flexible supply chain
solutions have also been crtical winning business - for
example in securing a contract with one of Asia’s fastest
growing telecoms-infrastructure comparnies in support of
thair ambitious International expansion plans

This Increased customer engagement i1s key to increasing
the percentage of higher margin products that contain
Volex engineered content and establishing our reputation
for more value-added solutions

Telecoms / Datacoms accounted for 25.9%
of the Group's revenue in FY2010.
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| Overview

Healthcare

Success In the Healthcare sector is
dependent on innovative engineered
solutions and excellence in quality. The
sector is characterised by extended product
development lead-times and long product
lifecycles, which can result in long-term
supplier relationships. Last year Volex’s
strengths in this respect were recognised
by being awarded ‘Best Overall Supplier’
to Royal Philips with whom we have
worked for over 20 years.

Volex has worked with a major global healthcare equipment
provider for over two years con the design and prototyping
of complex cable assemblies that will be used in therr next
generation MRI scanner system which contains over 100
different complex cable assemblies Volex has been
approved for production and is assisting the customer in
bringing the product from prototype to full production
releases Pre-production systems will ship to hospitals
durng 2010 with full production in early 2011

The Healthcare sector offers significant opportunities for
growth as Volex targets new customers and explotts Its
established pedigree in fast-growth heatthcare
manufacturing markets such as China, India and Brazil

Healthcare accounted for 8.4% of the
Group’s revenue in FY2010.
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| Overview

Consumer

Working with our customers to address
‘green’ concerns, Volex has developed
environmentally-friendly products which
replace traditional PVC and BFR (Brominated
Flame Retardant) materials with halogen-free
materials which do not emit toxic gases when
disposed of at end of life and phthalate-free
products which do not contain carcinogens.

These products were developed by working with our
global customers, including a leading brand for personal
computers, digital music players and smart phones to
whom we have supplied customised plugs and power
cords for over ten years, and where we have embedded
our own engineering resource within their product
development team

Volex's leadership in these innovative, environmentally-
fnendly products has generated increased volumes while
the product’s higher specifications command higher
prices helping to drive both revenues and margins

Consumer accounted for 60.9% of the
Group’s revenue In FY2010.
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| Overview

Industrial

Industrial is Volex’s smallest but fastest
growing sector. This is exemplified by our
new product launches in the solar energy
segment where we have developed
junction boxes and cable assemblies that
Interconnect solar arrays for Photovoltaic
(PV) installations.

Volex 1s working with one of the fastest growing
supphers of such installations We were chosen
because of our ability to serve them in different
geographies, our competitive pricing, our wilingness
to develop customer-specific solutions and our ability
to support their speed to market

With the number of PV installations growing at 35%
per annum over the last ten years and the market now
estimated be worth more than US$16bn, Solar has
the potential to become a significant revenue
contnbutor to the Industnal sector

Industrial accounted for 4.8% of the Group’s
revenue in FY2010.
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| Business review

Chairman’s statement

We are now targeting growth through:

> Strong executive leadership team

> A single, global strategy for Volex

> Unified organisational structure

> World-class quality and
customer service

> Cost-competitiveness
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Building a world class team

Following a very challenging and
turbulent period, Volex entered the
financial year under the strong
leadership of a new Group Chief
Executive, Ray Walsh, and Group
Finance Director, Andrew Cherry, and
achieved a much improved
performance, increasing operating
profits, improving margins and
significantly reducing net debt.

A strong performance

The new team has made substantial progress in its
mission to restore financial stability to the Group

The team has concentrated on bringing the global
operations together under a new unified organisational
structure focused on delivering on a single, global
strategy for Volex

This strategy 1s already starting to achieve results
Operating profits* have improved quarter on gquarter
throughout the year, contnibuting £13 4min 2010, 18%
ahead of 2008 (2009 £11 2m) Net debt has been
almost halved to £7 6m - the lowest level in ten years
(2009 £14 8m) Equally importantly, quarter on quarter
revenue growth from Q2 has been achreved during
exceptionally challenging eccnomic conditions

Building a world class team

The new Chief Executive, Ray Walsh, was appointed to
the Board in April 2009, bnnging to Volex considerable
experience of leading technology companies Working
with Andrew Cherry, who was appointed towards the
end of the last financial year, he has made an immediate
impact on the business and put in place a clear strategy
for the future

* Before non-recuming wems and share-based payments




The executive management team has also been
strengthened with the addition of two senior
executives to lead the cntical sales and marketing and
operations functions The executive team has a clear
mandate, to deliver world-class quality and customer
service, cost-competitiveness, improving margmns, and
to return the business to growth

It has been a tough year and | would like to thank all
our employees, 1in every location, for ther hard work
and positive response to the huge changes being
implemented across the Group

Restoring market confidence

The Board and executive management have worked
hard in the last year to restore confidence in the
Group, following a pened of underachievement As the
new team’s strategy, which is already delivering results
in a difficult economic environment, becomes fully
embedded throughout the business, we hope to bulld
conftdence in the Group still further

Outlock

Although we are operating well within our banking
covenants, we remain focused on cash generation
and reducing net debt

The Board remains cautious on revenue growth rates
as a slow return to global financial stabilty and
emergence from recession 1s hkely to continue in the
near-term However, this will not dimimish our focus on
improving our proposition to customers and effecting
wide-ranging internal improvements to help deliver
continuing improvements to our P&L and balance
sheet We believe that this will in turn transtate into
long-term value for our shareholders

Mike McTighe
Chairman

Our year in review

Here are some of our highlights from
FY2010. But we're aware there Is

much more to do to continue developing
the business.

Recruited a strong leadership team
We have put in place a strong
executive team, including three

new senior executives with global
responstbility for Sales and Marketing,
Operations, and HR, in addition to the
new CEQ and Finance Director
appointed early In 2009

Restructured around market sectors
and global functions

We have re-organised our sales teams
around market sectors, with global
account teams for our customers

Our operations are organised globally
along functional lines, enabling
delivery of coherent global strategies

Growth In revenue from own-
design products

We have strengthened our technical
design teams to increase early
engineering engagement with our
customers, drniving Improvements

IN OUr gross margins

Increased focus on Asia

We have mcreased our sales and
operational focus on the high-growth
economies in China and India,
working closely with our customers’
Asian operations The proportion of
our revenue from Asia (incl India)
was 59% (2009 53%})

Improving performance trend
Revenues have grown consistently,
quarter on quarter, from Q2, and
operating profits* have grown quarter
on guarter, throughout the year,
contnbuting £13 4m this year

* Before non-recurring items and share-based payments
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| Business review

Chief Executive’s review

Executing a defined strategy:

> Drive sales growth with global,
sector-based sales and increasing
focus on customers in high-growth
developing countries

> Drive margin improvement through
increasing designed-in content and
advanced engineering engagement

> Implement LEAN manufacturng
techniques to iImprove utilisation,
productivity and quality

> Implement standardised processes,
measurements and IT systems to
underpin one global team

Our objective last year was to
demonstrate clearly to all Volex
stakeholders that we have stabilised
the business - both operationally
and financially.

Return to growth

Our objective last year was to demonstrate clearly
to all Volex stakeholders that we have stabiised
the business — bath operationally and financially
Our guarter on quarter improvements in revenues,
operating profit and cash flow are evidence of

our progress and set the stage for the next phase
of development - a return to growth

Sound foundations for the future have been put in
place Volex now has a strong, dynamic executive
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team with in-depth experence In our products and
markets, combined with leadership, crganisational and
process capabilittes honed in organisations much
larger than Velex today This talented team brings a
high level of professtonahsm to the Group and the
strategies we are currently implementing will grow
Volex to a size and scale that matches this expertise

Developing a clear strategy

Setting a clear direction and purpose has been key

to revitalising the business Our strategy focuses on
becoming a truly global business, driving sales growth
via strong global, sector-based sales and account
management Our sales and operations focus 1s on
the high growth, emerging economies in Incia, Brazil
and China, while continuing to deliver for our
established customers in North America and Europe

Margin improvement 1s also a key strategic objective
through designed-in coritent and early engineenng
engagement with customers This investment in early
product Ifecycle and key chent engagement was integral
to our improved gross margin performance in the last
financial year, Increasing to 20 2% (2009 159%) To
continue that improverment, we need to increase the
percentage of products shipped that contan this Volex
engineered content

In our manufactunng operations we are Implementing
LEAN manufactunng techniques to increase utilisation of
existing factory capaciy and to deliver improved speed,
efficency and quality

To prowide a firm foundation for our growth targets,

we will be Implementing standardised processes,
measurements and IT systems to provide a platform
for sound, data-driven decisions and to help optimise
operations Standardising our products, crgamsation,
processes and platforms will enable us to produce real
and sustamnable growth in revenues and significant
efficiency and quality gains in operations and supply
chain processes

Algning the organisation

Dunng the year, the business was reorganised along
market sector and functional lines, under the new
management team We can now implement ¢oherent,
global strategies that cross geographical boundanes

Our market sectors are now defined as
Telecommunications/DataCommunications (Telecoms /
Datacoms), Healthcare, Consurmer and Industnal
Today, all staff across the Group report to therr
functional, global head including Sales & Marketing,
Operations, Finance, Engineering and Human
Resources Through this orgamsation structure, Volex
can align its global strategies and capabiliies with cur
strategic clignts and targets Building a more balanced
business will also increase our resihence to market
fluctuations and enhance our ability to capitalise

on opportunities

Telecoms/Datacoms

This market sector serves the mobile connectivity,
broadband networks and high-performance data-centre
markets In the last year, the segment has penetrated
key emerging accounts such as Huawer and ZTE In




China at a strategic level, while keeping our long-term
relationships healthy with core chients like Ercsson and
Alcatel-Lucent Although we mamtain a modest capital
expenditure to revenue ratio, we have invested in
product development in this area, particularly in
high-speed copper and fibre connectivity These are
used In all types of communications networks and are
particularly effective in extremely dense, high-
performance cloud computing environments Our
industry leadership in standards definition in these
areas allows us to play an important part in our
customers’ product development lifecycles

Healthcare

Volex has a long and successful history of servicing key
accounts in the medical equipment field including all
forms of iImaging technologies frorm x-ray to MRI
machinery, where we supply cable assembly and
connector technologres This segment 1s optimally
ahgned with our strategy of increasing engineering
content as our clients requrre customised solutions and
early product hifecycle engagement We are now taking
our best-in-class expertise in serving European and
North Amencan clients and applying this tc emerging
supphiers of these technologies in China, Japan and
Incha The Group expects significant long-term growth
In this sector not only due to well-documented
demographics on ageing populations and anticipated
spend on medical care, but also as a result of our
broadening product scope to include home-healthcare
products, patient monitoring cables, patient-related
equipment and consumables

Consumer

Representing more than half of our revenue in the last
financial year, our Consumer sector supplies power and
data cables and cable assemblies for consumer and
business hardware such as laptop/desktop computers,
printers, televisions, power tools, floor cleaning
equipment and many cther applications We are the
market leader 1n this sector and have been able to
leverage this strong position to significantly increase
preduction allocations from our key clients Our
considerable engineenng talent and expenence has
developed an industry leading, environmentally
responsible, halogen-free powercord production
process which 1s beginning to replace traditional PVC
compounds This not only meets or exceeds the
environmental safety expectations of our clients, but
also enables us to take market share from competitors
who have not invested in next generation technology

Industnal

The Industrial sector, while the smallest by share of
revenues, has some of the most exciting growth
prospects Histoncally this area of the business served
industrial manufactunng and test equipment, large
scale cooling hardware, satelite tracking systems and
even vending machines We are extending our product
range to include green energy and smart gnd
technologies Volex has developed spectfic cables,
assemblies and connectors for the solar energy market
where we have already signed new chients The team is
now developing products and relationships in the wind
power segment where we can supply power and
control cable assembhes for what 1s an exciting and
growing market opporturity

Operational excellence

All our factones and operations are now functicning
under a single management structure and are beginning
to implement a common set of operational processes
and measurements, In addition to implementing a unified
LEAN manufactunng strategy While we start the new
financial year with a utlisation rate of approximately 50%
across our total factory capacity, we expect to add an
additional 30% capacity through efficiency programmes
and LEAN manufactunng by the end of the year We
have no plans to further restructure or reduce our factory
footprint, but Intend to capitalise on our current fixed
cost base as we grow revenues This will increase our
operating margin through more efficient use of space,
equipment and labour and give us a more competitive
cost base Our factones are rapidly becoming a strategic
asset to the Group, helping us differentiate our offering to
the market based on capability, cost and quality

Volex continues to drive efficiency through our supply
chain processes In the last year we reduced the
supplier base by more than 30% and anticipate we
will repeat that performance in the coming year
Consolidating cur spend with fewer suppliers gives
negotiating leverage in price and enables us to
participate in supplier managed hubs so we only
replenish inventeries when raw matenals

are consumed

Good progress, but much more to do

While we have done much in the last year to stabilise
the business, there 1s still demanding work ahead as
we return to growth and further improve the business

We enter the new financial year with the tools to face
the challenging tasks ahead in driving efficiency
mprovernents in all of our factories and operational
processes, reforming our Information Technology
platforms, accelerating the deployment of higher
margi / engineered products and serving our
custemers with a more strategic and global
perspective 1t is only the talent and dedication of our
people across the globe that makes such complex and
far-reaching change posstble and it 1s in this resource
that we entrust our future

?J@Qﬂ&

Ray Walsh
Group Chief Executive
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| Business review

Financial review
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The Group has made significant
progress during the year to

4 April 2010, despite a challenging
market environment.

Revenues in the year ending Apnl 2010 (Financial Year
2010, or FY2010} were down on the prior year
(FY2009) However, the decline was less than
expenenced by our major competrtors and the industry
as a whole, giving encouragement that if anything the
Group has strengthened its competitive positioning
dunng the year Equally importantly, revenues grew
consistently quarter on quarter dunng FY2010 (from
Q2) and we anticipate the current flmancial year
(FY2011) will see year on year growth

Gross profit, adjusted operating profit, adjusted profit
before tax and adjusted profit after tax (adjusting for
non-recurmng items and share-based payments} were
all significantly ahead of the prior year —up 10%, 19%,
22% and 35% respectively Indeed this illustrates the
operational leverage enjoyed by the business which
positions the Group well for the anticipated economic
recovery amplified further by a range of ongoing
commercial and cperational iImprovements which will
begin to deliver financial iImprovements during FY2011

The Group also remains focused on cash generation
and strengthening the balance sheet with net debt
halved during the year from £15m to £8m and
shareholders’ equity doubled from £6m to £13m

Revenues

Revenue from continuing operations of £229m was
14% down In FY2010 compared with FY2009, due to
reduced consumer and business spending associated
with the difficult economic conditions Currency
maovements, in particular the weakening of Sterling
against the US Dollar, benefited the year on year
comparison, with revenue down 19% on a constant
currency basis (17% on a pro rated 52 week basis)
Constant currency compansons are derived by
translating both years at FY2010 exchange rates

Encouragingly, after three quarters of declining sales
from the third quarter of FY20089, the final three quarters
of FY2010 saw quarter on quarter revenue growth, with
performance since the year end suggesting a
continuation of this momentum into FY2011

Telecoms / Datacoms

Qur Telecoms / Datacoms sector expernrenced the
largest year on year revenue dechne falling 27% from
£81m to £59m Telecoms/Datacoms revenues are
prmarly driven by infrastructure spend on wireless and
broadband network builds or upgrades and on
investments in high-performance computing centres
and data centres Durning FY2009 revenue growth in this
sector was especally driven by network roll-outs in
China and India However, iInvestment levels were
reduced by the telecommunications service providers
following the global credit crunch and this adversely
mmpacted on Volex revenues In India this was
compounded by delays in the award of the 3G licences
which were onginally scheduled to be auctioned in




August 2009 but which were only awarded in May 2010
and also by the introduction, by the Indian Department
of Telecommunications in December 2009, of a
requirement to get security clearance for specrfied
telecommunications equipment which essentially stalled
the market in the final quarter of FY2010 Year on year
comparisons are also adversely impacted by the loss of
Nortel, which had been one of the sector’s principal
accounts However, we have seen confidence return to
the Telecoms /Datacoms sector in recent months and,
with the exception of temporary considerations in India,
this has already translated into improved sales and an
increasing order book In addition to this improving
business backdrop we are also confident that FY2011
revenues will benefit from investment made dunng
F¥2010 into new products, in particular high-speed
copper products, and into relationships with a number
of new accounts including leading edge datacoms
equipment providers and fast growing Chinese telecoms
OEMs such as Huawel and ZTE

Healthcare

Healthcare delivered a solid perfermance dunng the
year, down shightly in FY2010 from £21m to £19m
Healthcare was the first of our sectors to be formed in
our new market sector-driven sales organisation and 1s
already gating significant traction with new accounts
outside of our traditional customer base There are
significant long-term growth prospects n this sector
dnven by growing and ageing populations Volex's
healthcare revenues have histoncally been concentrated
In developed economies but we are rapidly increasing
our presence In emerging markets and expect that this
will drive growth in FY2011 and beyond

Consumer

Consumer, our largest sector, expenenced a 9%

year on year decline in revenues from £153m to

£139m Consumer revenues are driven by underlying
consumption of electncal and electrontc equipment —
generally by end consumers, although businesses also
account for a significant proportion of spend especially
in the computer and penpherals segments As such our
Consumer revenues dechned in response to falling
consumer confidence post the Lehman collapse which
was exacerbated by destocking by OEMs and retalers
Since the begnming of FY2010 we have expenenced
improving confidence on behalf of our customers and a
gradual increase in our Consurner order book This
improving scenano Is most prenounced 1n Asia where
consumer confidence was less impacted and which has
benefited from the shifting regional focus of our OEM
customers At the same time the migration from
traditional PVC-based products to more environmentally-
fnendly halogen-free products has boosted revenues
since Volex enjoys a competitive advantage m this
emerging technology and by increasing our average
selling pnce per unit The Group 15 also enjoying higher
allocations of our customer spend due to improved
qualty, our much improved credit rating and the trend by
our OEM customers to consolidate therr vendor portfolio
- something which generally favours Volex given our
clear market leadership in Consumer products

Industnal
Industrial 1s currently the smallest of our sectors but i1s
also the best performing, up 10% from £10m to £11m

dunng FY2010 While the majonty of this increase
1s due to just a couple of accounts we anticipate
that additional customer wins and new product
introductions, particularly in the renewable energy
segment, will help to continue this momentum

Profits

In addition to top hne growth, Volex’s other main
objective 1s margin improvernent As the table below
and the graph on page 18 illustrate, the last two
years have dermonstrated significant success in this
respect, with gross margin increasing from 15 8% in
FY2009 to 20 2% in FY2010 The decline in reported
gross margins in Q4 FY2010 to 198 8% 1s due entirely
to £1 Om of one-off charges in India explained further
below Excluding this, the gross margin percentage
mn Q4 FY2010 would have been 21 5%

Even with reduced revenues absolute gross margin
has increased by 10% from £42m to £46m Given
our focus on this measure, we have enhanced the
presentation of our income statement to include
gross margin and we will also be reporting gross
margins by sector on an annual and half-yearly
basis One of the main contnbutors to improved
margins has been an increasing proportion of Volex
designed-in content within our products and
advanced engineering engagement with our
customers at an earher stage in the product
fecycle, allowing us to contnbute greater value
added to the design and development of our
customer’s products This strategic repositioning 1s
an ongomng process and we expect to continue
increasing the proportion of Volex designed content
in our products We have also seen benefits from
our new global procurement and logistics practices,
reduced factory overheads and favourable year on
year reductions in the cost of commodities —
primarily copper and ol Looking forward the
introduction of LEAN manufacturing methodologies
and upgraded and harmomised manufacturing
systems will yield additional benefits in FY2011

Consumer, Healthcare and Industnal all saw strong year
on year improvements in gross margin % - moving
from an average of 15 2% in FY2009 tc 22 1% n
FY2010 Reported Telecoms / Datacoms gross margin
percentage fell to 14 8% which after adjusting for the
£1 Om one-off India charge descnbed above would
have been 16 4% Telecoms / Datacoms margins were
impacted by the suppressed market noted above and
by the amortisation of fixed factory overheads across a
significantly reduced revenue base

Gross margin percentage of ongoing operations by sector

FY2010 FY2009
Telecoms / Datacoms 14 8% 17 4%
Consumer 221% 15 2%
Healthcare 216% 16 2%
Industrial 27% 14 1%
Total ongoing operations 20 2% 15 8%

Despite the year on year decline in revenue, operating
profit iIncreased by £3 6m (56%) from £6 6m to £10 2m
- due entirely to the higher gross margin noted above
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Financial review continued

On an adjusted basis operating profit ncreased £2 2m
(19%) from £11 2m to £13 4m The Board considers
this to be the best indicator of underlying profit and we
are delighted to have returned the Group to a path of
steady improvermnent following years of fluctuating and
unpredictable profitability or intermittent losses In
particular, as the graph below shows, the Group has
now delivered five consecutive quarters of quarter on
quarter profit growth Similar improvements have also
been achieved in adjusted profit before tax which has
increased by £1 8m (22%) from £8 2m to £10 0m

Reported operating expenses were largely unchanged
year on year at £35 9m, up £0 3m (196) on FY2002 Cn an
adjusted basis the increase was greater— up £1 8m from
£31 Om to £32 8m However, half of this increase 1s due to
charges of £0 9m in Indra relating tc legacy i1ssues

18 Volex Group plc Annual Repont & Accounts 2010

In particular, following the appomtment of a new Indian
Finance Director, we have effected improvements in a
number of controls particularly pertatning to accounting
for excise taxes and customs duties As a result of these
improvements we have wntten off or provided for
amounts totalling £2 0m, including £1 Om charged to
cost of sales and £0 9m within operating expenses
These expenses are one-off items that relate exclusively
to issues which existed prior to FY2010 and m some
cases several years previously However, consistent with
the Group's stated objective of minimisig the
classification of items as 'non-recumng charges’ we have
incorporated the £2 Om of charges above adjusted
operating profit The remaining £0 9m increase In
normalised operating expenses reflects targeted strategic
nvestments pnmarly in strengthening management
across the Group The Group will continue to focus on its
cost base and fixed/vanable cost structure and stands to
benefit from significant operating leverage effects as and
when the anticipated revenue increases matenalise

Non-recurning items

The Group incurred £3 1m of non-recurmng charges in

the year as part of management’s transformation

programme which, together with a small share-based

payments charge, reconcile the statutory operating

profit of £10 2m with the adjusted operating profit of

£13 4m discussed above These charges relate to

(n £1 2m of redundancy, recruitment and set-up costs
associated with the relocation of the Group's
corporate headquarters from Warrington to London

{n) & non-cash charge of £0 9m relating to an onerous
lease provision established on exiting the
Wammington premises

(m) £0 9m of costs associated with a facilities
rationalisation programme

(v} £0 5m resulting from the conclusion of all
outstanding 1ssues pertarming to the disposal of
the Wiring Harness business in the prior year

(v} offset by a partral write-back of £0 4m on the
onerous lease provision relating to a vacant UK
property which was sub-let during the year

Cashflows, net debt and geanng

The Group continues to be strongly cash generative
with cash generated by operations before non-
recurning items of £18 6m in FY2010 compared to
£21 8m in FY2009 After aggregate outflows for tax,
interest and capital expenditures, operating cash flow
before non-recuming items was £13 2m (2009

£17 9m) One-off outflows whi h we would not
expect to be repeated m FY2011 totalled £6 2m -
comprnsing non-recurnng items of £2 7m, refinancing
costs of £1 5m and cutflows associated with the
disposal of VWS of £2 Om Despite these outflows
the Group was able to repay £6 Om of borrowing and
almost halve its net debt from £14 8m to £7 6m

Shareholders’ funds increased dunng the year from

£6 3m to £12 7m mainly due to retained proft for the
year of £5 3m Also impacting shareholders’ funds dunng
the penod was a favourable foreign exchange movement
of £1 6m and a charge of £0 5m In respect of the 1AS 19
actuanal loss on the Group's two defined benefit pension
schermes A full analysis of the movement in
sharehelders’ funds 1s shown in the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity on page 53




As a result of these movements, headline gearing (defined
as net debt divided by shareholders’ funds) at year end
decreased to 60% (2009 236%)

Total interest costs in the year increased to £3 4m from £3 2m
in FY2009 Interest on bank borrewings decreased by £0 1m
compared to prior year, with l[ower average borowings broadly
offsetting the small increases in margin over LIBOR payable on
the extended Lloyds faciity This bank interest saving was
offset by increases n non-cash interest costs of £0 3m in the
year, prmanly refabng to amortisation of bank fees and net
pension interest, charged to the Income statement in
accordance with 1AS 19 A full analysis of interest costs i1s
shown in note 6 to the Financial Statements on page 67

Banking facilities

The Group has a revolving credit faciity (RCF) with Lioyds
Banking Group plc which, after amortisation, had an avallable
fimit of US$57 7m as at 4 Apnl 2010, compnsing both a US
Dollar and a Eurc component At the year end, amounts drawn
under this faciity were US$21 7m and €13 5m and average
combined utilisation dunng the year was US$45 6m In
addition, the Group has a separate €6 8m mnvoice discounting
faciity with Lloyds Banking Group plc, {a facility that had
previously been established with HBOS plc, now a part of
Lloyds) At 4 Apnl 2010 the Group had undrawn committed
borrowing facilities of £14 Om (2009 £11 4m) These Lloyds
facilities {the RCF and the former HBOS invoice discounting
facility) mature in March 2012 The RCF amortises by US$2 5m
per calendar guarter, with the remaining faciity balance
amartising on maturity The invoice discounting facility does
not reduce untl the matunty date

Based on the Group’s projected financial performance the
Board 1s confident that the combination of the above facilities
provides adequate iquidity and covenant headroom for the
Group's operations and the successful execution of its strategy

Tax

The Group incurred a tax charge of £1 6m {2009 €2 0m}
representing an effective tax rate (ETR) of 24% (2009 56%)
The principal cause of the reduction in the ETR in FY2010 15
the release of £1 1m of tax provisions previously held in
respect of tax exposures associated with local tax authority
comphance Following successful finalisation of tax
computation filings in a number of regions and across a
number of tax years, these provisions are no longer required
and have been released back to the income statement

In addition, the Group has recognised £0 1m of deferred tax
asset in respect of unused tax losses, following the initriation of
a global supply chain optmisation project This deferred tax
asset 15 only in respect of a small proportion of the Group’s tax
losses The Group expects to increase the recognitton of
deferred tax assets relating to tax losses over the next few
years as the benefits anticipated from the global supply chain
project accrue with greater certainty Total Group losses at 4
Apnl 2010 were £54m (2008 £46m) On a full recognition basis
this represents a potential deferred tax asset of £14 6m We
expect that the above optimisation project will result In a2
significantly lower ETR and tax cash outflows in future years
than has been the case in the past

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share from continuing operations

for the year was 9 3p, significantly ahead of the 2 8p reported
last year on account of the substantial improvement in profit
after tax Adjusted earnings per share increased to 14 8p from
10 9p last year

Dividends

The Company has negative distributable reserves and
accordingly 1s currently unable to declare and pay a dividend
Management Is reviewing ways in which it can reorganise the
Company balance sheet Any such reorganisation would
need shareholder approval and the sanction of the courts and
it 1s anticipated that proposals to address this 1ssue will be
developed during FY2011

Defined benefit pension schemes

The Group's net pension deficit under 1AS 19 at the year end
increased from £1 8m at 5 Apnl 2009 to £2 4m at 4 April 2010
While the fair value of assets mcreased dunng the penod from
£9 2m to £11 1m, the present value of the defined benefit
obligations increased from £11 1m to £13 5m, pnmanly due
to a decrease in discount rate used to value the pension
scheme's obligations As required by IAS 19, the discount rate
used by the Group 1s determined with reference to yelds on
corporate bonds and these yelds decreased significantly
between 5 Apnt 2009 and the kalance sheet date

Andrew Cherry
Group Finance Director
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Operating review

Volex is a global electncal and
electronic cable assemblies group,
with approximately 6,800 employees
based in 20 sales and support
offices and nine manufacturing
locations across the world.

We are...

> Customer-facing, with sector-driven
sales teams

> Transforming our operations to further
Improve qualty and efficiency

> Providing high-value engineering
design and manufacturing expertise

> Thinking and acting as one global
company
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We are a leading provider of interconnect cable
assemblies, including fibre-optic (FO), high-speed
copper, radio frequency (RF}, and industry-standard
assemblies, and of a wide range of power products tc
the telecommunications, datacoms / data-centre,
ndustnal, consumer products and healthcare sectors

Driving our sales

In the FY2010 financial year, Volex maintained its
focus on iImplementing a new global sales structure
concentrating on key market sectors in an
emvironment of global econocmic challenge Working
globally in close partnership with our customers, Volex
has positioned itself into new Jong-term programmes
in growing technologies such as 4G/LTE, High-
Performance Computing (HPC), tablet PCs, 30TV,
Alternative Energy and next-generation Medical
Imaging Systems The sector strategy has aligned
engineering, Research and Development (R&D),
production, test and quality enabling Volex to improve
speed to market, lower end-product costs and
enhance product rehability

Telecoms/Datacoms

Volex is a global interconnect provider to the telecom
and datacoms infrastructure market, we service
mobile telecoms networks, fixed-line broadband
networks, and HPC centres and data-centres




This 1s a tugh-growth international sector and a
significant contributor to the world economy

The global market for telecoms carner network
infrastructure was $88 3bn in 2008, falling by 7 4% to
under $82bn in 2009 Strong mobile and broadband
expansion in emerging markets and substantial
economic recovery (n developed countnes result in a
market forecast showing recovery to $88bn by 2013
The emergence of Chinese telecom equipment
manufacturers as leading players in the global market
adds significant momentum to the sector

“Focusing our sales and product
development capabilities on the
Telecoms / Datacoms sector has
enabled us to build a solid foundation
for capturing future opportunities.
Building taflored products, developing
our strategic customers and capitalising
on our geographic presence has
enabled us to position ourselves well
as we enter FY2011.”

Jeff Bierman, Semor VP Sales and Marketing

The worldwide deployments of high-speed mobile (3G
and 4G/LTE) and high-speed fixed-line broadband
access are shifting consumer usage tc a wider range
of data and content services, including more data-
intensive services (e g video) over telecom and data
networks This I1s driving the infrastructure equipment
market to provide faster transmission with greater
storage and processing capacities, and to upgrade
core/backbone networks into multi-service all-IP
{all-Internet Protocol) networks The trend to deliver
software as a service 1s opening up a new model,
called Cloud Computing, for the hosting and delivery
of IT services across the Internet

Volex 1s well positioned to service these developments
with our existing portfolio and new products, ncluding
both FO and high-speed copper cable assemblies, to
support the high-bandwidth transmssion requirements
for these data-intensive services

In support of our Telecoms business, we have
expanded our product offenng for both RF and FO
technologies For example, in RF we now offer an
end-to-end sclution for RF transmission that provides
board or box receptacies for all previously offered
cable solutions In addition Volex has developed a
hne of outdoor FO solutions in support of this ndustry
These products all interconnect with our competitors’
products, to increase the market opportunity for us,
and are patent-protected

By mamtaining our long-term relatronships with
core telecom OEMs and establishing strategic
partnerships with leading Chinese telecom
equipment manufacturers, Volex 1s now providing
nterconnect solutions to ali the major global OEMs
of basestation infrastructure equipment

Duning the year, our R&D team, in conjunction with
our HPC System and server/storage customers n the
datacoms market, has designed high-bandwidth
(igh-speed) connectors and cable assemblies that
are now In mass production Volex has had a very
successiul year delivenng its SFP, SAS and Mim SAS
products and I1s seeing a keen interest in its 5FP+ and
QSFP products as they ramp up in production Going
into FY2011 the focus 1s on developing CXP products,
for which we have obtained a hicence with Molex to
manufacture, and developing Active Optical Cables
(AQC) for which we are making sigruficant investments
in both China and North America

These entire lugh speed data transmission product
families go beyond our traditional range of cable-
assembly products, with Volex now incorperating the
‘mated-parr’ of connectors into its design and
manufacturing activities for all board/box products
This 1s a significant shift from the Volex of old, moving
into supporting customers' complete signal
transmission requirements

Cur R&D resources are continuing to develop faster and
broader high-speed interconnect solutions to meet the
cntical cntena for the next-generation HPC Systems
including price/node, processor speed, reliability/
serviceability, system scalability and power efficiencies
Volex’s range of interconnect offenings include InfimBand
and Ethernet interconnect Solutions, which combined
have mare than 83% share of the HPC market

Cur global presence, combined with a strong Asia-
centrnic supply chain, has proved to be a key strength
during the econermuc crisis by enabling us to keep
costs down whilst maintaining high quality levels
Significant new accounts have been secured in key
markets in China, Indra and Brazil
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Operating review continued

Adding value to products and
customers.

> Working closely with our customers

> Developing products, increasing
our design content

> Using award-winning computer-
aided design tools

> Supplying interconnect and
power-cable solutions
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Healthcare

Volex has a long and successful history of servicing
key accounts in the medical equipment field including
all forms of imaging technologies where we supply
cable assembly and connector technologies The
Healthcare equipment sector 1s more stable than other
high-tech sectors, with leng product development
cycles and long product lifecycles, underpinned by
lang-term relationshups between equipment
manufacturers and therr supphers

This sector has been less impacted than others by the
market downturn n 2009 While imaging systems
markets have suffered, particularly in North Amenca,
this has been partially offset for many of our customers
by improved sales in developing markets Developing
markets are expected to dnve future growth
opportunities as access to healthcare increases, while
in developed markets the ageing population trend will
go some way to offset pnce erosion

Our global healthcare sales were £19 3m in FY2010
(2009 £21 1m} The majonty of revenue (89%) was
generated In North America and Europe, with 11% from
other regions including China and Japan Locking
forward, we aim to increase the share of our healthcare
revenues from developing markets to over 20%

within four years

Our ability to design and produce a wide portfolo
of products, including high-performance cable
assemblies, high-volume powercords, and complex
hybnd cable harnesses, has been instrumental In
winning important new customers and projects
during the year

Imaging equipment such as MR scanners, x-ray
machines, computed tomography (CT), nuctear
medicine and ultrasound scanners accounted for over
50% of our healthcare sales in FY2010, with the balance
spread across a wide range of medical equipment
ncluding patient momtonng, patient therapy and climical
diagnostic equipment Volex’s strategy 1s to align with
industry-teading healthcare equipment manufacturers in
both mature and developing markets Working with our
customers at the early stages of design and
development allows us to exploit our wide product
portfolio and depth of knowledge In the last year Volex
has used a vanety of tools and processes to shorten
product-design cycles, such as rapid prototyping, and
mold-flow analysis




We are now engaged in application-specific solutions,
across both connector and cable design soluticns,
requinng a much deeper engineenng support than we
previously provided For products outside our areas of
expertise, we have established partnerships with
specialist providers

Our engmneers work closely with our key customers, In
many cases operating on site at customer locations
This approach had led to the introduction of Volex
bill-of-matenals (BOM) content and new manufactunng
processes that have delivered reduced costs and better
performance for our customers whilst achieving
improved margins for Volex

Locking forward, we are confident that the market for
healthcare equipment wall continue to grow across both
developed and developing countries, for example the
demand for MRI scan procedures 1s expected to grow
3-5% per annum worldwide Our aim 1s to target new
high-growth segments, such as patient monitonng and
home healthcare, and to dnve up sales in new temtones
such as Japan In addition, exploiting our local
manufacturing sites will enable us to penetrate the
major developing markets

Consumer

Whilst the globa! consumer-products market 1s
recovenng, growth rates vary across regions and
segments There I1s strong momentum in Asia, which
contrasts with the USA, where unemployment remains
high, and Europe, where domestic consumption
remans slow With 75% of our stupments in FY2010
taking place n Asia, we are well positioned in the higher
growth markets

Growth in flat-panel LCD telewisions {LCD TV) and
personal camputing (PC) markets s driving demand Key
factors influencing the LCD TV market include the
continuous reduction of retall prices, the coming World
Cup in South Afnca and innovation such as high
definitton and 3D technologies PC demand is being
dnven by institutronal spending, as economies recover,
the affordatiiity of notebooks and tablet PCs, such as
the Apple iPad, and the new Microsoft Windows 7

We have focused our sales resources into these highly
attractive consumer markets, tailoring products and
solutions to match market requirements As a result the
LCD TV and PC markets now account for approximately
55% of our Consumer sector's revenues

In a tough market, revenues for the year were 9% down
on 2009, at £139 4m (2009 £152 5m) reflecting weak
economiegs, particularly in the USA and Europe
However, the revenue profile showed a positive growth
trajectory, increasing quarter on quarter from £30 7m in
Q110 £38 5min Q4

Demand was difficult to predict as our customers
faced considerable market uncertainty Despite this,
we were able to meet therr extremely short lead-time
for orders, enabling us to maintain our preferred
vendor position and to win new customers During
the financial year, we won several important orders
totalling £22 6m from leading brands including Apple,
Toshiba, Sony, HP, Lenovo, Samsung and Microsoft
We will continue to focus on our strategic partnerships
with the leading consumer electronics manufacturers
to increase revenues and capitalise on opportunities
in Asia and Europe

The development of environmentally-fnendly products
is paramount to our R&D focus in the Consumer sector
In FY2010 Volex's customers have increased their
demand for ‘green’ products In response, we have
developed industry leading power products, including
products compliant with 'EU REACH' (Registration,
Evaluation, Authorisation, and Restriction of Chemicals)
as well as halogen-free (HF) and Phthalate-free
products HF initiatives contributed 5% of revenue in
the Consumer sector in Q4 of FY2010 and we expect
demand to double next year

We have also added video transmission products to our
portfolio These products include DisplayPort cable
assembly jJumpers, developed in comphance with the
digital display iterface standards set by the Video
Electromics Standards Association (VESA) We are
already working with customers on their product
development of 3D-ready TVs Sales for this next-
generation product are forecast to reach 64 million

units in 2018

As part of our strategy to move up the value chain, we
conduct regular safety serminars in Japan, China, Korea
and Malaysia, attended by our major customers

Looking forward, growth i1s returning, particularly in
Asia We will continue to focus on the fast growing PC
and LCD TV markets to capitalise on our strong market
position Development of HF matenals and alternative
sourcing to meet the growing demand for
environmentally-fnendly products will remain a pnonty
Sales will focus on extending our customer base
beyond our well-established global OEM relationships
into new devetoping markets in Brazil, Russia, India
and China

Industnal

The Industnal sector for Volex compnses a diverse

set of markets but offers sorme of the most exciting
growth prospects These markets include test and
measurement equipment, manufacturing autemation,
refrigeration, trucking telematcs, and renewable energy
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Demand in the Industnal sector returned to growth in
FY2010, as companies nvested once more in
automation and increased capacity We saw an
increase In orders n the second half of the year, a trend
that has continued into the new financial year

A new product developed for the trucking telematics
sector has been one of our successes in the financial
year Of the £11 Om revenue from the Industnal sector
in FY2010, 70% was secured from the truck-fleet
telematics segment, where we worked closely with our
main customers to develop the new product which
was quickly adopted by majer trucking companies
and led to strong bookings and revenue in the second
half of the year

New products are being developed for the renewable
energy market, for example junction boxes with
properties umgue to the solar industry Long lfe-cycle
and environmental requirements have yielded new
manufactunng techniques and matenal considerations
With many new companies forming in this segment, the
development of a full range of products to support the
solar market will continue into next year, and we are
now providing engineenng and design advice to
customers and partners

Locking forward, the renewable energy market will be
a key area of focus, bullding relationships with market
leaders This will Include the solar and wind markets
providing solutions for fuel cell and smart gnd
technologies, capitaising on our global footpnnt and
interconnect knowledge

Manufacturing operations and supply chain
Volex has mine manufactunng locations, six In Asia,
two mn the Americas and one In Europe supported by
various local hubs to ensure we can deliver fast
response times and minimise our customers’ inventory

Laying the foundations for growth

During the first half of the financial year we reduced
manufactunng capacity to match the reduced market
demand at that tme, cutting headcount, both direct
and indirect, and undertaking a number of other
cost-cutting activities In the second half of the year, as
sales stabiised, the emphasis switched to posihoning
ourselves for a return to growth and ensuring we can
move more quickly than our competitors when
manufacturing volumes start to pick up We are now In
a strong position to exploit our existing infrastructure to
deliver rapid and controlled growth Many of our
factones are operating on one or two shifts giving
significant scope to expand our capacity quickly

We began implementing a new LEAN manufacturing
strategy due for completion in FY2011 This will
increase productivity and asset utiisation and also
improve the output product quahty through ngorous
process improvement approaches and enhanced
process standardisation




The operations team are working very closely with
each of the sector sales teams to characterise therr
market and customer needs ~ identifying the
technologies, capabilities and capacities that we
need in each location to meet the needs of our
customers In this way we can design operations and
supply chain strategies tailored to the needs of these
different customer groups One recent example s
where we worked with the installation engingers at
our customer's factory and identrfied several design
maodifications for our product that make it easier for
their technicians to nstall

Transforming our operational performance

We have embarked on an operational transformation
programme that 1s aimed at enhancing the value we
deliver for our customers and ebminating the waste
from all aspects of our operations We continue to
make investments in new process technology aimed
at improving our product quality and cost Examples
include the use of tasers for applications like welding
and marking/printing and the use of advanced test
methodologies to help optimise process parameters
for complex high-speed data cable assemblies

Data-driven management processes are being
introduced, IInked to the business strategy Every
function has a set of goals aligned to achieve the
Company targets and a governance process
designed to ensure we stay on track Deviations from
the plan can now be made visible much more rapidly
so that any correcting actions can be taken These
are supported by collaboration tools that allow all
areas of the business to communicate with each
other and share therr ideas for improvement

Managing our supply chain

Dunng the financial year, our supply chain team began
working as a single global team, moving away from the
regional silos that had existed previously We have
started the journey of process standardisation with
purchase pnce vanance reporting and supplier
management tools being implemented on the same
platform dunng the course of the year The team made
some significant stndes durnng the year with matenals
cost reductions exceeding our budgeted plans while at
the same time reducing our supply base by clese to 400
suppliers globally

Increasing commodity pnces, particularly for copper,
were a challenge dunng the second half of the year
While price increases are ultimately passed onto our
end customers, timing delays can introduce volatiity
into our financial results Processes to minimise this
impact were established in the year, pnmanly involving
the use of purchase and sale contracts to more
closely align committed customer orders with
purchases from suppliers

We are anticipating continued cost challenges in key
commodities such as copper and PVC dunng FY2011
In spite of these cost challenges the team Is pressing
forward with aggressive targets to bring matenal costs
down, streamline suppliers and reduce working capital

Going into FY2011 we expect our team to continue to
develop We will be evolving into a commodity team
structure dunng the year so that we can focus in detail
on costs and suppliers in key areas

Technology capabilities and

product development

In-depth engineering expertise I1s one of Volex’s

key strengths We have continued to enhance our
engineering capabilities internally and also to develop
our external engineenng workforce whoe engage with
customers on-site regarding apphcation specific
solutions As part of our strategy, Volex i1s seeking to
increase the proportion of our revenue resulting from
products with our own design content and this will
include ‘end-to-end’ solutions which address the entire
signal transmission path from the cable (plug) to the
board or box receptacles

Enhancing our technical capabilities worldwide

in North Amerca, we have already engaged with
customers beyond the level of cable assemblies Volex
has taken on ‘next level’ assembly activity for several
customers completing system sub-assembly builds for
these key partners This allows customers to reduce
costs and enables them to focus on their core design
capabilities using the manufactuning expertise of Volex
for the product assembly activity Applying a
strengthened team of field application engineers (FAEs)
we have completed several projects where customers
have outsourced key activities to the Volex factlity in
Tyjuana, Mexico In some cases we have embedded
engineers at customer sites to contribute expertise for
the interconnect solutions for system level designs at
the product concept stage This leads to more cost-
effective, application-specific solutions for the
interconnect needs of the products involved
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In Europe, Volex has achieved I1SO 13485 certification for
design and development activity as well as strengthening
the FAE teams who are similarly embedded within key
customers Computer-aided engineenng tools have been
added such as mold-flow analysis which are intended to
assist in ‘getting tt nght the first tme’ leading to
accelerated product development

Our Chinese operations have been strengthened
considerably by increasing our FAE resources and
engineenng skills in pnnted circuit board connector
design, signal integnty testing and matenals
engineening A programme to further strengthen FO
product development 1s in place where we intend to
grow our design and test-ievel competencies beyond
those that presently exist in North America and Europe

In India, Violex has aggressively bullt up resources to
extend support to customers participating in the huge
expansion of mobile communications This support
includes FAEs as well as product manufactunng/test for
all technologies such as RF and FO, adding to existing
strengths for power products Future plans include
adding antenna manufacture / test competencies to the
factory in Chennail to complerment our successful
basestation installation kits business
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New product development

In such a fast moving market, innovation 1s an essential
criterion for success and our new product development
throughout the past year was sigmficant for all
technologies and market sectors

New products were introduced into all our sectors and
the details of these are covered in the sector reviews on
pages 20 to 24 A key area of focus has been on
developing environmentally-friendly products, and the
‘green dnve’ will be a key component of all new product
development in the coming year We have made
significant advances in the power cord market, where we
are market leader, and our overall product portfolio has
extended to include a new line of outdoor FO solutions
that are patent protected and a complete family of
high-speed data transmission products

Contnbuting to industry standards
Volex I1s an influential member of a number of leading
industry standards bodies for our product portfolio

For the Telecoms/Datacoms markets, Volex participates
actively in the following Standards Committees to assist
in the development of product performance
specifications Institute of Electrical and Electrontcs
Engineers (IEEE), Infiniband Trade Association (IBTA),
Ethernet Alllance (EA), Small Computer System Interface
Trade Association (STA}, Video Electrorics Standards
Association (VESA) and Fiber to the Home (FTTH)

And in support of our ‘green’ and safety initiatives
Volex participates i the following committees
European Safety Standards, China Technical
Committee TCO7, BiS {India Safety Standards)
and CNS (Tawan Safety Standards})

This activity allows us to gain early sight of emerging
standards, an important contributor to keeping our
product development at the forefront of the ndustry It
also enables us to influence the direction and content
of the next generation of standards, reflecting our
position as a leading player in the industry

People, systems and processes

The current financial year has seen wide ranging
people changes The Group Chief Executive and
Group Finance Director were appointed just before the
start of the year Their arrival has been followed by an
entirely new executive management team comprising
the Operations, Sales & Marketing and Human
Resources Directors A number of new roles have
been created and filled heading the Marketing,
Information Technology, Commercial Finance and
Business Assurance functions The relocation of the
Group's head office from Warnington to London
marked a key point in revitalising the Group and was




successfully completed in July 2009 The finance
function in particular has been strengthened - both in
head office and also with the appointment of three
new regional Finance Directors tin North America,
Europe and India The migration to a market and
sector focused sales organisation has required
increased levels of skills in several key sales positions
as well as additional training for exrsting personnel

After several years of under-investment the Group 1s
also making sigmficant but affordable improvements in
its information technology and systems BPCS, the
Group-wtde manufacturing and financial ledger system,
1s being upgraded for the first time since 2001 As part
of this we will be mtrcducing standard costing across
the Group dunng 2010 Tagetik, a new corporate
performance management system for financiat
consolidations and budgeting was implemented durning
the year as well as Qlikview, our new business
inteligence system Saleforce com was successfully
piloted as a new customer relationship management
system within the Healthcare sector and will be rolled
out to the rest of the Group durng 2010 We are also in
the process of upgrading our IT infrastructure We have
upgraded our core AS400 systems, while outsourcing
the hosting of these together with the associated high
avallabibty backup and disaster recovery, and we are in
the process of consolidating to a single Group-wide
data network We have also worked on harmonising the
data structures and definitions around the Group,
including for the first time a common Group-wide chart
of accounts, and this will remain a key area of focus in
the current financial year

“The relocation of the Group’s head
office from Warnngton to London
marked a key point in revitalising
the Group and was successfully
completed in July 2009.”

Progress I1s also being made towards standardising
processes across the Group New product
development processes have been introduced to
improve speed to market Common sales techniques
are being rolled out across the sectors and new
capital expenditure approval processes are being
introduced to help target resources and speed the
decision making process For the first ime the nine
factones are being managed in a co~ordinated
manner, rather than by regton, with best practices
being shared across the Group and production being
sourced from wherever can provicie it in the most
timely and cost-effective way
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Management of principal risks

The Group has an established risk management framework
which is designed to identify, evaluate and manage the
nsks and uncertainties facing the Group. Within this
framework we classify risks into four distinct categories
according to their potential impact on the Group.

Strategic - risks impacting long-term strategic objectives

Operational - risks ansing during day-to-day activities
which if not managed could impact upon the running of
the business

Financial - nsks directly impacting upon the financial
condition of the business

Compliance - nsks relating to legal and regulatory
sanctions and damage to goodwill ansing from failure
to comply with applicable laws and regulations

Principal nsks and uncertainties

Customer concentration

A significant proportion of the Group's trading activity 1s
with a relatively small number of large global accounts
Approximately three guarters of total Group revenue 1S
generated by the Group's top 25 customers, mostly
prestigious global OEMs Two of the Group’s customers
individually account for more than 10% of total Group
revenue, with the Group’s largest customer, operating in
the wireless infrastructure sector, accounting for 11%
of total Group revenue

In practice these key global customers operate acress a
number of different business sectors and regions with
somewhat independent customer relationships in each
of the sectors and geographies The loss of business in
one particular geography or sector would not necessanly
result in the loss of all of that customer’s business

The Group continues to mitigate the nsk of fluctuations
In revenues from these customers through closer
trading relationships with individual customers while
diversifying into other customers and market segments

Counter party nisk

The Group regularly reviews the credit worthiness of all
customers and operates appropriate credit imits to
manage the exposure to any given customer The
degree of customer concentration inherent in the
Group's business means that the Group has substantial
credit exposure to a few key customers Typically,
however, these key customers are large, blue chip
OEMSs for whom the nsk of default s relatively low The
Group had no matenal bad debt write-offs in the year

The Group Is also dependent upon a imited number of
suppliers, parhicularly in respect of cable matenals
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However, the Board believes that in the event of one
of these supplters falling to honour 1ts obligations to
the Group, alternative sources of supply could be
engaged without substantial disruption to the
business, nor any material financial loss

Commodity prices

Many of the Group's products, in particuiar power
cords used in the Consumer sector, are manufactured
from components that contain significant proportions
of copper and, to a lesser extent, other metals and
oll-based products such as PVC Increases in the
prices of these commodities are reflected in the prices
charged to our customers but delays in passing
through these cost changes can cause short-term
volatility in the Group's gross margins and working
capital requirements

Copper price volatility 1s the single jargest commodity
price exposure facing the Group The graph on the
facing page llustrates how LME copper spot

prices have fluctuated during the two year period

to 4 Apnl 2010

The Board regularly reviews the prices of these
commodities and effects a number of measures to
mitigate the impact of excessive volatiity With respect
to copper specifically these include, but are not imited
to, the use of purchase and sale contracts to more
closely align commutted customer orders with
purchases from suppliers, to reduce the volatiity
caused by the time lag between purchase from
supplier and sale to customer

Management assume that dunng FY2011
copper will continue in the range of US$7,000
- US%$8,000/ ton




Foreign exchange

A substantial portion of the Group's revenues and
expenditures are denominated in US Dollars and
Euros During the financial year Sterling appreciated
by 3% against the US Dollar and by 2% against

the Euro

The Group's costs and revenues are broadly
denominated in the same currencies For example,

the majority of US Dollar denominated revenues are
serviced from locations where the costs are incurred in
US Dollars or US Dollar related currencies and ikewise
for the Euro As such there i1s no significant trading
advantage or disadvantage resulting from these
currency movements

The man impact of these movements Is in the
translation of foreign currency denominated income
and expenses in the Consolidated Income
Statement and foreign currency denommated assets
and habilities in the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position The impact of foreign exchange
movements on the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position 1s miigated by a natural hedge
ansing as a result of the Group's US Dollar and Euro
denominated borrowings

The pnncipal exchange rates used in the year
were as follows

Penod end rate

Average rate

{Balance sheet) {Incoma statement)
FY2010 FY2009 FY2010 FY2009
US Dollar 1517 1474 1596 17056
Euro 1121 1096 1129 1198

Competition

The Group's markets are highly competitive and we
expect this competition will continue in the future

Our overall competitive position depends on a number
of factors including the prce, quality and performance
of our products, the level of customer service, the
development of new technology and our abiiity to
participate n emerging markets Competition may
intensify from various international competitors and
new market entrants and our markets have become
increasingly concentrated and global Increased
competition may result in price reductions, reduced
margins or loss of market share, any of which could
matenally and adversely affect our business and
trading performance

Exposure to global economic conditions

The Group's business and trading performance have
been and will continue to be affected by global
economic conditions As global economic conditions
deteriorate or economic uncertainty increases, our
customers and potential customers may expernience
deterioration of their businesses, which may result in
the delay or cancellation of plans to purchase our
products This may have a matenal adverse effect
on the Group's trading resuits
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Corporate responsibility

At Volex we are committed to the
operation of a responsible business
model and to the delivery of our
corporate responsibility strategy. For
us it makes sound business sense.

The Board has adopted a Code of Business Conduct
{the ‘Code of Conduct’) which applies to the entire
Volex Group of companies Itis circulated through the
unit Managing Directors to all employees via the normal
regional communication channels and 1s available on
the Company's website (www volex com) and also in
hard copy from the Company Secretary

This Code of Conduct 1s the foundation on which we
build and conduct our business and we expect all Volex
employees to support ail elements of the policy

The Cods of Conduct 1s based on the commitments
set out above and outlines specific mimimum
standards in respect of five particular areas

These deal with corporate conduct regarding our
employees, health and safety, the environment,
relationships with various stakeholder groups, and
the personal conduct of everyone employed by the
Group The Code of Conduct concludes with the
outline of a comphance process, which reftects our
normal management structures
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Corporate conduct and employment practices

in all aspects of our business we seek to operate in
compliance with the law, rules and regulations of the
country of operation and this apples to all areas of our
Code of Conduct However, In a number of areas we
jook to estabhsh specific mimmum standards, which
will overnde any lower legal requirements For example,
in our employment practices we will not use indentured
or forced labour, we will not employ anyone under 16
years of age and we do not discriminate on the basis of
sex, colour, race, religious belief, disability, age, sexual
orentation or marital status

Health and safety

In matters of health and safety we will provide a safe
and clean working environment with systems and
procedures of a standard at least equivalent to those
of comparable manufactunng companies of good
reputation in the gecgraptucal area of operation

The Board receves reports on the health and safety
performance of the Group Our regional operations
have adopted formal health and safety pohcy
statements and continue to execute spectfic health
and safety programmes to improve identified risks
We collect and review various performance data
ranging from monthly key performance indicators

to annual nsurance claims records and use these

to identify areas for further improvement

Environment

We are committed to meeting the needs of our
customers in an environmentally sound and sustainable
manner through continuous improvement in all
activities, using the best available technology without
Incurring excessive cost

At Volex we work towards the requirements stated in
the 1SO 14001 Environmental Management System

As part of this system we review our envircnmental
objectives and targets on a regular basis and ensure
continuous improvement Our plan 1s to achreve the
international environmental standard 1ISO 14001 in all
our manufacturing locations over a number of years

At the date of this report, certification has been
achieved at each of our three faciliies in China, at our
two faciities In Indonesia and at facilities in Vietnam
and Poland These sites are now maintaining and
improving therr environmental management systems to
retain their 1ISO 14001 certification status A number of
other locations are developing their systems with a view
to applying for certrfication in the future

The Restriction of Hazardous Substances ('RoHS") and
the Waste Electrical and Electromc Equipment (‘WEEE')
Regulations, both of which are aimed at reducing
hazardous matenals content in products as well as
increasing the recycling of products, are applicable to
the electronic sector Volex ensures that special
formulated compound materals are part of the sourcing
and engineernng services In order that compliance with
RoHS 1s met by both Volex and its customers Volex 1s
recognised by its customers for Its policy of being a
total RoHS compliant organisation Volex also ensures
that the design of its products 1s aimed at reducing ther
environmental mpact in terms of production, product
usage and disposal, which will assist producers in their
compliance with the WEEE Regulation




Relationships with stakeholder groups

The standards we set ourselves in our relabionships
with our vanous groups of stakeholders are typified
by the values of honesty, respect, diligence and
professionalism The Board has identified a number
of key values, which it expects all employees to apply
to therr work and which are intended to enhance
teamwork, collaboration, integrity, diversity,
commitment and community These values are the
common thread hinking our communications with
shareholders, our business relationships with
customers, suppliers, sub-contractors and agents,
our interaction with local communities around the
world and all our dealings with employees

Standards of personal conduct

The Group relies on its employees as tndwiduals to
practise the highest moral and ethical standards in all
their business activities While we fully respect the
pnvacy of employees’ personal lives, we expect all
employees to conduct therr personal affars so that
the performance of their obligations to the Group 1S
not prejudiced and the reputation of the Group

1s mantained

Volex 1s committed to

> Respecting the rule of law,
conducting our business with
Integrity and showing respect for
the nghts of the individual,

> Creating mutual advantage n all our
relationships so that people both
inside and outside the Group trust
us and want to work with us,

> Demonstrating respect for the
environment and working
continuously to Improve business
processes and practices to reduce
the impact of our operations, and

> Managing our financial performance
to maximise long-term vatue for our
shareholders
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Board of Directors
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1. Mike McTighs

Chairman

Mike McTighe, £6, was appointed Non-Executive
Chairman of the Board on 1 March 2008 He s a
member of the Rernuneration Committee and
Chairman of the Nomination Committee Mrke 1s

also charrman of Pace plc and a board member of
Ofcom Mike was previously a non-executive director
of Alliance & Leicester plc, a director of London Metal
Exchange Holdings and chairman and chief executive
officer of Carner International SA Prior to that Mike
was executive director and chief executive, global
operations of Cable & Wireless plc Mike has also held
senior roles with Philips, Motorola and GE and has
more than 30 years’ expenence in the TMT

sector worldwide

2 Ray Walsh

Group Chief Executive

Ray Walsh, 45, was appointed Group Chief Executive
on 6 Apnl 2009 He served previously as chief
executive of VIA NET WORKS Inc servicing global
chents from its head office in Amsterdam and
immediately prior to joining Volex he led the
operations, technology, products, communications
and research of a leading market research firm in the
US Ray has more than 20 years’ expenence In
technology leadership and, for more than half of his
career, held senior executive roles with international
and global organisations Ray has led numerous
organisational and technological integrations in global
technology and telecommunications concerns in
addition to driving sales and operational transformations
n both large scale and venture capttal backed firms

3 Andrew Cherry

Group Finance Director

Andrew Cherry, 43, was appointed Group Finance
Director on 19 February 2009, having held the
position of Intenm Finance Director since 5 January
2009 Andrew was previously chief financial officer
of SpinVox Limited and pricr to that had held a
number of executive positions including that of chief
financial controller of Vodafone UK, chief financial
officer of Cable & Wireless Jamaica Ltd and chief
financial officer of Golndustry Plc He has also held
positions In BA T Ple, PricewaterhouseCoopers and
Cap Gemini Ernst & Young Andrew holds an MBA
from the Kellogg Graduate School of Management,
15 a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of England and Wales and has a Bachelors degree
in Physics

4. Richard Arkle

Non-Executive Director

Richard Arkle, 61, joined the Board as a Non-Executive
Director on 20 Aprit 2005 Richard was Charrman of
the Board from 6 May 2006 until 1 March 2008, when
he resumed the role of a Non-Executive Director He is
currently Chatrman of the Audit Committee Richard
was a partner at KPMG LLP (and predecessor
practices) from 1 October 1982 until he retired on 30
September 2004, where as a senior partner, he played
a key role In developing the transactions services
practice into a UK market leadership position Richard
1$ a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
England and Wales and has extensive experience In a
range of businesses across a number of market
sectors Richard also provides consultancy services
to a variety of businesses and professional firms

5. Chris Geoghegan

Senior Independent Director

Chnis Geoghegan, 55, was appointed a Non-Executive
Director on 1 March 2008 and became the Board's
Senior Independent Director with effect from 31 December
2008 Chns s Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and a member of the Audit and Nomination Committees
Chns 1s also chairman of MHampson Industnes plc and a
non-executive director of Kier Group plec Up until 31
December 2007, Chns was the group director of BAE
Systems plc, responsible for all European joint ventures,
the company’'s commercial aerospace interests as well as
the UK wholly-owned electronics business and shared
services Chns s a Fellow of the Royal Aeronautical
Soclety and was previously President of the Society of
Bntish Aerospace Companies

6 Karen Slatford

Non-Executive Director

Karen Slatford, 53, was appointed a Non-Executive
Director on 27 May 2008 and is also a member of the
Nomination, Audit and Remuneration Committees
Karen Is currently charman of Neverfall Group and the
Foundry Vistonmongers Karen was previously a
non-executive director for HAL Knowledge Solutions,
Portwise AB and Compel Group plc Between 1983 and
2001 Karen was employed by Hewlett Packard Ltd and
whilst working across vanous capacities and roles, was
focused on improving the Group’s sales and marketing
throughout the UK and globally In 2000, Karen was
appointed chairman of Hewlett Packard UK Ltd and
also undertook the pesition of vice president and
general manager worldwide of sales and marketing,
business customer organisation until 2001
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Corporate governance report

Volex Group 1s committed to business integrity, high ethical values and professionalism in all s activities The Company is
committed to the principles of corporate govemance contained in the Combined Code on Corporate Governance that was 1ssued
in June 2008 by the Financial Reporting Council (‘the Code'} for which the Board 1s accountable to shareholders

Statement of complrance with the Code
In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the prowvisions set out in section 1 of the Code throughout the
52 week penod ended 4 Apri 2010 (the ‘Year) and up to the date of reporting except for the following matters

During the Year, the Board evaluated its own performance through an extensive questionnaire sent to each director, the responses
for which were considered and addressed by the Chairman and the findings were distributed to each director It was not
considered appropriate to conduct either Coemmittee or individual performance evaluations (section A 6 1} due to the position of
company secretary being held on an intenm basis In the year However, 1t is the intention to do so during the next financial year
after a permanent appointment has been made

In accordance with section A 31 of the Code, the Board has considered whether each of the Non-Executive Directors is
independent in character and judgement It has concluded that all of the Non-Executive Directors are independent, after having
reviewed the following factors that may, from a distance, cast doubt over their independence

Richard Arkle, a Non-Executive Director and former Chairman of the Company, held a Share Appreciation Right, which has lapsed
during the year

Pursuant to her letter of appomtment, Karen Slatford 1s required to devote a minimum of 25 days to the Company each year to
perform her duties as a Non-Executive Director Karen's letter of appointment provides that in the event that she s required to
devote time to the Company outside of those 25 days, then she will be pard a datly rate of £1,500

Following approval by the shareholders of the Volex Group plc Non-Executive Director Long Term Incentive scheme (*Non-
Executive LTIS" at an Extracrdinary General Meeting on 5 December 2008, awards were made dunng the year to Mike McTighe,
Chns Geoghegan and Karen Slatford Full details of the scheme, and awards made, are given on pages 41 to 42 and pages 44 to
45 of the Remuneration Report, respectively

The view of the Board 1s that these factors do not compromise the independence of the Non-Executive Directors, as they have
each apphed an objective approach and demonstrated both dedication and integnty in therr roles as Non-Executive Directors and
the Board has no reason to believe that this will change in the future

Statement of how the principles of the Code have been apphed
The following paragraphs together with the Directors’ Remuneration Report set out on pages 38 to 45 and the Directors’ Report
set out on pages 47 to 48 descnbe how the principles of the Code have been applied

Board of Directors

The Board currently comprises a Non-Executive Chairman, three Non-Executive Directors, all of whom the Board consider to
be independent, as stated above, together with two Executive Directors The biographies of the Directors can be found on
pages 32 to 33

The Board of Directors views its size and composition to be satisfactory in that the balance of skills and experence 1s approprate
for the business of the Group

On appointment, Diractors recewve an induction to the busmess and are briefed on the activities of the Group In addition, the
Chairman and Company Secretary ensure thal any new Director has access to appropnate traning and adwice in relation to
the duties of Directors and receive regular updates The Directors are also encouraged to update and refresh therr skills

and knowledge

Details of those Directors who will be offering themselves for re-election can be found on page 48 of the Directors’ Report
Directors' and officers’ insurance against legal action 1s in place providing cover for Directors and certain key officials of the

Company and its subsidiartes The Company has also granted qualifying third party indemnities to the Directors, which remain in
force, coples of which will be availlable for inspection at the forthcoming AGM
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Board and Committee meetings

The Board 1s scheduled to mest at least ten tmes a year and during the year it in fact met 13 times, some meetings having been
called at short notice From time to time the Board also meets by telephone conference calt to discuss ad hoc issues The table
below summarises the attendance by Board or Committee members at meetings held dunng the year

Audit Remuneraton  Nomination
Board Commitiee Committee  Committee
13meetngs 3 mestings 9meetings 1 megetngs

Richard Arkle 13 3 - -
Andrew Cherry 13 3 - -
Chns Geoghegan 11 2 g 1
Mike McTighe 13 - 9 1
Karen Slatford 12 2 g 1
Ray Walsh 11 - - -

The Charrman, Mike McTighe, 1s pnmarily responsible for leading the Board, ensunng its effectiveness in all aspects of its role,
settng s agenda and alse ensunng that each Director 15 in receipt of adequate information before making decisions

The Chairman ensures effective communication with shareholders and makes himself avalable to meet with shareholders As
Charrman, Mike McTighe also faciitates the effective contribution of Non-Executive Directors and ensures constructive relations
between Executive and Non-Executive Directors Chns Geoghegan, as the Senior Independent Director, makes himself availlable
to mest wath shareholders The Chief Executive, Ray Walsh, 1s responsible for running the Group's business and leads the
execution of the Group’s strategy The Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary and both the
appointment and removal of the Company Secretary 1s a matter for the Beard as a wheole The Board has adogted a policy under
which the Directors are able to take independent professional advice at the Company's expense

The Chairman, the Group Cheef Executive and the Group Finance Director are responstble to the Board for the timeliness and
qualty of all financial information submitted to the Board The Company Secretary Is responsible for the timaliness and quality of
all cther information submitted to the Board and for advising the Board through the Chairman on governance issues The normal
procedure I1s to distnbute Beard papers cne week in advance of meetings

The Board has a formal list of matters specifically reserved to it including reviewing business performance, all major strategy,
policy and investment decisions affecting the Group and the development of Group policies in a number of areas including health
and safety, social, ethical and environmental 1ssues and insurance

The Board approves gach sector's annual business plan and budget, which 1s prepared by the senior management of each
respective sector and which are compared with the monthly management accounts The Executive Directors are required to
comment on any areas where performance departs from current expectations and any significant variances are discussed by the
Board and appropnate action taken if considered appropriate the Non-Executive Directors and Chairman visit operations and the
Board meets with senior operational management throughout the Group mn order to further enhance its understanding of the
Group's key developments

The procedures which have been adopted enable the Board to make informed decisions on a range of key 1ssues including those
relating to strategy and nsk management

Board Committees

The Board has established the following Committees, each of which has adopted written terms of reference dealing clearly with
the Commuttee’s authonty and duties These were reviewed during the year and are available on request and on the Company’s
website (www volex com) In addition, the Board has established a number of other Committess, such as the Finance Committee
and the Sealing Committee and also establishes ad hoc Committees from time to tme to deal with specific tssues

The Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee comprised Mike McTighe, who (s Chairman of the Committee, Chns Geoghegan and Karen Slatford

Board appointments are considered initially by the Nomination Committee, which makes recommendations to the full Board

for further consideration and approval In performing its duties the Nomination Committee evaluates the balance of skills,
knowledge and experience on the Board, which enables 1t to determine the roles and capabilities required for a particular
appointment The Nomination Committee takes advice from a varniety of sources including external recruitment consultants when
considered appropriate The Board seeks to mantain an appropriate balance between Executive and Non-Executive Directors
The Company Secretary 1s secretary to the Commuttee
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Corporate governance report continued

The Remuneration Committee

The members of the Remuneration Committee were Chns
Geoghegan, who 1s Charman of the Commuttee, Mike McTighe
and Karen Slatford The Company Secretary acts as secretary
to the Committee The structure and business of the
Remuneration Committee 18 summarised in the Directors’
Remuneration Report on pages 38 to 45

The Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprised Richard Arkle, Charrman of
the Committee, Karen Slatford and Chns Geoghegan
Richard Arkle 1s regarded by the Board to have recent and
relevant financial experience

The Group Chief Executive, Group Finance Director, Group
Financial Controller and the Director of Business Assurance
are hvited 1o attend regular meetings, however the Audit
Committee also meets without the Executive Directors being
present at least once a year

The Audit Committee monitors the integnity of the financial
staterments of the Company and the Group together with any
formal announcements in relation to the Group's financral
performance It reviews the Group's internal financial contrcls
and also reviews the scope and effectiveness of the internal
audit function, although the Group’s internal control and nsk
management processes are considered by the Board as a
whole The Audit Committes recommends to the Board the
appointment and re-appontment of the external audrtors It
considers the scope and results of the external audit, its cost
effectiveness and the effectiveness of the external audit
process Furthermore, the Audit Committee monitors the
independence and objectivity of the auditors and the nature and
extent of non-audit services supplied by the external auditor by
analysing fees for audit and non-audit work, by receiving from,
ang discussing with, the auditors their annual report regarding
thelr independence policies and procedures, and by recenving
from the auditors confirmation that they have complied with
APB Ethical Standards

During the year the Committee reviewed the provision of overall
assurance within the Group, including a review of external audit
arrangements As part of this review, the Committee considered
proposals from s then auditors, Deloitte LLP,
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP and KPMG LLP The Committee,
Jjointly with the Board, concluded on balance that the proposal
from PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP should be accepted and
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP were appomnted as external
auditors to the Company and Group in June 2009 Deloitte LLP
subrmitted their resignation and formally confirmed there were
no matters concernmg their resignation that needed to be
brought to the shareholders’ attention

The respective responsibilities of the Directors in connection with
the financial statements are explanad in the Directors’
Responsibilities Statement in the Directors’ Report andin the
Auditors’ Report The Directors seek to ensure the independence
of the audttors by requesting an annual confirmation of
independence, which includes the disclosure of all non-audit fees

Internal controls

The Board has overalt responsibility for the Group's system of
internal control and nisk management and for reviewing the
effectiveness of this system Such a system is designed to
identify, evaluate and conirol the significant risks associated
with the Group's achievemnent of its business objectives with a
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view to safeguarding sharsholders’ nvestments and the
Group's assets Because of the imitations that are inherent m
any system of internal control, thrs system 15 designed to meset
the Company’s particular needs and the nisks to which it 1s
exposed and 1s designed to manage rather than eliminate rsk
Accordingly, such a system can provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss

In accordance with the Combined Code Turnbull Guidance on
internal contral, the Board confirms that there 1s an ongoing
process for identifying, evaluating and managing the significant
risks faced by the Group This process, which has been largely
informal dunng the year ended 4 Apnl 2010, and up to the date
of approval of the Annual Report and Accounts, will be further
developed and formalised in the next financial year

The Board has adopted a risk-based approach in estabiishing
the Group's system of internal control and in reviewing its
effectiveness To identify and manage key nsks, it has
established a number of Group-wide procedures, policies and
standards, has set up a framework for reporting and escalating
matters of significance, has authonsed the Audit Commities to
undertake reviews of the effectiveness of management actions
in controlling the intensity of key Group nsks identfied by the
Board, has developed a system of regutar reports from
managerment setting out key performance and risk indicators
and has reserved specific, key matters for its decision This
process Is designed to provide assurance by way of cumulative
assessment and 1s embedded in ¢perational management and
governance processes

Key elements of the Group's system of internal control which

have operated throughout the year are

* aclearly defined organisation structure with established
responsibilities

* asimple and focused busingss strategy, thus restricting

potential nsk exposures

Group financial, business conduct, operating and

administrative policies and procedures which incorporate

statements of required behaviour

* continuous review of operating performance

monitoring by the Board of a comprehensive reporting

system, including monthly results, annual budgets, and

periodic forecasts

* acentrally co-ordinated business assurance programme
which uses both internal and external resource to support
the Board in its rele of ensurng a sound control environment

* completion by business unit management of an annual
internal control assessment confirming compliance with
Group policies and procedures, detailing controls in
operation and hsting any weaknesses

The Beard regards responsible corporate behaviour as an
integral part of the overall governance framework and believes
that 1t should be fully integrated into management structures
and systerns Therefore the sk management policies,
procedures and monitoring methods described above apply
equally to the identfication, evaluation and control of Volex's
safely, ettucal and environmental risks and opportunities This
approach has enabled the Company to comply with the
disclosure guidelines 1ssued by the Association of British
Insurers on socially responsible investment which require listed
companigs to report to shareholders and give assurance that
the Company 1s managing iis risks in these matters

The Board has completed its annual review of the effectiveness
of the systern of internal control for the year to 4 Apnl 2010 and




15 satisfied that it 1s m accordance with the Tumbull Guidance
The assessment included consideration of the effectiveness of
the Board's on-going process for identifying, evaluating and
managing the nsks facing the Group

Whistle-blowing policy

The Company has adopted a whistle-blowtng policy, which is
availlable to employees ¢on the Group's website and onsite
notice boards

The aim of the policy 1s to encourage all employees, regardless
of senionty, to bring matters which cause thern concern to the
attention of the Audit Commuttee

Relations with shareholders

The Board has continued to establish and maintain a mutual
understanding of objectives between the Group and its
institutional shareholders by making annual and half-year
presentations to institutional nvestors and stock broking
analysts and meeting with potential and existing institutionat
sharehoiders it1s the Group's policy that all Directors attend the
AGM and the Board encourages all shareholders to attend and
participate at the AGM to enable it to be a forum for substantive
communication with investors
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Directors’ remuneration report

Introduction

This report has been prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006 {the ‘Act’} The Report also meets the
relevant requirements of the Listing Rules of the Financial
Services Authonty and the Combined Code (the ‘Code’) A
resolution to approve the Report will be proposed at the 2010
Annual General Meeting of the Company at which the financial
statements will be approved

The Audrtors are required to report to the shareholders on
certain sections of this Report and to state whether those
sections have been properly prepared In accordance with the
Companies Act 2006 The Report has therefore been dvided
into separate sections for audited and unaudited information
The audited information commences on page 43

UNAUDITED INFORMATION

Remuneration Committee

The mernbers of the Remuneration Committee (the
‘Commuttee’} were Chns Geoghegan, Charrman of the
Committee, Mike McTighe and Karen Slatford The Company
Secretary acts as secretary to the Committes

Kepler Associates 1s the appointed remuneration adwvisor to the
Committee, and provides no other services to the Company

None of the Committee members have any conflicts of interest
arising from cross-Directorships or day-to-day involvement in
running the business The only personal financial interest that
any of the Committee memibzers have in the Company, other
than as shareholders, 15 i respect of ther participation In the
Non-Executive LTIS scheme, detalls of which are given on
pages 41 to 42 of this Remuneration Report

During the fina cial penod ended 4 April 2010 matters

considered by the Committee included

* awards to be made under the Company’s existing share
Incentive arrangements,

* new long-term incentive/pension arrangements for Executive
Directors and other senior executives of the Company, and

* Exscutive Director pay benchmarking

Remuneration policy

The Committee agrees with the Board of Directors of the
Company on the broad policy for the remuneration of the
Executive Directors and such other senior executives as
determined by the Committee Chairman, the Group Chief
Executive and the Company Charman In the context of that
broad policy for each of the Executive Directors and senior
executives the Committee then determines and reviews, at least
annually, the specific remuneration packages including bonus
plans and awards under the Company's shara incentive
arrangements In addition, the Committee approves the terms
of service agreements of all Executive Directors and also the
terms of appaintment of certain semor executives Termination
payments are also considered by the Commuttee, although it 1s
mindful of its duty not to reward failing performance

Kepler Associates assisted the Committee in determiring the
Executive Directars’ remuneration for the year The advice
provided by Kepler Associates showed the Executive Directors
to be competitively paid

The balance of this report deals solely with the remuneration
and terms of service of the Board of Directors of the Company
No Director plays a part in any discussion regarding his/her
own remuneration
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The policy of the Committee In relation to the Executive Directors
15 to maintain remuneration packages sufficiant to attract, retain
and motivate executives of the calibre and experience necessary
to provide a successful future for the Group

The fee payable to the Charman s reviewed and determined
annually by members of the Committee {excluding the
Charman) following consultation with the Group Chief Executive
and assisted by market data provided by Kepler Associates
The remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors 1s determined
by the Board of Directors of the Company within the imits set
out in the Articles of Association

The objective of the remuneration policy 1S to prowvide a
balanced remuneration package, which includes an appropriate
level of bastic salary and benefits-in-kind (including a pension
provision whers appropriate), together with both short-term and
long-term incentives Short-term incentives are linked to
challenging targets, which suppeort and reinforce the objectives
of the Company The standard long-term incentives, which are
currently share-based awards, focus the executives on the
sustained development of the Group and aligns therr interests
with those of the shareholders

There are four main elements of the remuneration package for
Executive Directors

* basic annual salary and benefits-in-kind,

* annual bonus payments,

* long-term share related incentives, and

* pension arrangements

The Company's policy 1s that a substantial proportion of
the remuneration of the Executive Directors should be
performance related and the Committee aims to provide a
balanced remuneration package which links indvidual and
corporate performance

Basic salary

In deciding and reviewing appropriate remuneration packages,

the Commitiee considers

* the positioning of the Group relative to other comparable
companies,

* the positionng of Individual Directors relative to positions in
other comparable companies,

* remuneration expectations in the geographical area of
operation,

* surveys published by leading remuneration consultants
supplemented by specific advice and benchmarking
exercises by external consultants and the knowledge and
expenence of the members of the Commitiee,

= remuneration relatvities within the Group,

* the competition, nisks, challenges, complexity, diversity and
international spread of the Group's business, and

* the particular expertise and understanding required of the
Directors concerned and the responsibiities undertaken

The Commuttee determines Executive Directors' basic salanes
annually, with adjustments normally being made with effect from
1 Apnl

In the event that an Executive Director 1s required to refocate to
ancther country the Committee may award an expatnation
allowancs for a kmited number of years




In addition to basic salary and pension benefits, the Executive
Birectors receve certain benefits-in-kind, principally a car
allowance and fuel costs, private medical msurance, life
assurance and asststance in the cost of relocation where
considered appropnate

Bonus arrangements

A discretionary annual cash bonus scheme represents the
short-term incentive elernent of the overall remuneration
package for Executive Directors The Commitiee establishes
the objectives that must be met in each financial year If a cash
bonus I1s to be paid, reflecting the strateqgic objectives set by the
Board for the year In question The bonus plan for the financial
year 10 4 April 2010 was structured to reward performance
relative to financial targets and in certam cases personal
objectives and details of the bonuses paid to the Executive
Directors can be found on page 43 of the Bemuneration Report

In certain circumstances the Committee may grant special
bonus arrangements to Executive Directors Andrew Cherry's
terms of appomntment, as set out in his service agreement,
Include a retention honus equal to 50% of Andrew's basic
annuat salary for the period 19 February 2009 to 31 March 2010
and a further bonus to cover the period 1 Apnl 2010 to 18
August 2010 The first tranche of Andrew’s retention bonus, In
respect of the penod to 31 March 2010, was paid on 31 March
2010 The second tranche Is payable no earlier than 19 August
2010, subject to Andrew having 18 months continuous
employment with the Company In the event that employment
ceases at any time on or before 18 August 2010, the bonus
becomes repayable in full This benus is not pensionable

Long-term incentive schemes

Followsng its approval at an extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 5 December 2008, Volex Group plc
Performance Share Plan ('PSP') is the principal scheme through
which the Company provides long term incentive arrangements
to key executives

The PSP replaced two legacy longterm incentive scheme
arrangements

* Volex 1994 Share Option Scheme {1994 Scheme’) and Volex
2001 Option plan {'Option Plan'), known together as
Discrettonary Share Option Schemes ({DSOS")

* Volex Group plc Long Term Incentive Plan ('LTIP")

Long-term incentive schemes for Non-Executive Directors in
operation dunng the year were as follows

* Non-Executive Director Long Term Incentive Scheme ('LTIS")
+ Share Appreciation Rights Scheme ('SAR Scheme')

Following its approval at an extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 8§ December 2008, the LTIS is the principal
scheme through which the Company provides fong-term
incentive arrangements to Non-Executive Directors, replacing
the SAR scheme

Volex Group pic Performance Share Plan (PSP)

The principal terms of the PSP Plan are as follows
* Any nominated employees of the Company or any subsichary
of the Company 15 eligible to participate in the PSP Plan Itis
intended that the PSP Plan will be Imited 1o key executives

* An award will take the form of either a nil cost option which
shall be granted by the trustee of an employee benefit trust

established by the Company, or an option granted by the
Company with an exercise price set at the nominal value of
the Ordinary shares
* The aggregate nominal vafue of the Ordinary shares which
the Company may on any day 1ssue for the purpose of the ‘
PSP Plan and any other employee share scheme operated }
by the Company shall be imited to 11% of the norminal valug
of the Ordinary share capital of the Company N 1ssue on
that date
¢ No award may be granted to a participant if the market value
of all shares under that award and any other awards granted
under the PSP Plan in the same financial year will exceed
100% of the participant’s annual salary [n exceptional
circumstances this limit may be exceeded
* The exercise of awards granted under the PSP Plan will in
normal circumstances be conditional upon the achievement
of objective performance targets set at the time of grant
Such performance targets shall be measured over a
performance pericd {determined by the Committee at the
time of grant but which shall not be less than three years)
{‘the Performance Period’} The extent to which such
performance targets are met over the Performance Pencd
shall determine the extent to which the awards are capable
of exercise
The Committee may wave or amend the onginal
performance target provided that any such amended
targst 1s not more difficult to achieve than the ongmal
performance target
- onthe occurrence of a specific event or events which are
fixed by the Committee on the grant of an award, and

= 1f events occur which cause the Committee to reasonably
consider that a different or amended target would be a
farrer measure of performance

* An award will normally only be capable of exercise after the
end of the Performance Penod (subject to satisfaction of the
performance target) However, an award may be exercised
earlier in the event of a take-over, a scheme of arrangement
being sanctioned by the court, the voluntary winding up of
the Company or where the Company exercises its discretion
on the cessation of employment of a participant (f the
Company does not exercise such discretion then an award
shall lapse on cessation of employment)

* In all those circumstances allowing for early exercise of an
award, the award may not be exercised unless the
periormance condition (modified if necessary) has been
satisfied The number of shares over which an award may
he granied will also be pro rated down on a tme-
apportioned basis

In relation to PSP awards granted during the financial year
ended 4 Apnl 2010, the Committee has determined that the
Performance Pertod will be a three-year period commencing on
the date of grant of the awards and that the awards will be
subject to a total shareholder return target, as set out in the

table below

% of shares subject to
Total shareholder return’ target award that vest
Less than or egual to 90p Zero
Greater than or equal to 170p 100%

1 Total shareholder return 1s defined as the aggregate ol share price (average
mig-market quotations for a Company share over the five dealing days pror o the
matunty date) dwidends declared but not paid dunng the Parformance Panad
dwdends paid dunng the Performance Pencd and cumulative interest on any
dividends paid during the Performance Period accruing at 3% per annum
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If total shareholder in the Performance Penod falls between the
two targets set out above, then the percentage of shares that
may be vested will be calculated on a straight-ing basis

The Commuttee beheves that total shareholder return 1s the best
measure of long-term performance for the Company, and
provides strang alignment with shareholder interests

* Subject to the performance target attaching to an award
being met, an award may be exercised at any time dunng
the s1x months that foltow the third anniversary of the date
of grant

Between September 2009 and January 2010, 1,672,945 of
sharg option awards were granted, pursuant to the PSP plan
The exercise price attached to the options was 25p, the nominal
value of the Company's shares

The Commuttee 15 also considering the possibility of structuring
future awards under the PSP in a potentially more tax efficient
manner for participants

Long Term Incentive Plan

Prior to the adoption of the PSP Plan, the Volex Group plic Long
Term Incentive Plan (LTIP} was the Company’s principal
long-term ncentive schermea The scheme was specifically
designed to provide high rewards to executives for high
performance by inking a substantial part of the long-term
reward of executives to the investment of thetr own funds in the
Company’s shares Under the LTIP two types of awards were
made Share Matching Awards and Performance Share
Awards At 4 April 2010, all Share Matching Awards had lapsed

A Performance Share Award 1s structured as an option to
acquire shares in the Company for their nominal value The
option s normally capable of exercise If the participant s an
employee at the point of exercise and demanding performance
conditions set at the date of grant of the Performance Share
Award are satisfied at the end of the three-year performance
period Performance Share Awards to any individual in any ong
financial year are imited to 100% of basic salary

FY2009 LTIP awards
No Share Matching Awards were granted under the LTIP dunng
the financial year ended 5 Apnl 2009

In relatron to the Performance Share Awards made during the
financtal year ended 5 Apnl 2009 all of the shares subject to
each award were subject to the "shara pnce target' set out in
the table below
% of shares subject to
award that vest
Zero
25%
50%
100%

Share price target

Less than 115p
Equal to 115p
Equal to 155p
Equal to 200p

In determiring the percentage of shares subject to an award
that will vest, the share price target 1s compared with the
average mid-markel quotations for a Company share over the
five dealing days prior to the matunty date (e three years from
the grant of the award)

If the average falls between any two of the share pnce targets
set out above, then the percentage of shares that may he
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vestad will be calculated on a straight-line basis between the
vesting thresholds

In addition to the share price targets, all the LTIP awards are
subject to an EPS underpin Accordingly, for the LTIP awards
granted in July 2008, should the EPS of the Company in
respect of the financial year ending 3 Apnl 2011 (‘Actual EPS’)
egual 18p per share or more, then the EPS underpin for awards
made dunng the financial year ended 5 Aprl 2009 will have
been satisfied The number of shares over which an

award may be exercised shall be determined by applying the
share price target to the relevant number of shares subject to
the award

If however the Actual LTIP 15 less than 18p per share, then the
total number of shares subject to the award will be reduced
downwards before the share price target 1s applied The
reduced number of shares over which the award may be
exercised (prior to the application of the share price target) shall
be determined by multiplying the number of shares subject to
such award by the fraction determined by dividing the Actual
EPS by 18

FY2008 LTIP awards
No Share Matching Awards were granted under the LTIP during
the financial year ended 30 March 2008

In refation to the Performance Share Awards made during the
financial year ended 30 March 2008 all of the shares subject to
each award wers subject to the ‘share price target’ set out In

the table below
% of shares subject to

Share price 1arget award that vest

Less than 225p Zero
Equal to 225p 25%
Equal to 275p 50%
Equal to 325p 100%

In determining the percentage of shares subject to an award
that will vest, the share price target 1s compared with the
average mid-market quotations for a Company share over the
five dealing days prior to the matunty date (1 e three years from
the grant of the award)

If the average falls between any two of the share price targets
set out above, then the percentage of shares that may be
vested will be calculated on a straight-ine basis between the
vesting thresholds

In addition to the share price targets, all the LTIP awards are
subject to an EPS underpin Accordingly, for the LTIP awards
granted in June 2007 to become capable of exercige, the EPS
for the financial year ended 4 Apnl 2010 must equal 22 5p per
share If the Actual EPS 15 less than 22 5p per share, then the
total number of shares subject to an award will be reduced
downwards before the share price targets are applied As
reported on page 70 the EPS for the financial year ending

4 Apni 201015 14 8p (‘Actual EPS'} Therefore the total number
of shares subject to an award granted in FY2008 will be
reduced downwards before the share price target 1s appled
The reduced number of shares over which an award may be
exercised (prior to the applicatton of the share price target) shall
be determined by muttiplying the number of shares subject to
such an award by 14 8/22 5




FY2007 LTIP awards

All of the awards granted under the LTIP during the financial
year ended 1 Apnl 2007 lapsed during the year, as a result of
the performance condiions not being met

In respect of all LTIP awards, the share price target and the
percentage of shares over which an LTIP award 1s capable of
exarcise in accordance with such target shall n each case take
eftect over such reduced number of shares as s determined by
the prior apphication of the EPS underpin

The Actual EPS will be as disclosed in the Group's consolidated
audited accounts for the accounting penod in question (subject
to adjustments the Committes, in its absolute discretion,
considers to be reasonable including but not imited to any
adjustments for exceptional items)

Subject to the performance condition attaching to an award
being satisfied, an LTIP award may be exercised at any time
during the six months that foltow the third anniversary of the
date of grant

Restricted Scheme
No awards were made under the Restricted Scheme during
the Year

Discretionary share option schemes

Historically, and prior to the adoption of the PSP and LTIP
schemes, the Company's standard long term incentives for
Executive Directors and senior executives were in the form of
share option schemes, which included the 1994 Share Option
Scheme (11994 Scheme') and the Volex 2001 Option Plan {the
‘Option Plan’) Following the adoption of the PSP, the Company
has not 1ssued any further options under the discretionary share
option schemes and does not propose to 1ssue any further
options under such schermes in the forthcoming financial year
No Executive Director currently holds any options granted
pursuant to the 1994 Scheme

Share Appreciation Rights

Richard Arkle's Share Appreciation Right Scheme

Richard Arkle was Chairman of the Company from 6 May 2006
until 1 March 2008 As part of the terms of his recruitment and
retention, the Company agreed, following consultation with its
major shareholders, t0 establish a long-term incentive scheme
for Richard Arkle under which he was the sole participant This
has now lapsed and no payment has been made as the
performance conditions were not met

Share Appreciation Right (SAR) Scheme for

Non-Executive Directors

No awards have been granted pursuant to the SAR Scheme
during the year and the Company does not intend to grant any
awards pursuant to the SAR Scheme during the next financial
year Instead the Non-Executive Director LTIS is expected to be
the principal scherme for any provision of long-term Incentive
arrangements for Non-Executive Directors

Non-Executive Director LTIS

The current pnncipal terms of the LTIS are as follows
* Awards under the Non-Executive Director LTIS shall only be
made to the Chairman and other Non-Executives, selected
by the Charman, who take ownership of duties for the
benefit of the Company over and above those reasonably
expected to be undertaken by a Non-Executive Director

* Awards will take the form of an option over a number of
units, which upon exercise will give nse to the award holder

recewving a cash payment
* The maximum number of units subject to all outstanding
awards shall be 1,000 and the maximum aggregate cash
payment that can be made pursuant to all awards will be
imited to £2,013,227
Only one award may be granted to a participant
The ability to exercise an award will only be triggered by the
first to occur of
- the third anniversary of the adoption by the Company of
the scheme, ('Third Anniversary'),
— achange of control of the Company (‘Take-over'), or
— arestnction for the voluntary winding-up of the Company
being passed (‘Liqudation’)

However, the exercise of an award in any of these
circurnstances will only give nse to an obhgation on the
Company to make a payment to the award holder concerned if
the aggregate of all of the returns made to shareholders
(‘Cumulative Share Return') dunng the penod commencing on
the date of adoption of the Non-Executive Director LTIS by the
Company and ending with the event that triggers the ability to
exercise the award, (whether this 1s the Third Anniversary, the
Take-over or the Liquidation) exceeds £1 14 per Ordinary share
of the Company

For the purpose of calculating the Cumulative Share Return
over the relevant penod, any return of cash (‘Return of Capital’)
paid to shareholders (by any means whatsoever including, but
not imited to, a buy back of its own Ordinary shares by the
Company, the payment of a special dividend on Ordinary
shares in the capital of the Company or a reduction of its share
capital approved by the court) during that perod, shall be taken
into account All such Returns of Capital shall be aggregated
with any return delivered to shareholders by virtue of a Take-
over or a Liguidation where such Take-over or Liguidation 1s the
event that tnggers the ability to exercise the awards
(Accordingly, any return delivered to shareholders by virtue of a
Take-over or Liguidation that occurs after the Third Anniversary
shall not be taken into account in the calculation of the
Cumulative Share Return )

In the case of a Takse-over, the return delivered to shareholders
shall be measured as the aggregate of the cash consideration
and the value of non-cash consideration (f any) payable per
Ordinary share of the Company under the terms of the Take-
over In the case of a Liquidation, the return delvered to
shareholders shall be measured as the amount of cash per
Ordinary share avallable for distribution to shargholders of the
Company as farrly and reasonably determined by the
Committee at the time of the Liquidation {for these purposes
taking into account payments to be made under the scheme}
In each case the amount of the return shall be measured

In Sterling

The amount of cash avallable for distnbution between all award

holders under the Non-Executive Director LTIS ('Bonus Poal')

will be determined by reference to the Cumulative Share Return

deltvered to shareholders Where the Cumulative Share Return

per Crdinary share n the capital of the Company

* 15 less than £1 14, the Bonus Poot will be zero,

* 15 equal to or greater than £1 14 but less than £1 231, the
Bonus Pool will be £800,000,

* |15 gqual to or greater than £1 31 but less than £1 49, the

Bonus Pool will be €1m,

15 exaclly equal to £1 49, the Bonus Pool wilf be £1 2m, and

18 exactly equal to £2 50, the Bonus Pool will be £2,013,227

* o
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Where the Cumulative Share Return deliverable to shareholders
per Ordinary share in the capital of the Company 1s greater than
£1 49 but less than £2 50, then the amount ¢f the Bonus Pool
will be calculated on a straight-line basis between £1 2m and
£2,013,227

» If an award holder ceases to be a Director of the Company by
reason of Il health, injury, disabilty, death or retirement an
award holder will be entitled to retain his award for a short
penod following such cessation Should the Third Anniversary,
a Take-over or a Liquidation occur prior to the expiry of such
relevant penod then the award holder will be entiiled to
exercise his award If an award holder ceases to be a Director
for any other reason then their award shall lapse on cessation
except within three months of cessation the Company may
exercise Its discretion 1o allow an award holder to retain the
award for a short pencd

* Should an award holder ceass to be a Dirsctor prior to
receving notification from the Company that the Third
Anniversary, a Take-over or a Liquidation has occurred
the number of units in respect of which the award may
be exercigsed shall be pro rated down on a tme
apportioned basis

Grants made to Non-Executive Directors duning the year under
the LTIS are shown on page 44 of this report

Pension arrangements

The provision of penston benefits for Executive Directors 1S
considered in the context of the overall remuneration package
and in the light of each executive's particular circumstances
Andrew Cherry is a member of the Volex Group Persaonal Pension
Plan, with a Company contribution of 20% of basic salary

Performance graph

The following graph shows the Company's performance,
measured by total shareholder return, compared with the
performance of the FTSE All Share Index and the FTSE
Electronic and Electncal Equipment sector, both also measured
by total shareholder return Thess Indices have been selected
for this companson because they represent the general and
specific markets/sectors in which the Company 1s listed on the
London Stock Exchange
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Five year total shareholder return

Directors’ contracts

It 1s the Company’'s policy that service contracis for each
Executive Director continue untit the Director's contractual
retirement date {or such date as agreed between the Director
and the Company) unless terminated earlier by erther party,
subject to the contractual notice period of not more than

one year

The Company's policy for Non-Executive Directors, including
the Chairman, 1s to have contracts for services, documented in
a Letter of Appointment, with an inthal period of appeointment of
three years, renewable by agreement for successive periods

Under the Articles of Association of the Company at each AGM
any Director then in office who has been appomnted by the
Board since the prevtous AGM, and any Drirector then in office
who at the date of the notice convening the AGM had held
office for more than 30 months since he was elected or last
re-elected by the Company in General Meeting is required 1o
retire from office but is eligible for re-election Detalls of those
Directors seeking election can be found on page 48 of the
Directors’ Report




Detalls of the Directors’ contracts are summarnsed in the table below
Effective date of service contract

Name of Director or letter of appointment Notice penod
Executive Directors

Andrew Cherry 19 02 2008 6 months
Ray Walsh 06 04 2009 12 months
Non-Executive Directors

Richard Arklg' 21 04 2008 3 months
Chnis Geoghegan 01 03 2008 3 months
Mike McTighe 01 03 2008 3 months
Karen Slatford 27 052008 3 months

1 Rlehard Arkle jomned the Company on 2& Apnl 2005 and his tarms of appointment were renewed in 2008

The Directors’ contracts do not include any specific provisions relating to compensation in the event of early termination In the
event of early termination of an Executive Director’s service agreement, the Company would give notice to the Executive Director
and/or make payment in eu of notice, with due allowance in appropnate circumstances for the Director's duty to mitigate his loss
Details of payments with regard to compensation of loss of office are included in the table below

Executive Directors’ Service Contracts, which include details of remuneration together with copies of the Non-Executive Directors’
Letters of Appointment, will be avallable for Inspectton prior to the 2010 AGM

Outside appointments
None of the Executive Directors hold outside Director appointments

Non-Executive Directors

All Non-Executive Directors have specific terms of engagement Therr fees are determined by the Board within the limits set by the
Articles of Association and taking into account market data provided by Kepler Associates The fee paid to each Non-Executive
Director in the year 15 set out in the table below Non-Executive Directors cannot participate i the LTIP, the PSP Plan nor the
Restricted Scheme and are not eligible to join the Company's pension scheme, howeaver, In exceptional circumstances Non-
Executive Directors may be awarded options over a number of units pursuant to the Non-Executive Directors LTIS, details of which
can be found on pages 41 to 42 of this Remuneration Report

AUDITED INFCRMATION
Directors’ emoluments
Details of the emoluments of those Directors who were in office dunng the financial pencd ended 4 Apnl 2010 are set out below

Compensation

Fees/vasic Benefits Annual for loss 2010 2008
salary inkind  bonuses of olfice® Total Total
£ £ £ £ £ £
Executive Directors

Andrew Cherry’ 250,000 12,256 277,449 - 539,705 31,058
Ray Walsh? 370,000 144,988 273,060 - 788,048 -
Heejae Chag® - - - - - 311,621
lan Degnan® - - - - -~ 210,254

Non-Executive Directors
Richard Arkle® 35,000 - - - 35000 35000
David Beever® - - - - - 22,500
Chrns Geoghegar? 35,000 - - - 35000 30,833
Mike McTighe 125,000 - - - 125,000 125,000
Craig Mullett® - - - - - 10,500
Karen Slatford® 30,000 - - - 30,000 2B,733

845,000 157,244 550,509 1,552,753 805,499

1 Andrew Cherry was appointed Group Finance Director on 19 February 2009,
having served as Interim Group Finance Director during the penod § January
2009 to 19 February 2008 Included n Mr Cherry’s annual bonus s the first
trancha af a contractual retention bonus amounung to £42,049

2 Ray Walsh was appointed as Chiet Execwutive Officer on 6 Aprl 2009 Benefits-in-
kind racesved by Mr Walsh included £74 000 n respect of a cash payment i keu
of pension contnbution and £48,313 relating to relocation costs

3 Heejas Chae ceased to be a Director on 9 March 2009 £241 000 was paid 1o him
tn iha year In respect of compensation for 10ss of othica This matter 1s schaduled
& be concluded at an Employmant Tnbunal in July 2010 [see note 24 to the
Financial Statements)

4 lan Degnan resigned as a Director on 5 January 2009

5 For his services as a Non-Executive Director Richard Arkle receives an annual fog
of £35 000, comprnising a Non-Executive Director fee of £26,000 and an additional

£9,000 for channg the Audit Committee

Oavid Beaver resigned as a Non Exacutive Director on 31 December 2008

As the Board's Serior Independent Non-Executive Director Chns Geoghegan

recewes an anmual fee of €35 000, which nchudes a fee of £4 000 for channg the

Remuneration Commiitee

8 Crag Mulleti resigned as a Non-Executive Diractor on 30 Jung 2008

9 Karen Slatford recewves an annual Non-Executive Directer fee of £30,000
Pursuant to her service contract Karen is required to devote a mintmum of 25 days
1o the Company each yaar {0 perform her duties as a Non-Executive Director
Karen s s8rvice contract provides thatin the event that she is required to devote
time to the Company outside of thase 25 days then she will be paid a daily rate of
£1,500 Fees recaived by Karen durng the year included an additional payment
amounting to £nil for addittonal days worked

-~ ®
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The Directors do not receive general expense allowances but are reimbursed specific reasonable expenses ingurred in connection
with the Company’s business

Directors' interest in long-term incentive schemes

Aggregate emoluments disclosed above do not include any amounts for the value of options to acquire Ordinary shares in the
Company or nghts to cash-settled share-based payments granted to or held by the Directors Details of the Directors’ interest in
long-term incentive schemes are set out below

Volex Group plc Performance Share Plan (PSP)

Number Number Exercise price

of sharas Number Number of shares of shares Market price’
subject to of shares of shares subjectto  subject to PSP of shares Date of grant
PSP options subjectto PSP subyect to PSP PSP optlons optans granted subject ter of sharas
neldat  options granted options fapsed held at during FY2010 PSP options at subyect to
5 Apnl 2009 during FY2010  dunng FY2010 4 April 2010 {£) date of grant PSP cptions
Andrew Cherry - 305,623 - 305,623 025 0795 07082009
Ray Walsh - 452,322 - 452,322 025 0795 07 09 2009

1 Tha market price of a share at the date of grant ts taken to ba the average of the mid-market quotation for a Company s shara over the penod of five dealing days preceding
the date of grant

There have been no varations to the terms and conditions of the awards granted pursuant to the PSP during the financial year

No PSP awards vested during the year ended 4 Apnl 2010 Detalls of the performance targets applying to the awards made under
the PSP durning the year ended 4 Apnl 2010 are set out in full on pages 39 to 40

No PSP options were held during the year by Mike McTighe, Chns Geoghegan, Richard Arkle or Karen Slatford

Long term incentive plan (LTIP)
No LTIF options or awards were held dunng the year by any of the Directors

Share Appreciation Rights {SAR)
Details relating to Richard Arkle’s share appreciation nght {SAR) are shown In the table below

Number Number of Mumber of Number of

of notonal notional shares notional shares notronal

shares subject subject to SAR subjectto SAR shares subject

t0 SAR at granted during lapsed during to SAR at

5 Apnl 2009 FY2010 FY2M0 4 April 2010

Richard Arkle 140,562 - 140,562 -

Performance targets associated with Richard Arkle’s SAR were not met during the vesting penod (the six month period
following the third anniversary of date of grant, 29 September 2006) and consequently the SAR has lapsed and no payment has
been made

Non-Executive Director Long Term Incentive Scheme (LTIS)
Non-Executive Directors interest in the LTIS are as follows

Number Number
Number of of options of cptions Number of
aphons over over Bonus  over Borus  options over % interest
Bonus Pool Pool units Pool units Bonus Pool in Bonus.
units at granted dunng  lapsed dunng units at Pool at
5 Apnt 2009 FY2010 FY2010 4 April 2010 4 Apnl 2010
Chns Geoghegan - 100 - 100 10%
Mike McTighe - 800 - 800 80%
Karen Slatford - 100 - 100 10%
Total uruts in Bonus Pool 1,000
Total maximum Bonus Poo! payable (€) £2,0013,227

44 Volex Annual Report & Accounts 2010




In the event that the performance condition, details of which can be found on pages 41 to 42 of this Remuneration Report, has
been achieved Chris Geoghegan, Mike McTighe and Karen Slatford may exercise therr options over Bonus Pool units which will
give nse to a cash payment These awards over Bonus Pool units do not entitle the award holder to receive shares in the

Company
Full details of the LTIS are set out on pages 41 to 42 of this Remuneration Report

Directors’ pension entitlements

Pension contrnibutions in respect of Directors payable by the Group dunng the year were as follows

2010 2008

£ £

Heejae Chae' - 55975
Andrew Cherry? 50,000 5,513
fan Degnan® - 286,750

50,000 88,238

1 Hegjae Chae ceased to be a Directer of the Company on 9 March 2009
Andrew Cherry joined the Company on 18 February 2009 He s a member of the Volex Group Personal Pansion Plan a
makes a contnibution of 20%

3 lan Degnan ceased 10 be a Director of the Company on 31 January 2008

Directors’ interest in shares of the Company

maney purchase scheme to which the Company

As at the date of this report the interests in the share capital of the Company of those Directors who were in office at 4 Apnl 2010,

together with therr shareholding at 5 Apnl 2008, or date of appointment if later, are detalled

below The table detaills separately

beneficial interests in shares held through share options 1ssued to the Directors, under the PSP All interests relate solsly 1o 25p

Crdinary shares
Shares heola Sharesheld PSP optlons PSP options
at 4 April 2010 at 5 Aprif 2009 at4 Apnl 2010 at 5 Apri 2009
Richard Arkle 184,000 184,000 - -
Andrew Cherry 41,765 41,765 305,623 -
Chris Geoghegan - - - -
Mike McTighe 100,000 100,000 - -
Karen Slatford - - - -
Ray Walsh 40,000 - 452,322 -

None of the Directors had a matenal interest in any contract of significance with the Gompany or with any other related party

Approval
This report was approved by the Board of Directors on 1 June 2010

SPSDY

Chnis Geoghegan
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

1 June 2010
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are respansible for preparing the Annual Report, the Directors’ Remuneration Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that faw the Directors have
elected to prepare the Group and parent Company financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union Under Company law the Directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and farr view of the state of affars of the Group and the Company and of
the profit or loss of the Group for that period In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to

* select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

+ make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

= state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the European Union have been followed, subject to any matenal departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements,

* prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless It 1s iInappropnate to presume that the Company will
continue In business

The Directors confirm that they have complied with the above requirements

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and the Group and enable
them to ensure that the financial statements and the Directors’ Remuneration Report comply with the Companies Act 2006 and,
as regards the Group financial staterments, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
rregulanties

The Directors are responsible for the mamntenance and integrity of the Company's website Legislation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation tn other junsdictions

Drrectors’ statement pursuant to the Disclosure and Transparency Rules
Each of the Directers, whose names and functions are listed in the section, Board of Directors, annual report confirm that, to the
best of ther knowledge

= the Group financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, give a true and fair
view of the assets, llahilties, financial position and profit of the Group, and

* the management report contained within the Directors’ Report includes a far review of the development and performance of
the business and the position of the Group, together with a descnption of the principal nsks and uncertamnties that it faces

By order of the Board

Ray Walsh Andrew Cherry
Group Chief Executive Group Finance Director
1 June 2010 1 June 2010
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Directors’ report

The Directors present their Annual Report on the affairs of the
Group together with the audited financial statements and
independeant auditors' report for the financial year ended

4 Apnl 2010

Principal activities and business review

Volex Group plc 1s a leading global prowder of power products
and interconnect cable assemblies and provides glebal support
to leading producers of computers, telecommunication systems
and networking devices The Group produces cable assemblies
for consumer products and data & telecommunications,
healthcare and industrial applications

The Group operates through overseas subsidiary companies in
Asia, Europe, North and South Amenca The subsidiary
undertakings principally affecting the profits or net assets of the
Group In the year are listed on page 90

A review of the development and performance of the business
of the Group, Including the financial performance dunng the
year, the key performance indicators focused on and a
description of the principal nsks and uncertainties facing the
Group, are set out in the Business review which can be found
on pages 12 to 29 and also the Corporate Responsibility
Statement which can be found on pages 30 to 31

Prnincipal risks and uncertainties

Included in the business review on pages 28 to 29 1s an outline
of the pnncipal nisks facing the Group Given the current
economic circumstances and the guidance 1ssued by the
Financial Reporting Council, additional disclosures are included
n note 2 to the Financial Statements regarding the basis on
which the Directors have continued to adopt the going concern
basis in prepanng these financial statements

Financial instruments

An indication of the Company's financial nsk management
objectives and policies and the exposure of the Company to
new business development, customer concentration,
commedity price fluctuations, foreign exchange rates, pncing,
credit, lqudity and cash flow nisks 1s set out in note 34 to the
accounts and in the Business Review on pages 28 to 20

Research and development

The Group continues to place great emphasis on product and
process research and development to satisfy customer demand
and to ensure world class manufactunng standards are
achieved Tom Aubin, Director of Global Technology, I1s
responsible for leading the implementation of and developing
the technology strategy, which has resulted in enhanced
engineenng competencies m North Amenca and China Each
operating umit allocates considerable time and financial
resources for these purposes

Continuous improvement

The Group continues to use a range of management {ools to
achieve a culture of continuous Improvement throughout its
operations Continuous iImprovemnent processes are in place
throughout the Group

Share capital

As at 4 Apnl 2010, the Company’s total Issued share capital
compnsed 56,821,563 Ordinary shares of 25p each, which
represents 99 9% of the 1ssued share capital together with
80,000, 7% cumulative preference shares of £1 00 each, which
represents 0 1% of the issued share capital The Ordinary
shares carry no night to a fixed income and each Ordinary share
carries the nght to one vote at general meetings of the
Company In accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company, in view of the deferment of the payment of dividends
n respect of the cumulative preference shares, holders of the
cumulative preference shares are entitled to attend and vote,
whether In person or by proxy, at the 2010 AGM, each share
carrying the nght to one vote Details of the Company's share
capital can be found 1n note 25 to the accounts

There are no specific restrictions on the size of a holding nor on
the transfer of shares, which are both governed by the general
provistons of the Articles of Association and prevailing
legislation The Directors are not aware of any agreements
between holders of the Company's shares that may result in
restnctions on the transfer of securities or on voting nghts No
person has any special rights or control over the Company's
share caprtal and all 1ssued shares are fully paid

Cautionary statement

The purpose of the Annual Report s for the Company to
provide information to its members The Annual Report
contains certam forward-looking statements with respect
to the operations, performance and financial condition of
the Group By their nature these statements involve
uncertainty, since future events and circumstances can
cause results and developments to differ from those
anticipated Nothing in this Annual Report should be
construed as a profit forecast.

Summary review of operations

2010 2000
£'000 £ 000

Continuing operations
Operating profit before non-recurring

iterns and share-based payments 13,3583 11,175
Restructunng costs (3,095) (4,740)
Facilties rationalisation (941) -
Prowvision for onerous lease arsing on

disposal of discontinued operations - (3,000}
Aborted disposal costs - (1.020}
Share-based payments {charge)/credit (9) 132
investment income 71 226
Financing costs (3.410) (3,210
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 6,910 3,583
Taxation (1,631)  (1,991)
Profit for the pened from continuing

operations 5,279 1,592
Discontinued cperations
Loss for the period from discontinued

operations - (20,976)
ProfitAloss) for the perod, being the

retained profit/Aloss) for the year

attributable to the equity holders of

the parent 5279 (19,384)
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Directors’ report continued

Net assets employed by the Group were

2010 2009

£'000 £000

Non-current assets 10,570 11,228
Other assets and labilities 9,661 9,828
20,231 21,056

Net debt {7,571) (14,787)
Net assets 12,660 6,269
Gearng' 60% 236%

1 Nei debt dvided by net assets

Directors and their interests

(a) Directors

The Directors who served dunng the year were as follows
Richard Arkie
Andrew Cherry
Chns Geoghegan
Mike McTighe
Karen Slatford
Ray Walsh (appointed 6 Apnl 2009)

There have been no changes to the Board since the end of the
financial year Biographical detalls of the current Directors can
be found on pages 32 to 33

(b) Election of Directors

In accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Association
of the Company, Mike McTighe and Richard Arkle will retire at
the 2010 AGM and being eligibte, offer themselves for re-election
by the shareholders

(c) Diractors’ interests and remuneration

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and their interests in the
share capital of the Company are disclosed in the Directors’
Remuneration Report on pages 38 to 45

(d) Third party indemnities

The Company has granted qualfying third party indemnities to
the Directors, which remain in force, copies of which will be
avallable for inspection at the ferthcoming AGM

Substantial shareholdings
The Company 1s aware of the following mterests in the share

capital of the Company
Number of Percentage
Ordinary shares held'

NR Investments Lid

GoldenPeaks Capital Partners AG
Gartmore Investment Management
Cycladic Capital LLP

Starhope Capital LLC

15,080,119 26 52
11,178,454 19 65
4,457,969 783
2,586,564 455
2,657,741 4 50

1 Percantage calculated on the totat number of Ordinary and praference shares
outstancing at the date of this report which was 56 801 563

Charitable and political contnbutions

During the year the Group made charitable donations of €nil
(2009 £2,000) No political donations were made in the year
(2009 £nm)
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Disabled employees

Apphcations for employment by disabled persons are always fully
considered, bearng in mind the apttudss of the applicant
concemed In the event of an employee becorming disabled, every
gffort 1s made to ensure that his/her employment with the Group
continues and that, where necessary, appropnate re-traning 1s
arranged It 1s the policy of the Group that the training, career
development and promotion of disabled persons should, as far as
possible n the arcumstances of each particular case, be the same
as that of other employees Both employment and policy in the
Group are based on non-discnmination and equal opportunities

Employee consultation

The Group places considerable value on the nvolvernent of its
employees and has continued to keep them informed on matters
affecting them as employees and on the vanous factors affecting
the performance of the Group The Group has continued its policy
and practice of mforming and consulting its employees through a
systermn of regular joint meetings betwesn members of the
cperational management teams and the employees themselves
and, where appropnate, employee representatives Details of the
Group’'s employees can be found in nete 10 to the accounts

Supplier payment policy

The Group's policy 1s to pay supphers on settliement terms agreed
with each supplier The average number of days outstanding
duning the financial year ended 4 Apnl 2010 in respect of trade
creditors was approximately 79 days (2009 77 days)

Audit and auditors

In the case of each of the persons who are Directors of the

Company at the date when the report was approved

so far as each of the Drectors 1 awars, there 1s no refevant audit
information of which the Company's auditors are unaware,

« gach of the Directors has taken all the steps he/she ought 1o
have taken individually as a Director in order to make himself/
herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish
ihat the Company’s auditors are aware of that information

In accordance with the recommendation of the Audit
Committee as disclosed on page 36 and section 489 of the
Companies Act 2008, a resolution to re-appoint
PrcewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the Company's auditors will
be proposed at the forthcoming AGM

Directors’ iIndemnities

The Company’s Articles of Asscciation contan a quahfying third
party ndemnity provision (as per the Companies Act 2006} that
provides that the Company may pay for Directers’ iIndemnities
out of its own assets The Company has procured Directors’
and officers’ insurance for this purpose

AGM

The 2010 AGM of the Company will be held on 14 July 2010 in
accordance with the Notice of Meeting, which is included at the
end of this Annual Report

The meeting will consider items of ordinary business and items
of special business Each resolution will be proposed as a
separate resolution

By order of the Board

"\LV\/‘-'\__, b
Nick Temple

Company Secretary
1 June 2010




Independent auditors’ report to the members of

Volex Group plc

We have audited the financial statements of Volex Group plc

for the 52 week penod ended 4 Apnl 2010, which comprnise
Consolidated Income Statement, the Conselidated Statement

of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated and Company
Statement of Financial Posihon, the Consolidated and Company
Statement of Changes in Equity, the Consolidated and Company
Statement of Cash Flows and the related notes The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in therr preparation 1s
applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and, as regards the
parent company financial staterments, as appled in accordance
with the prowisions of the Companies Act 2006

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors

As explaned more fully in the Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities set out on page 46, the Directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and
for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our
responsibility 1s to audit the financal statements in accordance
with applicable iaw and International Standards on Auditing (UK
and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the
Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

Thes report, Including the opinions, has been prepared for and
only for the Company’s members as a body in accordance with
Sections 435 to 497 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other
purpose We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or 1o any other person to
whom this report Is shown or into whose hands it may come
save where expressly agreed by our prior consent In writing

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit nvolves obtaining evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free
from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error
This ncludes an assessment of whether the accounting
policies are appropnate to the Group's and the parent
company's circumstances and have been consistently applied
and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the Directors, and the overall
presentation of the financial statements

Opinion on financial statements

In sur opimion

* the financ:al statements give a true and far view of the state
of the Group’'s and of the parent company's affairs as at 4
April 2010 and of the Group's profit and Group’s and parent
company’s cash flows for the year then ended,

* the Group financial statements have been properly prepared
in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union,

* the parent company financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union and as applied in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2008, and

* the financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and,
as regards the Group financial statements, Articte 4 of the
IAS Regutation

Cpminion on other matters prescribed by the Companies

Act 2006

In our opnion

s the part of the Directors’ Rermuneration Report to be audited
has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006,

= the mformation given in the Directors’ Report for the financial

year for which the financial statements are prepared I1s

consistent with the financial statements, and

the information given in the Corporate Governance

Statement set out on pages 34 to 37 with respect to internal

control, nsk management systems and shara capital

structures 1s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to

you if, In our opinion

* adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been receved from branches not wisited by us, or

* the parent company financial statements and the part of the
Directors' Remuneration Report to be audited are not In
agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

» certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration speciiied by
law are not made, or

* we have not recerved all the information and explanations we
require for our audit

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

* the Directors’ statement, set out on page 56, in relation to
going concern, and

» the parts of the Corporate Governance Statement refating to
the Company's compliance with the nine provisions of the
June 2008 Combined Code specified for our review

&~

Nigel Reynolds

(Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

1 June 2010
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Consolidated income statement

For the 52 weeks ended 4 Apnl 2010 (53 weeks ended 5 Apnl 2009)

Notes

Group
2010 2009
£000 £ 000

Continuing operations

Revenue 3 228,995 265,116
Cost of sales (182,834) (222,963)
Gross margin 46,161 42,153
Operating expenses {35,912) (35,586)
Operating profit 10,249 6,567
Analysed as

Operating profit before non-recurnng items and share-based payments 13,353 11,175
Restructuring costs 4 (3,085} (4,740)
Share-based payments (charge)/credit (9) 132
Operating profit 10,249 6,567
Investment mcome 5 71 226
Finance costs & {3,410} (3,210)
Profit on ordinary actmities before taxation 6,910 3,583
Taxation 11 {1,631} (1,991}
Profit for the period from continuing operations attnibutable to owners of the parent 7 5,279 1,592
Discontinued operations

Loss for the period from discontinued operations attnbutable to owners of the parent 8 - (20,975
Profit/{loss) for the period attributable to the owners of the parent 5,279 (19,384)
Earnings/(loss) per share (pence)!

From continuing operations

Basic 13 9.3 28
Dhluted 13 91 28
From continuing and discontinued operations

Basic 13 93 (34 1)
Diluted 13 91 {34 1)

1 Earnings per share before non-recurnng Hems, loss on disposal and share-based payments 1s shown in note 13

The Company has elected to take the exemption under section 408 of the Companigs Act 2006 ta not prasent the parent

company Income statement The profit for the parent company for the year was £533,000 (2009 loss of £14,427,000)
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

For the 52 weeks ended 4 April 2010 (53 weeks ended 5 April 2009)

Group

2010 2009

Notes £'000 £ 000

Profit/(loss) for the year 5,279 (19,384)

Other comprehensive iIncome:

Gain/(loss} on hedge of net investment taken to equity 532  (5554)

Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations 1,073 8,948
Actuanal losses on defined benefit pension schemes 33 (516) (285)

QOther comprehensive tncome for the year 1,089 3,109
Total comprehensive income for the period attributable to the owners of the parent 6,368 (16,275)
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Consolidated and company statement of

financial position

As at 4 April 2010 (5 April 2009)

Group Company
2010 2009 2019 2009
Notas £'000 £'000 £°000 £ 000
Non-current assets
Goodwil 14 1,930 1,930 - -
Other intangible assets 15 658 566 357 177
Property, plant and eguipment 16 7,501 8,040 192 15
Investments 17 - - 90,668 92373
Trade and other recevables 19 213 - 200 -
Deferred tax asset 23 268 692 - -
10,570 11,228 9,417 92,565
Current assets
Inventories 18 27,502 24,135 3,847 3,464
Trade and other recevables 19 60,146 59,751 54,376 46,730
Current tax assets 385 56 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 19 18,220 18,877 3,049 1,458
106,253 100,819 61,272 51,652
Total assets 116,823 112,047 152,689 144,217
Current habilities
Bank overdrafts and loans 19 282 - - -
Oblgations under finance leases 21 64 2 64 -
Trade and other payables 22 61,9499 56,332 69,313 53,297
Current tax habiities 5,402 5,842 - 63
Retirement benefit abligation 33 155 153 155 153
Provisions 24 4,055 3,735 1,882 1,853
Liability for share-based payments 32 - 14 - 14
Dervative financial instruments 34 3n 248 199 215
72,278 66,326 71,613 55,595
Net current assets/(llabilities) 33,975 34493 (10,341) (3,943
Non-current habilities
Bank loans 20 2535 31662 13,314 19,379
Obligations under finance leases 21 89 - 89 -
Trade and other payables 22 - 631 47,618 48,982
Deferred tax liabilities 23 65 - - -
Reatirement benefit obhgation 33 2,231 1,683 2,231 1,683
Provisions 24 4,064 5,386 3,168 3,732
Non-equity preference shares 26 80 BO 80 80
31,885 39,452 66,500 73,856
Total iabilities 104,563 105,778 138,113 129,451
Net assets 12,660 6269 14576 14,766
Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Share capital 25 14,205 14205 14,205 14,205
Share premium account 1,357 1,357 1,357 1,357
Hedging and translation reserve 3,138 1,533 {(1,569) (1,339
Merger reserve - - 8,224 8,224
Non-distributable special reserve 27 - - 18,125 18,125
Accumulated losses (6,040) (10,826) (25,766) (25,806)
Total equity 12,660 6,269 14,576 14,7686

The financial statements on pages 50 to 89 were approved by the Board of Directors and authonsed for issueg on 1 June 2010

They were signed on its behalf by

Ray Walsh
Group Chief Executive
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Consolidated and company statement of

changes in equity

For the 52 weeks ended 4 Apnil 2010 (53 weeks ended 5 April 2009)

Share Hedging and

premum translation Accumulated

Share capital account reserve losses  Total equity
Graup £00¢ £000 £'000 £ 000 £000
Balance at 30 March 2008 14,205 1,357 (1,861) 8,935 22,636

Loss for the penod atinbutable to the owners of the parent -
Reserve entry for share option credit -
Actuanal loss on defined benefit pension schemes -
Exchange difference on translation of overseas operations -
Loss recognised on net iInvestment hadge -

- - (19.384) (19,384)

Balance at 5 Apnil 2009 14,205
Profit for the penod attnbutable 1o the owners of the parent -
Reserve entry for share option charge -
Actuarial loss on defined benefit pensicn schemes -
Exchange difference on translation of overseas operations -
Profit recognised on net investment hedge -

- - {92) {92}
- - (285)  (285)
- 8948 - 8,948
- (5.554) - (5,554)
1,357 1,533 (10,826) 6,269
- - 5219 5279
_ _ 23 23
- - G168 (516)
- 1,073 - 1,073
- 532 - 532

Balance at 4 Apnl 2010 14,205 1,357 3,138 {6,040) 12,660
Hedging Non
Share and distnibutable
Share premium translation Mergor special Accumulated
capital account resgrve roeserve reserve losses  Total equity
Company £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 009 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
Balance at 30 March 2008 14,205 1,357 {2) 8,224 18,125 (11,002) 30,907

Loss for the penod attrbutable to owners

of the parent - - -
Exchange differences on translation of

overseas operations - - (1,337)
Reserve entry for share option credit - - -
Actuanal gains on defined bensfit

penstion schemes - - -

- - {14,427) (14,427)

- - - (1,337)
- - (©2) {92)

- - (285} {285)

Balance at 5 Apnl 2009 14,205 1,357 (1,339)
Profit for the year attributable to the

owners of the parent - - -
Exchange differences on translation of

overseas operations - - {230}
Reserve eniry for share option charge - - -
Actuanal gains on defined benefit

pension schemes - - -

8,224 18,125 (25,806) 14,766

- - 533 533
- - - {230)
- - 23 23
- - (518} {516)

Balance at 4 April 2010 14,205 1,357 {1,569)

8,224 18,125 (25,766} 14,576
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Consolidated and company statement of cash flows

For the 52 weeks ended 4 April 2010 (53 weeks ended 5 Apnil 2009)

Group Company
2010 2000 2010 2009

Motes £'000 £ 000 £'000 £1000
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities 209 11,868 13,359 10,590 {483)
Cash flows from investing activities
Dividends receved from subsidiary undertakings - - - 5,092
Interest receved 71 226 53 g72
Proceeds on disposal of intangible assets, property, plant and equipment 73 283 - -
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (1,619) (2,016) (42) {11)
Purchases of intangible assets (237) (418) (237} (181)
Net cash outflow ansing on disposal of operations (1,979) {762y (1,979) {762)
Loans to subsidiary undertakings - - 406 {1,276}
Net cash {used in)/from investing activities {3,691) {2.687) {1,799 3.834
Cash flows before financing activities 8,177 10,672 8,791 3,351
Cash generated before non-recurnng items 12,811 15,966 12,339 6,524
Net cash outflow ansing on disposal of operations 30 {1,979} (762) {1,979) (782)
Cash utiised In respect of non-recurring items {2,655) (4,532) (1,569) (2,411)
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayments of borrowings 28 (5,994) (40,038) (5,994)
Advances of borrowings - 49,038 -
Refinancing costs paid (1,512) - (1,512} -
Decrease in bank overdrafts - - - (2,406)
Repayments of obligations under finance leases 28 2) {42 - -
Net cash used in financing activities (7,508} (42) (7,506} {2,406)
Net increase In cash and cash equivalents 669 10,630 1,285 945
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 28 16,877 4317 1,458 -
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 28 392 1,930 306 513
Cash and c¢ash equivalents at end of period 28 17,938 16,877 3,049 1,458
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Notes 1o the financial statements

For the 52 weeks ended 4 April 2010 (53 weeks ended 5 April 2009)

1. Presentation of financial statements

Volex Group plc {'the Company’) s a publc hmited company incorporated and domiciled in the United Kingdom under the
Companies Act 2006 and listed on the London Stock Exchange The address of the registered office 1s given on page 92 The
nature of the Group's operations and its principal activities are set cut in the Charman’s Statement and Business and Financtal
Rewviews on pages 1210 27

Financial statements are prepared for the period ending on the Sunday following the Fnday that falls closest to the accounting
refarence date of 31 March each year

2. Significant accounting policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below These
policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Internationaf Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union (IFRSs as adopted by the EU), IFRIC Interpretations and the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies
reporting under IFRS

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the revaluation of the inancial Instruments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain cnitical accounting estmates It also
requires management to exercise Its judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumption and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed on page 62

Adoption of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
The following new and revised Standards and Interpretations have been adopted in the current period and have affected the
amounts reported in these financial staterents

(1} New and amended standards adopted by the Group

* 1AS 1 {revised) 'Presentation of financial statements' — effective 1 January 2009 IFRS 1 (revised) has introduced terminology
changes (including rewised titles for the financial statements} and changes in the format and content of the financial statements
A new pnmary statement 'Statement of changes in equity' has been introduced, which was previously a note in the financral
statements The rewsed standard has had no impact on the reported results or financial position of the Group, and
consequently no impact on earnings per share

* IFRS 8 'Operating segments’ — effective 1 January 2009 This standard replaced IAS 14 ‘Segment reporting’ IFRS 8 requires
operating segments to be identfied on the basis of internal reports about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed
by the chief operating decision maker in order to allocate resources to segments and to assess ther performance

+ [FRS 7 ‘Financral instruments - disclosures' (amendment) - effective 1 January 2009 The amendment requires enhanced
disclosures about far value measurement and iquicity sk In particular, the amendment requires disclosure of fair value
measurements by level of a far value measurement hierarchy As the change in accounting policy only results in additional
disclosures, there 1s no impact on earnings per share

(1) Standards and Interpretations adopted with no effect on the financial statements

* A5 23 {revised) ‘Borrowing costs’ - the principal change to the standard was to elminate the option to expense all borrowing
costs incurred This change has had no impact on these financial statements because 1t has always been the Group's
accounting policy 1o capitalise borrowing costs as incurred on qualfying assets

¢ IFRS 2 {amendments) Share-based payment — vesting conditions and cancellations The amendments clarify the defiriion of
vesting conditions for the purposes of IFRS2, introduce the concept of ‘non-vesting' conditions, and clarify the accounting
treatment for cancellations

* IAS 32 (amendments) ‘Financial Instruments Presentation and 1AS 1 famendments) ‘Presentation on financial statements —
puttable financal Instruments and obligations ansing on lquidation’ - the revisions amend the critena for debt/equity
classifications by permitting certain puttable instruments and instruments [or components of instruments) that iImpose on an
entity art obligation to deliver to another party a pro rata share of the net assets of the entity only on hguidation, to be classified
as squity, subject to specified criterra being met

¢ IAS 39 (amendments) ‘Financial Instruments Recognition and measurement — elgible hedged iterns’ - the amendments clanfy
two aspects of hedge accounting identifying inflation as a hedged nisk or portion, and hedging with options

s IFRIC 15 ‘Agreements for the construction of real estate’ — the interpretation helps determing iIf construction of real estate 1s
within the scope of IAS 11 Construction Contracts or IAS 18 Revenue

* IFRIC 16 ‘Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation’ - the interpretation provides guidance on the detalled requirements
for net Investment hedging for certan hedge accounting designations
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Notes to the financial statements continued

For the 52 weeks ended 4 April 2010 (53 weeks ended 5 April 2009)

2. Significant accounting policies continued

{in) Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have been early
adopted by the Group

* |IFRS 8 (amendment) ‘Operating segments' — effective from reporting period 1 January 2010

{iv) Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group

» |FRS 2 ([amendments) ‘Group cash-settled and share-based payment transactions’ — effective from reporting penod

1 July 2009

IFRS 3 {revised} ‘Business combinations' - effective from reporting penod 1 July 2009

IFRS 5 (amendment) ‘Measurement of non-current assets (or disposal groups) classified as held-for-sale’ - effective from

reporting penod 1 January 2010

IFRS 9 Financial instruments for financial assets ~ effective from reporting penod 1 January 2011

1AS 1 (amendment) ‘Presentation of financial statements' — effective from reperting pertod 1 January 2010

IAS 7 (amendment) 'Financial instruments’ - effective from reporting penod 1 January 2010

1AS 24 {amendment) ‘Related party disclosures’ — effective from reporting penocd 1 January 2011

IAS 27, revised) ‘Consolidated and separate financial staterments’, — effective from reporting period 1 July 2009

1AS 38 (amendment) ‘Intangible assets' — effective from reporting penod 1 January 2010

IFRIC 17 ‘Distribution of non-cash assets to owners' - effective from reporting period 1 July 2009

IFRIC 18 '"Transfer of assets from customers’ — effective from reporting perod 1 July 2009

IFRIC 14 (amendment)} ‘Pre-payments of a Mimimum Funding Requirement’ - effective from reporting penod 1 January 2011

* & & & & & 0 & ¢

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of Volex Group plc incorporate the financial statements of the Caompany and entiies which 1t
controls {its subsichanies), {the ‘Group’), and are drawn up to the relevant penod end date Control is achieved where the Company
has the power to govern the financial and operating policies so as to be able to obtain benefits from its activities

The Group uses the purchase method of accounung to accourd for the acquisition of subsidharies The cost of an acquisition 15
measured as the far value of assets given, equity instruments 1ssued and labilities, Including contingent liabilities, incurred or
assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attnbutable to the acquisition Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the
far value of the identifiable net assets acquired 1s recognised as goodwill If the cost of acquisttion 15 less than the far value of the
identifiable net assets acquired, the difference ts recognised directly in the income statement

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial staterents of subsidianies to bning the accounting policies used into fing
with those used by the Group

All intra-group transactions, batances, income and expenses are eliminated in full on consoltdation

Going concern

The Group's business activities, together with the factors itkely to affect its future developments, performance and position arg set
out In the Busmess Review on pages 12 to 27 The financial position of the Group, its cash flows, iquidity position and borrowing
faciities are described in the Finance Raview on pages 16 to 19 In addition note 34 to the financtal statements ncludes the Group
objectives, policies and processes for managing its capital, its financial nsk management objectives, details of its financiat
nstruments and hedging activities, and its exposures to credit nsk, iquidity risk, nterest rate nsk and foreign exchange nsk

As highlighted in note 34 to the financial statements, the Group meets its day-to-day working capitat requirements through a
revolving credit faciity which 1s renewable n March 2012

The Group forecast and projections, taking reasonable account of possible changes in trading performance, show that the Group
should be able to operate within the level of its current facility The Group has access to additional undrawn committed facilines
together with long established contracts with a number of customers and suppliers across different geographec areas and
industries As a consequence, the Diractors believe that the Group is well placed to manage its business nisk successfully despite
the current uncertain economic outlook

After makig enquinies, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have adequate resources to
continue In operational existence for the foreseeable future Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in
prepanng the Annual Report & Accounts

Investment in subsidiary undertakings

In the Company balance sheet, investments in subsicdiary undertakings are recorded at cost less prowvision for impairment
The excess of farr value over the normal value of shares issued in consicleration for investments 1s recorded in the Company's
merger raserve
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Foreign currency translation

The individual financial statements of each Group company are presented in the currency of the primary economic environment n
which 1t operates (its funchonal currency) For the purpose of the consolidated financial statements, the results and financial
position of each Group company are expressed in pounds Sterling, which 1s the functienal currency of the Company, and the
presentation currency for the consolidated financial statements

In preparing the financial statements of the individual companies, transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional
currency {foreign currencles) are recorded at the rates of exchange prevaiing on the dates of the transactions At each balance
sheet date, monetary assets and liabrittes that are dencminated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
balance sheset date when the far value was determined Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of histoneal cost in a
forergn currency are not retranslated

Exchange differences are recognised in profit or 10ss 10 the penod n which they anse except for

* Exchange differences on transactions entered into to hedge certain foreign currency risks {see below under financial
mstruments/hedge accounting), and

* Exchange differences on monetary items recervable from or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is neither
planned nor likely to occur and which form part of the net investment in a foretgn operation, are recognised in the foreign
currency transiation reserve and recognised in profit or loss on disposal of the net investment The prncipal balances on which
these exchange differences arise are treated as quast-equity

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial staternents, the assets and hatilibes of the Group's forergn operations are
translated at exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet dateé Income and expense 1tems are translated at the average
exchange rales for the perod, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly durning that penod, in which case the exchange rates at
the date of transactions are used Exchange differences ansing, if any, are recognised In other comprehensive income and
accurnutated in equity Such translation differences are recognised as iIncome or as expenses In the penod in which the operation
18 cisposed of

Revenue recognition

Revenue 1s measured at the fair value of the consideration receved or receivable from third parties for goods and services
provided In the normal course of business, net of discounts, VAT and other sales-related taxes Revenue from the sale of goods is
recogrised when significant nsks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, determined with reference to the
spectfic contract in place

interest Income 1s accrued on a timely basis by reference to the pnncipal outstanding and the effective interest rate applicable

Taxation

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax Tax s recognised in the income statement, except to the
extent that it relates to tems recognised in other comprehensive Income or directly in equity In this case the tax 1s recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively

The tax currently payable 1s based on taxable profit for the penod Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the Income
statement because it excludes items of Income or expense that are taxable or deductible m other years and 1t further excludes
itemns that are never taxable ar deductible The Group's iability for current tax 1s calculated using tax rates and laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 1s the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and habilities
mn the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit and 1s accounted for using
the rability method Deferred tax liabdiies are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profits will be avallable aganst which deductible temporary differences
can be uthised Such assets and habilities are not recognised «f the temporary differences anse from goodwill or from the inial
recognrhion (other than in a business combiration) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit

Deferred income tax 1s provided on temporary differences ansing on investments in subsidiaries and associates and interasts in
joint veniures, except where the Group 1s able to conirol the reversal of the temporary difference and 1t 1s probable that the
termpaorary difference will not reverse mn the foreseeabls future

The carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it 1s no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits wil be avalable to aliow all or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the lrability I1s settted or the asset 1s

realised Deferred tax is charged or credited in the Income staterment, except when it relates to items charged or credited directly
to reserves, In which case the deferred tax 1s also dealt with in reserves
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Notes to the financial statements continued

For the 52 weeks ended 4 Apnl 2010 {53 weeks ended 5 April 2009)

2 significant accounting policies continued
Deferred tax assets and labilities are offset when there 1s a legally enforceable nght to set off current tax assets aganst current
habities and when they relate to Income taxes levied by the same taxation authonty and the Group intends to settle its current tax

assets and habilittes on a net basis

Property, plant and equipment [
Land and bulldings comprise factones, warehouses and offices Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less

accumulated depreciabion and any recognised impatrment 10ss, where cost Includes the oniginal purchase price of the asset and

lhe costs attnbutable to bringing the asset to its weorking condition for its intended use Depreciation 1s provided on all property,

ptant and equipment, other than freehold land, at rates calculated to write off the cost, less estimated residual value, of each asset ‘
on a straight-ine basis over the expected useful life, as follows |
Freehold and long leasehold buildings up to 50 years or period of lease, if shorter ‘
Piant and machinery up to 10 years

Fixed assets are reviewed for impairrment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the
fixed asset might not be recoverable An asset's carrying amount 1s written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset's carrying amount exceeds the higher of an asset’s farr value less cost to sell and value in use Any imparrment charge Is
recorded in the income statement

A gain or loss on disposal 1s determined by comparing the proceeds with the asset's carrying amount and 1s recogrised in the
Income statement

Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the nsks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee All other leases are classified as operating leases

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases and similar contracts, which confer nghts and obligations similar to those attached to owned
assets, are capitalised as property, plant and equipment and are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and therr
economic useful lfe Assets are recognised at their farr value or if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments, each
determmed at the inception of the lease The caprtal elements of future lease obligations are recorded as habilittes, while the
Interast elements are charged to the income statement over the period of the lease to produce a constant rate of charge on the
balance of the capital repayments outstanding

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term Lease Incentives are
recognised as a lrability and are allocated on a straight-line basis as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term

The Group as lessor
Rental ncome from operating leases which have ansen from the sublet of vacant premises 1s recognised on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease

Goodwill

Goodwill ansing on the acquisiion of subsidianes and businesses represent an excess of the cost of acquisition aver the fair value
of the net identifiable net assets acquired at the date of acquisition and 1s carned at cost less accurnulated iImparment losses
Goodwill 1s tested annually for impairment An asset's carrying amount is wntten down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset's carrying amount exceeds the higher of an asset’s far value less cost to sell and value In use Any impairment 1s recognised
immedately In profit and loss and 1s not subsequently reversed The gan or loss on the disposal of an entity includes the carrying
amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold

Goodwill s aflocated to cash-gerierating units for the purpose of impairment testing The alfocation s made to thase cash-
generaling uruts ar groups of cash-generating umits that are expected to benefit from the business combination in which the
goodwill arose identified according to operating segments

Goodwill ansing on acquisiions before the date of transition to IFRS has been retained at the previous UK GAAP amounts
Goodwill anising on acquisitions in the year ended 31 March 1998 and earlier penods has been written off to reserves and has not
been reinstated in the balance sheet and 1s not included in determining any subsequent profit or loss on disposal

Computer software
Costs associated with maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs iIncurred to acquire and use specific software

These costs are included m the balance sheet within intangible assets and are amortised over therr estimated useful lives, not
exceeding five years
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Inventones

Inverttories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost includes direct matenals, direct labour and an attributable
proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal levels of activity Net realisable value 1s based on estimated selling price,
less further costs expected to be incurred to completion and disposal Provision 1s made for obsolete, slow moving or defective
itermns where appropnate

Trade recetvables
Trade recevables are recogrised inihially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective Interest
method, less prowvision for impairrment

Trade payables
Trade payables are recognised initially at far value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method

Bank borrowings

Interest-beaning bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct Issue costs Finance charges,
Including premiums on settlement or redemption and direct issue costs, are accounted for on an accruals basis in the
consolidated income statement using the effective inlerest rate method and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to
the extent that they are not settled In the period in which they anse

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it 1s probable
that the Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amaount of the obligation
Provisions are not recogrised for future operating losses

Present obligations arising under onerous lease contracts are recognised as property provisions and measured at the present value
of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the nsks specific to the obligation The increass in the provision dus to passags of time Is recognised
as interest expense An onerous contract I1s considerad to exist where the Group has a contract under which the unavoidabig costs
of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be receved under it

A restructuring provision 1s recognised when the Group has developed a detarded formal plan for restructuring and has raised a
valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement the plan or announcing Its main
featuras to those affected by it The measurement of a restructunng prowvision ncludes only the direct expenditures ansing from
the restructunng, which are those amounts that are both necessarily entalled by the restructuring and not associated with ongoing
activities of the entity

Provisions for the expected cost of warranty obligations under local sale of goods legislation are recognised at the date of sale of
the relevant products, at the Directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to sattle the Group’s obligations

Retirement benehts
The Group has both defined benefit and defined contribution schemes

For defined benefit schemes, the retiremant benefit obhigation recogrised in the balance sheet represents the present value of the
defined benelit obligation less the farr valus of the plan assets The cost of providing benefits 1s determined using the Projected
Unit Credit Method, with actuanal valuations being carned out at each balance sheet date Actuanal gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive Income in full N the penod in which they occur As the defined banefit schemes are
now closed, no service cost Is ncurred

For defined contnbution schermes the amount charged to the income statement in the period 1s the amount of contributions
payable in the penod  The difference between contributions payable in the period and contnbutions actually paid are shown either
In accruals or prepayments i the balance sheet The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund

Government grants
Government grants towards staff re-training costs are recognised as incoms over the penods necessary to match them with the
related costs and are deducted in reporting the related expense

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are treated as deferred income and released to profit or loss over the
expected useful lives of the assats concerned

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets excluding goodwiil

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there s any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset 1s estmated In order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any) Where the asset does not generate cash
flows that are independent from other assets, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs An Intangible asset with an indefinite useful lfe 1s tested for Imparrment annually and whenaver there 1$ an
tncication that the asset may be impared
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Notes to the financial statements continued

For the 52 weeks ended 4 April 2010 (53 weeks ended 5 Apnl 2009}

2. Significant accounting policies continued

Recoverable amount i1s the higher of farr value less costs to sell and value in use In assessing value n use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to therr present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the ime
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted

If the recoverable amount of an asset {(or cash-generating unit} Is estimated to be less than iis carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset {cash-generating unit) 1s reduced {0 1ts recoverable amount An impairment loss 1s recogrised as an expense
immedtately, unless the relevant asset 15 carried at a revalued amount, In which case the imparrment 105 is treated as a
revaluation decrease

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating umi) 1S increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been deterrmined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years A
reversal of an impairment loss Is recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant asset 1s carned at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss 1s treated as a revaluation increase

Discentinued operations
In accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current assets held-for-sale and discontinued operations, the Group has separately disclosed the
results of the Winng Harness Division as discontinued following the disposal of the business completed an 3 Apnl 2009

Share-based payments

The requirements of IFRS 2 have been applied, In accordance with the transitional provisions, to all grants of equity Instruments
made after 7 November 2002 that were unvested at 1 January 2005 Equrty-settled share-based payments are 1ssued to certan
employees and are measured at fair value at the date of grant The farr value determined at the date of grant of the equity-settled
share-based payments 1s expensed to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
estimate of the number of options that will eventually vest Cash-settled share-based payments are measured at the far value at
the balance sheet date and the movement in this hiability 1s recorded in the income statement

Non-recurring items

Costs that are one-off In nature and significant, such as restructunng costs, are deemed to be non-recurring by virtue of therr
nature and size They are included under the statutory classification appropriate to ther nature but are separately disclosed on the
face of the mcome statement to assist in understanding the financial performance of the Group and the Company

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity Incremental costs directly attributable to the 1ssue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction from the proceeds, net of tax Non-equity share capital, which includes preference shares, 1s classified
within non-current hatulities

Financial instruments

Dermvative financial instruments

The Group enters nto a vanety of derivative financial Instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate and foreign exchange
nsks Further details of denvative financial instruments are disclosed in note 34 to the financial statements

Derivatives are mitially recognised at far value on the date a denvaive contract i1s entered into and are subsequently remeasured
to therr far value at each reporting date The resulting gain or loss I1s recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the dernvative
ts designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event, the timing of the recegnition in profit or loss depends on the
nature of the hedge relatonship The Group designates certain dernvatives as hedges of net investments in foreign operations

The far value of hedging derivatives 15 classified as a non-current asset or a non-current hability if the remamning matunty of the
hedge relationship 1s more than 12 months and as a current asset or a current liability if the remairang matunty of the hedge
refationship 1s less than 12 months

Derivatives not designated into an effective hedge relationship are classified as a current asset or a current hability

Hedge accounting
The Group designates certain hedging instruments, which include dervatives and non-denvatives in respect of foreign currency
risk as hedges of net Investments in foreign operations

At the inception of the hedge retationship the entity documents the relationship between the hedging instrument and hedged rtem,
along with its risk management cbjectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge transactitons Furthermore, at the
Inception of the hedge and on an ongaing basis, the Group documents whether the hedging instruments that are used in hedging
transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in farr values or cash flows of hedged items

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations

Any gain or loss on the hedging Instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge 1s recognised in the foreign currency
translation reserve, the gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion i1s recognised immediately in profit or loss
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Gains and losses deferred in the foreign currency translation reserve are recognised immediately in profit or loss when the foreign
operation 1s disposed of

Financial assets

investments are recognised and derecognised on trade date where the purchase or sale of an investment 1s under a contract
whose terms require delivery of the investment within the time frame established by the market concerned, and are initially
measured at far value, net of transaction costs except for those financial assets classified as fair value through profit or loss which
are initially measured at farr value

Subseguent to inihal recognition, nvestments in subsidianes are measured at cost

Other financial assets are classified into specified categones The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and 1s determined at ths time of initial recognition

Loans and receivables

Trade receivables, loans and other recevables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market
are classified as ‘loans and recewables' Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method less imparrment

Interest 1s recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the recognition of interest
wauld be immatenal

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for ncicators of impairment at each balance sheet date Financial assets are mpaired where there
is objective evidence that as a result of one or more events that occurred after the inhal recognition of the financial asset the
estimated future cash flows of the mvestment have been iImpacted For loans and receivables the amount of the impairment is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of astimated future cash flows, discounted at the onginal
eftective interest rate

The carrying amount of the financial asset 1s reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade recavables where the carrying amount 1s reduced through the use of an allowance account When a trade recevable is
uncollectible, it 1s wntten off against the allowance account Subsequent recovenies of amounts previously written off are credited
against the allowance account Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss

Debt and equity instruments
Debt and equity nstruments are classified as either financial labilities or as equity n accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangement

Financial habilitias
Financial labiltties are classified as aither financial liabilties ‘at fair value through profit or loss' or other financial habilities

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash on hand and demand deposits and other short-term highly iquid investments that are
readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant nsk of changes in value

Financial habifitres at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabiities at fair value through profit or loss are mitially measured at far value and subsequently stated at far value, with
any resultant gain or loss recognised in profit or loss The net gain or loss recagrised n profit or loss incorporates any interest
paid on the financial habiity

Other financial habilities
Other financial habilities are itially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs

Other financial iabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the sffective interest method, with interest expense
recognised on an effective yield basts

The effective interest method 1s a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial hability and of allocating interest expense

over the relevant penod The effective interest rate 1s the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the
expected Iife of the financial hability, or, where appropriate, a shorter penod
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2 Significant accounting policies continued

The Group’s actwities expose 1t to the financial risks of changes in foreign exchange rates The use of financial denvatives 15
governed by a Group policy approved by the Board of Directors whuch provides written principles on the use of financial
denwvatives to hedga certain risk exposures The Group does not use derwvative financial instruments for speculative purposes

In order to hedge Its expasure to certain foreign exchange risks, the Group enters into forward contracts

Cnitical Judgements and estimates 1n applying the accounting policies
in the process of applying the accounting polictes descnbed above, management has made the followtng judgements and
estimates that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements

Restructuring provisions

As at 4 Apnl 2010, the Group had restructuring provisions of £7 4 million (2008 £8 7 rmilion) relating to termenation costs,
restructunng programmes and consequential onercus lease obligations ansing from vacating leased premises The initial
determination of the size of these provisions and the subsequent timing and amount of the expenditurg in relation to these
provisions 1s inherently difficult to estimate and 1s based on best management judgemert at the time Property provisions
represent the anticipated net costs of onerous leases The provisions have been recorded taking inte account management’s best
estimate, following appropriate advice, of the anticipated net cost of the lease taking into account the remaining lease term and
the level of sub-lease rental ncome, if any, that can be obtained from sub-tenarts The provisions are regularly reviewed in hight of
the most current information avallable

Taxatron

Provisions for tax contingencies require management to make judgements and estimates in relation to tax 1ssues and exposures
Amounts provided are based on management’s interpretation of country specific tax law Tax benefits are not recognised unless
the tax positions are capable of being sustained In arnving at this position, management reviews each matenal tax benefit to
assess whether a provision should be taken against full recogmition of the benefit

Pension benefits

The present value of the pension obligations depends on a nurmber of factors that are determined on an actuanal basis using a
number of assumptions The assumptions used In determining the net cost for pensions include the discount rate Any changes in
these assumptions will iImpact the carrying amoun! of pension cbligations  The group determines the appropriate discount rate at
the end of each year This Is the interest rate that should be used to determine the present value of estimated future cash outflows
expected 1o be required to settle the pension obligations tn determining the appropnate discount rate, the group considers the
Interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency In which the benefits will be paid, and that have
terms to matunity approximating the terms of the related pension lability Other key assumptions for pension obligations are based
In part on current market conditions  Additional information 1s disclosed in note 33 to the financial statements

Deferred tax

The Group operates in a large number of different tax junsdictions Deferred tax assets and liabilities require managernent
judgement in determining the amounts to be recognised In particular, significant jJudgement 1s used when assessing the extent to
which deferred tax assets should be recognised, with consideration given to the timing and level of future taxable iIncome, time
imits on the avattability of taxable losses for carry forward and any future tax planning strategies

Inventory provisions

Inventones are carried at the lower of cost and net realiseable value, which is calculated as the estmated sales proceeds less
costs of sale Factors considered in the determination of net realiseable value are the ageing, category and condition of
inventones, recent nventory utlisation and forecasts of projected inventory utiisation Reviews of provisions held against
damaged, obsolete and slow-moving Inventory are carried out at least quarterly by management and these reviews require the
application of judgement and estmates Changes to these estimates could result In changes 1o the net valuation of inventory
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3 Segment Information
Operating segments

Following the disposal last year of the Winng Harness division and the corporate restructunng inhiatives implemented n the year,
management have changed the orgamisation structure to a market sector focus This change enables the Group to align rtself
more closely with its customers and markets, to better leverage our global custormer relationships and to maximise opportunities
for cross seling These new market sectors, namely Consumer, Telecom/Datacom, Healthcare and Industnal, are based on the

end markets that our products are supplied into

In thus, the year of transttion to market sector focus, management considers 1t useful to present its operating segment information
on both the outgoing dwvisional basis, Power Products and Interconnect, and the new market sector basis, in which future
segmental Information will be reported The segrnental information has also been amended to reflect the requirements of IFRS 8

The Chief Operating Decision Maker 1s the Board

The Group's revenue predominantly relates to the sale of goods

Former operating segments

2010 2009
Revenue £'000 £000
Continuing operations
Power Products 135,373 150,680
Interconnect 93,622 114,436
228,995 265,116
Discontinued operations
Wiring Harness - 37,704

228,995 302,820

2010 2009
Operating profit betora non-recurmng tems and share-based payments £000 £ 000
Continuing operations
Power Products 11,842 6,014
Interconnact 1,511 5,161
13,353 11,175
Non-recurnng items and share-based payments
Power Praducts {1,884) (2,619)
Interconnect 1,220) 1,889
(3,104) (4,608)
Operating profit
Power Products 9,958 3,385
Interconnect 23 3,172
10,249 6,567
Investment Income A 226
Finance costs (3,410) (3,210)
Profit before tax from continuing operations 6,910 3,583
Tax (1,631) (1,991)
Profit from continuing operations 5,279 1,592
Loss from discontinued operations (see note 8) - {20,976)
Profit/{loss) after tax and discontinued operations 5,279 (19,384)
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3. Segment Information continued

New operating segments

2010 2009
Revenus £'000 £'000
Continuing operations
Consumer 139,350 152,516
Telecoms/Datacoms 59,384 81,495
Healthcare 19,281 21,093
Industnal 10,980 10,012

228,995 265,116

Discontinued operations
Winng Harness - 37,704

228,995 302,820

2010 2009
Gross profit £'000 £'o00
Continuing operations
Congumer 30,738 23,178
Telecoms/Datacoms 8,769 14,154
Healthcare 4,166 3,412
Industnal 2,488 1,409
46,161 42,153
Unallocated overhead costs (32,808) (30,978)
Non-recurnng items and share-based payments (3,104} {4,608)
Cperating profit 10,249 6,567
Investment Income 7 226
Finance costs (3,410) (3.210)
Profit before tax from continuing operations 6,910 3,583
Tax (1,631) (1,991)
Profit from continuing operations 5,279 1,592
Loss from discontinued operations (see note 8) - (20,976)
Profit/{loss) after tax and discontinued operations 5,279 (19,384)

Overhead costs and charges for non-recurmng items and share-based payments have not been allocated to sectors as managementt
report and analyse sector profitabiity at the gross profit level and there 1s no meaningful basis for any such allocation

Information about major customers

Two of the Group's customers individually account for more than 10% of total Group revenue, with the Group’s largest customer,
operating in the wireless infrastructure sector, accounting for 11% of total Group revenue
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Power

Products interconnect Unallocated Consolidated

2010

200

2010

2010

Balance sheet £'000 £'000 £'000 £1000
Asssts

Segment assets 57,487 40,463 - 97,950
Deferred tax asset - - 268 268
Current tax asset - - 385 385
Cash and cash equivalents - - 18,220 18,220
Total assets 57,487 40,463 18,873 116,823
Liabihties

Segment labilities 42,7111 27,357 - 70,068
Bank loans and overdrafts - - 25638 25,638
Obligations under finance leases - - 153 153
Current tax labilities - - 5,402 5,402
Deferred tax hability - - 65 65
Retirement benefit obligations - - 2,386 2,386
Non-equity preference shares - - 80 80
Dervative financial instruments - - 371 37
Total habilties 42,711 27,357 34,095 104,163
Other information

Capnat additions 1,166 412 431 2,009
Depreciation and amortisation 1,523 694 75 2,292

Segment assets consist prmarily of ntangible assets, property, plant and equipment, snventories and trade and other recevables
Segment habilites consist pnmanly of trade and other payables and provisions Segment assets and liabilities are those that can

be allocated on a reasonable basis

Caprtal additions and depreciation and amortisation compnse those relating to goodwill (note 14), property, plant and equipment

{note 16) and intangible assets {note 15)

Power
Products  Interconnect  Unallocated Consolidated
2008 2009 2009 2008

Balance sheet £'000 £ 000 ¢ 000 £ 000
Assets
Segment assets 47,847 46,575 - 94,422
Deferred tax - - 692 692
Current tax asset - - 56 5%
Cash and cash equivalents - - 186,877 18,877
Total assets 47847 4B 575 17,625 112,047
Liabilities
Segment habilities 32,669 33,439 - 66,108
Bank loans and overdrafts - - 31,862 31,662
Obligations under finance leases - - 2 2
Current tax habilities - - 5,842 5,842
Retirement bengfit obligations - - 1,836 1,836
Non-equity prelerence shares - - 80 80
Derwvative financial instruments - - 248 248
Total habilities 32,660 33,439 390,670 105,778
Other information
Capital additions 1,457 628 348 2,433
Depreciation and amortisation 1,514 697 404 2,615

Segmental asset informatton 1s not provided by market sector as the Group s not able to analyse assets and llabities in detad by

market sector and this information s oot provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker
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3 Segment Information continued

Geographical information

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s sales by geographical market, based both on source and destination of the
sale Segment assets and capital expenditure are allocated on the basis of where the assets are located

External revenue External revenue
by source by destination
2010 20089 2010 2009
£'000 £1000 £'900 £ 000
Continuing operations
Asia (excluding India) 133,351 142,190 113,003 110,260
Incia 22,209 31,692 22222 30,219
Amencas 49,170 52,889 51,286 60,587
Europe (iIncluding UK} 24,265 38,345 42484 64,050

228,995 265,116 228,995 265,116
Discontinued operations

Asma {excluding India) - 8,334 - 48
Indra - - - -
Amercas - - - 7
Europe {including UK) - 29,370 - 3765

- 37,704 - 37,704

228,995 302,820 228,995 302,820

Segment assets Capital expenditure

2010 2009 2010 2009

£'000 £ 000 £000 £000
Asia {excluding india) 49,230 40,647 1,394 1,687
Incia 9,155 13,490 76 45
Americas 19,765 20,405 68 193
Europe {including UK} 19,800 19,880 471 508

97,950 94,422 2,009 2,433

4, Non-recurring items

Group
2010 2009
£'000 £ 000
Continuing operations
Corporate restructuring 2,154 720
Facilities rationalisation 941 -
Provision for onerous lease arsing on disposal of discontinued operations - 3,000
Aborted disposal costs - 1,020
Restructuning costs 3,095 4,740
Discontinued operations
Restructunng programme - 2,628
3,095 7,368

Continuing operations

Corporate restructuring

As part of the corporate restructunng programme commenced last year, the Group relocated its corporate headquarters (HQ')
from Warrington to London Cosis associated with this HQ reloccation include £1,233,000 of redundancy, recrutment and office
set-up costs and £905,000 relating to an onerous lease provision established on exiting the Warrington premises The provision
represents management's best estimate, following appropnate advice, of the anticipated net cost of the lease taking into account
the remaining lease term and the leve! of sub-lease rental income, If any, that can be obtained from sub-tenants

During the year the Group successfully completed an agreement to sub-lease one of its vacant premises in the UK Management
have revised the required onerous lease provision accordingly, to reflect the cornmercial terms of the sub-lease agreament,
resutting in a partial write-back of the provision of £439,000, which is included above

Also mncluded n corporate restructuning costs above are additional disposal costs of £455,000 in respect of the conclusion of all
outstanding 1ssues arnising frorn the disposal of the Wining Harness business in the prior year

Costs of £720,000 in the pnor period include an estimate of the compensation for loss of office payable to the former CEC of the
Group, who left the Group on 9 March 2009
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Faciities rationalisation

In response to a strategic review of business operations the Board initiated a rationalisation programime to akgn the Group's

manufactunng capacity and support facilites more closely with its customer base and market environment Costs associated with

this rationalisation programme relate primanly to redundancy and severance costs

Prowsion for onerous lease arising on disposal of discontinued operations
In the prior year the Group completed the disposal of its Winng Harness Division As part of the conditions pertaning to the

disposal the Group retains the liability for the lease of the Winng Harness premises in the UK until 2020 and as a consequence
reflected a provision for the resulting onerous lease The provision represents management’s best estimate, following appropriate

adwvice, of the anticipated net cost of the lease taking into account the remaining lease term and the lavel of sub-lease rental
income, If any, that can be obtained from sub-tenants

Aborted disposal costs

Costs of £1,020,000 were incurred last year i relation to the Board's investigation into the potential for realising value from a
possible sale or flotation of its Power Products busingss The Board announced on 9 February 2009 that it had terminated the

divestment process

The taxation effect of the above charges in the year was Cril (2009 Lnul)

Discontinued operations
Pre-disposal restructuring programme

Prior to completing the disposal of the Wiring Harness Division the Group implementad a substantial redundancy programme to
reduce the cost base of the division, In response to continued trading losses Costs incurred in the year to 5 Apnil 2009 relating to

this programme amounted to £1,278,000

In addition, as part of the disposal of the Winng Harness Division, the Group recogn:sed a further exceptional charge of

£1,350,000, following the acquirer's decision to terminate a supply agreement for wirng harness products manufactured in China
This amount comprised redundancy costs of £350,000 and asset impairment charges of £750,000 in respect of inventory and

£250,000 in respect of fixed assets

5 Investment income

Group

2010 2009

£'000 £ 000
Interest on bank deposits 71 226
Allinvestment ncome was dernved from continuing operations
No gains or losses have been recogrised on financial habilities measured at amortised cost
6. Finance costs

Group
2010 2009
Notes £'000 £ 000
Interest on bank overdrafts and loans 20 2,153 2,230
interest on pension scheme labilities 33 719 775
Return on pension assets 33 (536) {737)
Farr value loss on nterest rate swap contracts 34 156 215
Unwinding of discount on long-term provisions 24 281 184
Other 15 23
Total interest costs 2,788 2,680
Amaortisation of debt rssue costs 28 622 520
Total finance costs 3,410 3,210
All finance costs relate to continuing operations
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7. Profit/{loss) for the year
Profit/loss) for the year has been arnved at after charging/(crediting)

Continuing Discontinued
operations operations Tota)
2010 2009 2010 2000 2010 2009
Group £'000 £000 £'000 £ 000 £'000 £ 000
Raw matenals 144,484 181,123 - 26,209 144,484 207332
Met foreign exchange (gaing)/losses (170} 2,31 - 356 (170) 2,667
Research and development costs 1,658 1,656 - - 1,658 1,656
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 2,200 2,213 - 362 2,200 2,575
Impairment of property, plant and equipment - - - 250 - 250
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 92 27 - 15 92 42
Wnite down of inventortes recognised as an expense 1,684 1,427 - 750 1,684 2177
Staff costs {see note 10) 39,546 37,590 - 10,670 39,546 48,260
Imparment loss recognised on trade receivables 134 267 - a8 134 365
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 6 18 - - 6 18

Reconcihation of operating profit to EBITDA (earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation)*

Continuing Operations

2010 2009
Group £'000 £'000
Operating profit 10,249 6,567
Add back
Non-recurnng items 3,095 4,740
Share-based payment charge/{credit) 9 (132)
Operating profit before non-recurring items and share-based payments 13,353 11,175
Deprecration of property, plant and equipment 2,200 2,213
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 92 27
EBITDA* 15,645 13,415
EBITDA definad as operating profit before non-recurning items share-based payment charge/credit, dapreciation and amortisation
8. Discontinued operations
In the pnior year the Group disposed of the Winng Harness Diviston
The resulis of the discontinued operations, which have been included in the consolidated income statement, were as follows
Group Company
2010 2009 2010 20090
£'000 £000 £'000 £000
Revenue - 37,704 - 37,204
Expenses - {(44,408) - (39,152)
Loss before tax - (6,704) - (1,948)
Attributable tax expenses - 101 - -
- (6,603} - {1,948)
Loss on disposal of discontinued operations - (14,373) - (18,516}
- (20,976) - (21.464)
Attributable tax expenses - - -
Net loss attributable to discontinued operations - {20,976) - (21,464}

During the prior year, the Winng Harness Division consumed £3 2m of the Group’s net operating cash flows and paid £0 2mn

respect of Investing activities

Aloss of £14 4m arose on the disposal of the Winng Harness Division, being the proceeds of disposal less the carrying amount of
the division's net attnbutable assets, see note 30 on page 82 No gocdwill was attributable to the disposal

The effect of discontinued operations on segment results Is disclosed in note 3
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9. Auditors’ remuneration
The analysis of auditors’ remuneration 1s as follows

2010 2009
£'000 £ 000

Fees payable to the Company's auditors for the audit of the Company's annual financial statements 180 110
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors and their associates for other services to the Group

~ the audit of the Company's subsidianes pursuant to legisliation 226 336
Total audit fees 406 446
Other services pursuant te legislation
Tax services 18 313
Other services 68 -
Corporate finance services - 115
Total non-audit fees 86 428
Fees payable to the Company's auditors and ther associates in respect of the audit of associated

pension schemes - 10

A descrption of the work of the Audit Committee is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on page 36 and includes an
explanation of how auditor objectivity and independence 1s safeguarded when the auditors provide non-audit services

10. Staff costs
The average monthly number of employees (including Executive Directors) was

Group Comparty
2010 2009 2010 2000
No No Ne No
Production 5,307 5,768 - 128
Sales and distribution 367 253 3 19
Administration 1,120 1,617 30 a1
6,794 7,638 33 238

Therr aggregate remuneration compnsed

Group Company
2010 2009 2010 200%
£000 £ 000 £'000 £ 000
Wages and salaries 35,106 42,821 3,490 7,625
Social security costs 2,994 3,982 375 689
Other pension costs (see note 33) 1,446 1,457 308 340

39,546 48,260 4,173 8,654

Details of Directors’ remuneration, share options, pension contnbutions, pension entitlements, fees for consulting services and
Interests for the year required by the Companies Act 2006 are provided In the audited part of the Directors' Remuneration Report
on pages 43 to 45 and form part of the financial statements

11. Taxation

Continuing Discontinued
operations cperations Total
2010 2000 2010 2009 2010 2000
Group £000 £ 000 £'000 £ 000 £000 £000
Current tax — charge for the penod 2,972 2,685 - - 2,972 2,685
Current tax — adjustment in respect of previous periods (1,801) (205} - - {1,801) (205)
Total current tax 1,171 2,480 - - 1,171 2,480
Deferred tax {note 23) 460 {489) - (101) 460 (590)
Income tax expense 1,631 1,991 - (101} 1,631 1,890

UK corporation tax 1s calculated at 28% (2009 28%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year Taxation for other junsdictions
15 calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective junsdictions
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11 Taxation continued
The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit/loss) per the ncome statement as follows

2010 2010 20089 2009

Group £'000 % £ Q00 %
Profit on ordinary activities before tax
Continuing operations 6,910 3,583
Discontinued operations - {6,704)
Loss on disposal - {(14,373)
Profit/{toss) before tax 6,910 100 (17,494) 100
Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 28% (2009 28%) 1,935 28 (4,898} 28
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible and income that is not taxable

in determining taxable profit 1,466 21 4,325 (25}
Tax effect of non-utlisation of tax losses 848 12 3,159 (18}
Tax effect of adjustments in respect of previous penods (1,493) (21) (256) 1
Effect of different tax rates of subsidianes operating in other junsdictions (631) (9) (649) 4
Tax effect of unrecaognised deferred tax 151 2 829 {5}
Tax effect of loss utiisation (645) (9) {620 4
Tax expense and effective tax rate for the year 1,631 24 1,890 (11)

12. Dmidends
The Dwectors do not recommend a dividend on the Ordinary shares for the period (2009 £nil}

13 Earmings per Ordinary share
From continuing and discontinued operations
The calculations of the earnings per share are based on the following data

2010 2009
Earnings Notas £'000 £ 00¢
Profit/(loss) for the purpose of basic earnings/{loss) per share being net loss
attributable to equity helders of the parent 5,279 (19,384)
Adjustments for
Non-recurnng items 4 3,095 7,368
Share-based payments charge/{credit) 32 9 (132)
Loss on disposal of discontinued operations - 14,373
Adjusted earnings 8,383 2,225
No shares Mo shares
Weghted average number of Ordinary shares for the purpose of basis earnings per share 56,821,563 56,821,563
Effect of ditutive potential Ordinary shares — share options 958,703 45,579
Weighted average number of Ordinary shares for the purpose of diluted earnings per share 57,780,266 56,867,142
2010 2009
Basic earnings/{loss) per share pence pence
Basic earmngs/(loss} per share 9.3 (341)
Adjustments for
Non-recurring items 55 130
Share-based payments charge/(credit) - {02)
Loss on disposal of discoentinued operations - 252
Adjusted basic earnings per share 148 39
2010 2009
Diluted earnings/{loss) per share pence pence
Diluted eamings/{loss) per share g1 (34 1)
Adjustments for
Non-recurring items 54 130
Share-based payments charge/{credit) - 02)
Loss on disposal of discontinued operations - 252
Adjusted diluted earnngs per share 145 39

The adjusted earnings per share has been calculated on the basis of continuing activities before non-recurring items, share-based
payments and loss on disposal of discontinued operations, net of tax The Directors consider that this earnings per share

calculation gives a better understanding of the Group's eamings per share in the current and prior penod
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Earnings per share from continuing operations

2010 2009
Eamings Notes £'000 €600
Earnings/{loss) for the purpose of basic earnings/{loss) per share being net loss
attnbutable to equity holders of the parent 5,279 (19,384)
Adjustments to exclude loss for the period from discontinued operations - 20976
Earmings from continuing operations for the purpose of basic earnings per share 5,279 1,692
Adjustments for
Non-recumng items 4 3,095 4,740
Share-based payments charge/(credit) 32 9 {132)
Earnings from continuing operations for the purpose of adjusted earnings per share 8,383 6,200

The denominators (numbers of shares) are the same, for both basic and diluted earnings per share, as those used in the
calculation of EPS from continuing and discontinued cperations

2010 2009
Basic earnings per share Pence Penca
Basic earnings per share from continuing operations 9.3 28
Adjustments for
Non-recurnng items 5.5 83
Share-based payments charge/{credit) - 023
Adjusted basic earnings per share 148 109
2010 2009
Diluted earnings per share pence pence
Diuted earmings per share from continuing operations 91 28
Adjustments for
Non-recurnng items 54 83
Share-based payments charge/(credit) - 02
Adjusted diluted earnings per share 14.5 109
2010 2008
Loss per share from discontinued operations Pence Pence
Basic and diluted loss per share from discontinued operations - (36 9)
14. Goodwill
2010 2009
£'000 £000
Cost
At beginning and end of the penod 3,798 3,798
Accumulated impairment losses
At beginning and end of the pertod 1,868 1,868
Carrying amount at the beginning and end of the period 1,930 1,930

Goodwill acquired In a business combination 1s allocated, at acquisition, to the business units that are expected to benefit from
that business combination After recognition of impairment losses, the carrying amount of goodwill had been allocated as follows

2010 2009

£'000 £ 000

Power Products 1,495 1,495
Interconnect 435 435
1,930 1,830

As stated in note 3, the Group has changed its orgarisation structure during the year to a market sector focus Although the
Group Is not able to analyse goodwill in detall by market sector, the majonity of goodwill relates to the Consumer sector, with the
balance pertaining to other sectors bemng immatenal

The Group annually tests goodwill for impairment, or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be imparred
The recoverable amount of goodwill 1s determmed from value in use calculations The key assumplions used in the value In use
calculations are those regarding the discount rates, revenue and costs growth rates and the level of capital expenditure required
during the pencd The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derved from the most recently approved three-year forecasts of the
relevant businesses The cash flow forecasts reflect the risk associated with each asset Cash flows for years beyond 2013 are
extrapolated using a growth rate of 3%, which does not exceed the average long-term growth rates for the relevant markets,
and a pre-tax discount rate of 10% {2009 10%), which reflects the Group's estimated cost of capital
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15 Other intangible assets

Group Company

2010 2009 2010 2009
Software and ucences 2000 € 000 £'000 ¢ 000
Cost
At beginning of year 995 601 219 124
Additions 237 418 238 181
Disposals - (107) - -
Disposal ansing from sale of Wiring Harness Division - (89 - (86)
Reclassification (204) - - -
Exchange differences @ 172 - -
At end of the year 1,021 995 457 219
Accumulated amortisation
At beginning of year 429 340 42 50
Amortisatiron charge for the year 92 42 58 38
Disposals - (30} - -
Disposal ansing from sale of Winng Hamess Division - (47 - (46}
Reclassification (140) - - -
Exchange differences {18) 124 - -
At end of the year 363 429 100 42
Carrying amount 658 566 357 177

Computer software 1s amortised over the estimated useful life, not exceeding five years .

16 Property, plant and equipment
Land and buldings

Long Plant and

Freehold leasehold  machinary Total
Group £'000 £ 000 £'00D £'000
Cost
At 30 March 2008 37 2,497 25728 28,262
Additions - 121 1,895 2,016
Reclassification - (2) {574) (576)
Disposals - (276) (2,438 (2,714}
Disposals ansing from sale of Winng Harnass Division - B801) (4,188 (4.990)
Exchange differences 13 1,228 5,462 6,703
At 5 Aprl 2009 50 2,767 25,884 28,701
Additions - - 1,772 1,772
Reclassiication - (959) {700) {795)
Disposals {46) - (488) {534)
Exchange differences 4) (95) (559) (658)
At 4 Apni 2010 - 2,577 25,909 28,486
Accumulated deprectation and impairment
At 30 March 2008 - 1,506 18,972 20,478
Depreciation charge for the period - 400 2,175 2,575
Impairment loss - - 250 250
Reclassification - - (571) {571)
Disposals - (362) (2,128) (2,490)
Disposals anising from sale of Winng Harness Division - @73 (3.844) (4117)
Exchange differences - 707 3,829 4,536
At 5 April 2009 - 1,778 18,883 20,661
Depreciatton charge for the penod - 187 2,013 2,200
Reclassification - {61) {797) (858)
Disposals - (455) (455)

Exchange differences (52) (511) (563)

At 4 Apnl 2010

1,852 19,133 20,985

Carrying amount
At 4 Apnl 2010 725 6,776 7,501
At 5 April 2009 50 989 7,001 8,040
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The carrying amount of the Group's fixtures and equipment includes an amount of 2153,000 (2009 £2,000) in respect of assets
held under finance leases At 4 Apnl 2010, the Group had entered intc contractual commitments for the acquisition of property,

plant and equipment amounting to £nil (2009 £nil)

Land and
buildings

Long Plant and
Inasehold machinery

Total

Company £ 000 £000 £ 000
Cost

At 30 March 2008 798 3,990 4,788
Additions - 11 11

Disposals ansing from sale of Winng Harness Division (798) (3.420} (4,218}
Exchange differences - 201 201

At 5 April 2009 - 782 782

Additions - 196 196
Disposals - {202) {202)
Exchange differences - (16) {16)
At 4 Apnil 2010 - 760 760
Accumulated depreciation and impairment

At 30 March 2008 440 3,489 3,939
Depreciation charge for the pernod - 196 196
Disposals ansing from sale of Winng Harness Division 440y  (3.120) (3,560)
Exchange differences - 192 192
At 5 April 2009 - 767 767
Depreciation charge for the penod - 19 19
Disposals - (202) (202)
Exchange differences - (16} (16)
At 4 Apnl 2010 - 568 568
Carrying amount

At 4 Apnl 2010 - 192 192
AL S April 2009 - 15 15

The carrying amount of the Company's fixtures and equipment includes an amount of £153,000 (2008 £nil) in respect of assets
held under finance leases At 4 April 2010, the Company had entered into contractual commitments for the acquisitton of property,

plant and equipment amounting to £nil (2009 £nil)
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17. Investments
The Company’s fixed asset investments comprise investments in wholly-owned subsidiary undertakings and permanent loans

as follows

Shares Loans Total
£ 000 £000 £ 000

Cost
Al 30 March 2008 34,318 51,897 86,215
Addrtions - 1,276 1,276
Drsposals (100}  (3,154)  (3,254)
Exchange differences - 16,547 16,547
At 5 April 2009 34,218 66,566 100,784
Repaid - (405) (405)
Exchange differences - (1,144) (1,144)
At 4 Apnl 2010 34,218 65,017 99,235
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At 30 March 2008 (3,642) {4,462) (8,104)
Exchange differences - (307) {307)
At 5 April 2009 (3.642) (4,769) (8,411)
Repaid - 405 405
Exchange differences - {561} {561)
At 4 Apnil 2010 (3,642) (4,925} (8,567)
Carrying amount
At 4 Apnl 2010 30,576 60,092 90,668
At 5 Apnl 2009 30576 61,797 92,373

In the United Kingdom, Volex Group plc includes an operational division, Volex Powercords Europe Details of the Company's

principal subsidiary undertakings are set out on page 80

18. Inventones

Group Company
2010 2000 2010 2000
£'000 £ 000 £'000 £000
Raw materials 11,701 10,729 6 16
Work-in-progress 1,099 1,489 - -
Finshed goods 14,702 11,7 3,841 3.448
27,502 24,135 3,847 3,464
19 Other financial assets
Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
Trade and other recevables £'000 £ 000 £000 £'000
Due for settiement within 12 months
Amounts receivable for the sale of goods 51,992 52,090 3,335 4,045
Allowance for doubtful debts (618) (575) (66) (69)
51,374 51,515 3,269 3,976
Amounts due from Group undertakings - - 49,894 42672
Other debtors 6,592 7,354 1,083 54
Prepayments 2,180 882 130 28
60,146 59,751 54,376 46,730
Group Compary
2010 2009 2010 2009
£'000 £ 000 £'000 £000
Due for settlement after 12 months
Cther debtors 200 - 200 -
Prepayments 13 - - _
213 - 200 -
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The average credit penod taken on sales of goods 1s 83 days (2009 77 days) An allowance has been made for estimated
irrecoverable amounts from the sale of goods This allowance has been determined by reference to past default expenence

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates their fair value

Credit nsk
The Group's principal financial assets are bank balances and cash, trade and other recewvables

Bank and cash balances compnse cash held by the Group and short-term bank deposits with an onginal maturity of three months
or less The carrying amount of these assets approximates therr fair valug The Group's credit nsk 1s pnmanly attnbutable to its
trade recaevables Two of the Group’s custormers indvidually account for more than 10% of total Group revenue, with the Group's
largest customer, operating in the wirgless infrastructure sector, accounting for 11% of total Group revenue  Other than these two
customers the Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large number of counterparties

and customers Further information can be found in the Business Review on page 28

Included in trade recevables are recewvables with a carrying value of £7,511,000 (2009 £6,951,000) and £823,000 (2009
£1,231,000) for the Group and Company respectively which are past due at the reporting date for which no provision has been
made as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the amounts are still considerad recoverable The Group and

Company does not hold any collateral over these balances

Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
Ageing of past due but not impared recevables £'000 £ 000 £'g00 £ 000
0-60 days 6,957 6,350 739 1,177
60-90 days 356 207 21 -
90-120 days 139 270 53 -
120+ days 59 124 10 54
7,511 6,951 823 1,231
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
£'000 £ 00D £'000 £ 000
Balance at beginning of the year 575 326 69 121
Amounts written off during the year (21) (206} - (188}
Amounts recovered during the year (57) - 3 -
Increase in allowance recognised In Income statement 134 365 - 136
Exchange differences (13) g0 - -
Balance at end of the year 618 575 66 69

in determiring the recaverabilty of the trade receivables, the Group considers any change in the credit quality of the trade
receivables from the date credit was initially granted up to the reporting date The concentration of credit nisk s imited due to the
customer base being large and unretated Accordingly, the Directors believe that there is no further credit provision required In

excess of the allowance for doubtfu! debts

Agewng of impaired trade receivables

Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
£'000 £ 000 £'000 £0c0
0-60 days 55 336 - -
60-90 days 45 5 - -
90-120 days 62 24 53 17
120+ days 456 210 13 52
618 575 66 69
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19, Other financial assets continued
The Dwrectors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other recevables approximates therr far value

Cash and cash equivalents

Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
£'000 2000 £'000 £ 000
Cash and cash equivalents 17,938 16,877 3,049 1,458

Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash held by the Group, short-term bank deposits with an onginal matunty of three months
or less and bank overdrafts The carrying amount of these assets approximates therr fair value

20. Borrowings

Group Company
2010 2008 2010 2009
£°000 £ 000 £000 £ 000
Secured borrowings at amortised cost
Bank loans 25,356 31,662 13,314 19,379
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 25,356 31,662 13,314 18,379

Drawings under the faciities can be made in various currencies Borrowings for the Group can be analysed by currency as follows

2010 2009

Bank loans  Bank loans

Group £'000 £ 000
US Dollar 14,305 20,831
Euro 12,042 12,313
26,347 33,144

Less debtissue costs (991) {1,482

25,356 31,662

Also drawn under the factities, and not included above, are bonds, guarantees and letters of credit amounting to £3 7m
{2009 £4 2m)

The Group’s pnncipal funding 1s provided via & mulhi-currency combined revolving, overdraft and guaraniee facility The faciity
commenced on 8 December 2006 and was extended in March 2009 for a further three years to March 2012 The amount
available under the faciity at 4 Apnl 2010 was US$57 7m (2009 US$62 7m) Under terms of the restated facility the amount
avallable will be reduced by a minimum, depending an the level of surplus funds avalable, of US$2  m for each financial quarter,
commencing with the quarter ended 31 March 2010 The facility 1s secured by fixed and floating charges over the assets of certan
Group companies At 4 Apnl 2010, the facility incurred interest at a margin of 3 25% (2008 4 00%) above LIBOR

The weighted average interest rates paid dunng the period were as follows

2010 2009
% %
Bank loans and overdrafts 59 59

Undrawn borrowing facthties
At 4 April 2010, the Group had avalable £14,007,000 (2002 £11,424,000) of undrawn committed borrowing facilities

21, Obligatrons under finance leases
Prasent value of minimum

Mintmum lease payments leasa payments
2010 2009 2010 2009
Group £°000 £000 £'000 £ 000
Amounts payable under finance leases
Within one year 72 2 64 2
In second and third years 100 - 89 -
172 2 153 2
Less future finance charges (19) -
Present value of lease obligations 153 2
Less amount due for settlement within 12 months (64) (2) (64) 2
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 89 - 89 -
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Present value of mirimum

Minimurn lease payments lease payments
2010 2008 2010 2009
Company £:000 £ 000 £'000 £000
Amounts payable under finance leases
Within one year 72 - 64 -
In second and third years 100 - 89 -
172 - 153 -
Less future finance charges {(19) -
Present value of lease obligations 153 -
Less amount due for settlement within 12 months (64) - (64) -
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 89 - 89 -

it1s the Group's policy o lease certain of its plant and machinery under finance leases The average lease term s three years For
the current pericd the average effective borrowing rate was 4 1% {2009 6 0%) Interest rates are fixed at the contract date All

leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental payments The farr value
of the Group's lease obligations approximates therr carrying amount The Group's obhgations under finance leases are secured by

the lessors’ nghts over the leased assets

The Group's lease obligations are denominated in the following currencies

2010 2009
£'000 £ 000
Sterling 153 -
S Dallar - 2
22. Trade and other payables
Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
£'000 £ 000 £'000 £ 000
Due for settlement within 12 months
Trade creditors 45,173 41,957 1,098 650
Amounts owed to Group undertakings - - 65,580 47481
Other taxes and social secunty 2,492 911 317 -
Accruals and deferred income 14,284 13,464 2,309 5,166
61,949 56,332 69,313 53,297
Due for settlement after 12 months
Amaounts owed to Group undertakings - - 47618 48,351
Accruals - 631 - 631
- 631 47,618 48,982

Trads payables and accruals pringipally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and cngoing costs The average
credit penod taken for frade purchases 1s 79 days (2009 77 days) The Group has financial nsk policies in place to ensure that all

payables are paid within the credit time frame

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates to ther farr value
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23 Deferred tax
Group
The following are the major deferred tax hatnlities and (assets) recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the current
and prior reporting penod
Accelerated  Other short-

Trading tax  term tming

losses depreciation  differences Total

£000 £ 000 £ 000 £000
At 30 March 2008 - (67) (127) (194)
Credit to iIncome - (70} {520) {590
Disposal - - 184 184
Exchange differences - (41} {51) {82)
At 5 April 2009 - (178} {514) (692)
Charge/(credtt) to mcome (117) 126 451 460
Exchange differences - 14 15 29
At 4 Apnil 2010 {117) (38) {48) (203)

Certan deferred tax assets and habilties have been offset The following 1s the analysis of the deferred tax balances {after offset)
for financial reporting purposes

2010 2003

£'000 £000
Deferred tax rabiities 65 -
Deferred tax assets (268) {692)

(203) {692}

At the balance sheet dats, the Group had unused tax losses of £54 million (2009 £46 milion) available for offset against future
profits The group has recognised £0 1m of deferred tax asset in respect of these unused tax losses, following the initiation,
shortly after the year end, of a globaf supply chain optimisation project The Group expects to increase the recognition of
deferred tax assets relating to tax losses over the next few years as the benefits anticipated from the global supply chain
project accrue with greater certainty Included in unrecognised tax losses are josses of £22 milkon {2009 £19 milhen) that
cannot be carned forward indefinitely Of this amount, £0 5m (2009 €nil) expires dunng the next five accounting penods
Other losses may be carned forward indefinitely

At the balance sheet date, no deferred tax labtlity 1s recognised on temporary differences of £14 mullion {2009 £78 million)
relating to the unremitted earnings of overseas subsicharies as the Group 1s able to control the tming of the reversal of these
temporary differences and it 1s proballe that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future Temporary differences at 4 April
2010 ars significantly reduced from the previous year as a result of a change to UK tax legislation which largely exempts
overseas dividends recewed on or after 1 July 2009 from UK tax The temporary differences at 4 Apnl 2010 represent only the
unremitted earnings of those overseas subsidiaries where remittance to the UK of those earnings may still result in a tax hability,
principally as a result of dvidend withholding taxes levied by the overseas tax junsdichons in which these subsidanes operate

Company

At the balance sheet date, the Company had unused tax losses of £18 milhon {2009 £15 million) avallable for offset aganst
future profits The Company has recognised £0 1m of deferred tax asset in respect of these unused tax losses, following the
initiation, shortly after the year end, of a global supply chain optimisation project The Company expects to increase the
recognition of deferred tax assets relating to tax losses over the next few years as the benefits anticipated from the global
supply chain project accrue with greater certainty The losses may be carned forward indefintely
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24, Provisions

Restructuning provisions
Comorate
Proparty restructuning Other Total
Group £600 £ 000 £ 000 £000
At 5 April 2009 7.371 1,370 390 9,131
Charge in the year 560 385 322 1,267
Utihsahion of provision (1.681) (1,037) (118) (2,836)
Unwinding of discount (note 6) 281 - - 281
Transfers 403 {161) 18 260
Exchange differences {130) 54 92 16
At 4 Apnl 2010 6,804 611 704 8,119
Less included in current hiabilities 4,055
Non-current liabilities 4,064
Restructuring provisions
Gorporate
Property restructuring Total
Company £ 000 £ 000 £'000
At 5 April 2009 4,865 720 5,585
Charge in the year 876 115 991
Utilisation of provision {1,522) (399) (1,921)
Unwinding of discount 188 - 188
Transfers 58 149 207
At 4 Aprnil 2010 4,465 585 5,050
Less mcluded in current lrabilities 1,882
Non-current abilities 3,168

Property provisions

Property provisions represent the anticipated net costs of onerous leases The provisions hava been recorded taking into account
management'’s best estimate, following appropriate advice, of the anticipated net cost of the lease taking into account the
remarmning lease term and the level of sub-lease rental income, If any, that can be obtained from sub-tenarts This provisicn will be
utiised as the rentat payments, net of any sub-lease income, fall due through to 2020

As referred to in note 4, the Group relocated its corporate headquarters (HQ) from Warnngton to London durnng the year and has
recognised a prowvision for £905,000 for the resulting onerous lease

Curing the year the Group successfully completed an agreement to sub-lease one of its vacant premises i the UK Management
have revised the required onerous lease provision accordingly, to reflect the commercial terms of the sub-lease agreement

Corporate restructuring

Following the disposal of the Wiring Harness Dimsion last year, the Board initiated a review of the corporate management
structure This review has been completed during the year, with the establishment of a new corporate HQ and the appointment of
a new, experienced management team The provision remaining at 4 Apnl 2010 of £611,000 includes an amount relating to
compensation for loss of office payable to the former CEQ of the Group, who left the Group on 9 March 2009 The Company has
been advised that the amount provided s adequate, should it be unsuccessful In defending the claims made by the former CEQ,
which are scheduled to be heard at an Employment Tnbunat in Juty 2010
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25. Share capital

2010 2009
£'000 £ 000
Authonised
75,000,000 (2009 75,000,000) Ordinary shares of 25p each 18,750 18,750
Issued and fully paid
56,821,563 (2009 56,821,563} Ordinary shares of 25p each 14,205 14,205

Under the terms of the Group's various share option schemes, the following options to subscnbe for Ordinary shares

are outstanding
Number of shares

Opton price

Date of grant ()] Exercisa period 2010 2009

Discretionary Share Option Schemes

3 July 2000 1,4750 July 2003 — July 2010 13,500 17,500

18 June 2001 7880 June 2004 - June 2011 13,500 18,500

20 June 2003 870 June 2006 — June 2013 45,000 60,000

Long-Term Incentive Plan

Performance Shares

29 September 2006 250 Sept 2009 — Mar 2010 - 482 652

13 November 2006 250 Nov 2008 - May 2010 - 49,788

15 June 2007 250 Jun 2010 - Dec 2010 140,736 171,736

9 July 2008 250 July 2011 - Jan 2012 591,646 651,646

Matching Shares

9 Novermber 2006 250 Nov 2009 - May 2010 - 493,726

Performance Share Plan

7 September 2009 250 Sept 2012 - Mar 2013 1,407,945 -

3 November 2009 250 Nov 2012 — May 2013 90,000 -

11 January 2010 250 Jan 2013 - July 2013 90,000 -
2,392,327 1,845,548

For further details of the Group's share option schermes see note 32

26. Non-equity preference shares

The Company has authorised and 1ssued 80,000 cumulative preference shares of £1 each with the rights to a fixed cumulative
preference diidend payable, at the rate of 7% per annum, on the amount paid up or credited as paid up thereon on 31 March and
30 September In each year but not te any further participation in the profits of the Company The preference shares confer the
right on a winding up to have the capital pad or credited as paid up, iIncluding all arrears of dividend whether declared or not up to
the commencement of the winding up, paid n priority to any payment of capital on the Ordinary shares but without any further
right to participate In profits or assets Thera ts no fixed repayment date

Since the dvidends are in arrears for more than three months, the preference shares currently confer on the holders the nght to
have notice and to attend and vote, either in person or by proxy, at any General Meeting

These preference shares are recarded as non-current liabilities

27. Non-distnibutable reserve

On 12 October 2005, the cancellation of the Company's share premium was approved and the balance of £32m on the share
premium account at that date was utilised to eliminate the deficit on the Company's retaned earnings account Ag a condition
of this cancellation, the Company has estabdished a non-distnbutable 'special reserve’ within retained earnings At 4 Apni 2010,
the balance on this special reserve was £18 1m (2009 £18 1m)

Group retained earnings include a non-distnbutable reserve in subsidiary companies of £3 Om (2009 £3 0m)
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28. Analysis of net debt

Exchange  Other non-

5 Apnl 2009 Cashflow  movement cashchanges 4 April 2010
Group £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £'000
Cash & cash equivalents 16,877 669 392 - 17,938
Bank foans (33.144) 5,994 803 - (26,347)
Finance leases (2 2 - (153) (153)
Debt 1ssug costs 1,482 131 (622) 991
Net debt (14,787) 6,796 1,195 (775) (7,571)

Debt 1ssue costs relate to bank faciity arrangement fees Amortisation of debt 1ssue costs in the year amounted to £622,000

(2009 £520,000)

29 Notes to the cash flow statement

Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
£000 £ 000 £'000 £ 000
Profit/{loss) for the period 5,279 {19,384) 533 (14,427)
Adjustments for
Investment revenug (71) {226) (1,947) (10,707)
Finance costs 3,410 3,210 1,980 ,280
Income tax expense 1,631 1,890 31 325
Loss on disposal of discontinued operations - 14,373 - 19,516
Deprecratton on property, plant and equipment 2,200 2,575 18 196
impairment on property, plant and equipment - 250 - -
Amortisation of intangible assets 92 42 57 38
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 6 18 - -
Share option charge/{credi) 9 {132} g (132)
Effects of foreign exchange rate changes - - (208) (12,791)
{Decrease)/Increase In provisions {1,301) 929 (598) 3,041
Gperating cash flow before movement in working capital 11,255 3,545 185 (12,661)
(Increase)/decrease In inventories (3,354) 12,660 {459} 3,485
(Increase)/decrease In recevables (523} 10,709 (6,643} (14,825)
Increasef{decrease) in payables 8,528 (9,662) 18,920 25212
Movement in working capital 4,651 13,707 11,818 13,872
Cash generated from operations 15,906 17,262 11,973 1,211
Cash generated by operations before non-recurmnng items 18,561 21,784 13,542 3,622
Cash utiised by non-recurring items {2,655} (4,532) (1,569) (2,411}
Taxation paid {1,840} (1,622} - {262)
interest paid (2,198) (2.271) {1,383) (1,432)
Net cash generated from/(used 1n) operating activities 11,868 13,359 10,590 (483)
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30. Disposal of Wiring Harness Division
As referred to in note 8, in the prior year the Group disposed of the Winng Harness Dmvision, on 3 April 2009

The net assets of the Wirtng Harness Division at the date of disposal were as follows
Group Company
3Apnl 2009 3 Aprnl 2009

£ 000 £ 000
Intangible assets 42 40
Property, plant and equipment 874 658
Investments - 101
Deferred tax asset 199 -
Inventones 6,366 5,018
Trade and other receivabiles 8,099 12,934
Bark balances and cash 608 608
Trade payables 3,723y {2,211)
Provisions {462) -
Net assets disposed 12,003 17,146
Loss on disposal (14,373) (19,516)

(2.370)  (2,370)

Group Campany

Satisfied by £000 £ 000
Deferred cash contribution (1,816} (1,816)
Costs of disposal (554) (554)

(2,370 (2,370)

Group Company
2010 2009 2019 200
Net cash outfiows ansing on disposal £'000 £000 £'000 £ 000
Settlement of deferred cash contribution (1,619) - {1,619) -
Cosls of disposal {360} {154) {360) (154)
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of - (608) - (608}

(1,979} (762) {1,979 (762)

The settlement of deferred cash contnbution includes £561,000 paid n respect of a working capital adjustment, £462,000 m
respect of agreed restructuring expenditure incurred between the date of the disposal agreement and completion of the sale
contract and £596,000 in relation to a specific trade recewable indemnity given to the acquirer

During the year the Group reached final agreement with the purchaser and concluded all outstanding 1ssues ansing from this
disposal An amount of £159,000 remains payable to the purchaser at 4 April 2010 and 1s due to be settled in quarterly instalments
dunng the next financial year

31. Operating lease arrangements

Group Company
2010 2000 2010 2009
£'000 £ 000 £000 £000
The following have been recognised during the year
Minmum lease payments made under operating leases
Pad 5,562 7,671 1,038 966
Recognised in operating profit 3,098 4,389 103 571

Minimum sub lease payments recesved under operating leases and credited to onerous lease provisions in the year was
£1,210,000 (2008 £1,219,000) for the Group and £nil (2009 £nil) for the Company

At the balance sheet date, the Group and Company had outstanding commutments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows

Group Company
2010 2008 2010 2009
£'000 £000 £'000 £ 000
Within one year 5,510 6,287 1,088 966
In the second to fifth years inclusive 7,493 8,295 3,836 4,150
After five years 4,944 3,254 2,471 3,245

17,947 17,836 7,395 8,361
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Operaling lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for certain of its office and manufacturng propertes Leases
are negotiated for an average term of seven years and rentals are fixed for an average of four years

At the balance sheet date, the Group expects to receive £2 2m (2009 £2 6m) under non-cancellable sub-leases

32. Share-based payments

Equity-settled share opticn schemes

During the period the Group had three types of equity-settled share option schemes in operation, Discretionary Share Option
Schemes (‘DSOS a Long Term Incentive plan ('LTIP') and a Performance Share Plan (‘PSP

Following shareholder approval of the PSP at the Extracrdinary General Meeting held on 5 December 2008, it 1s anticipated that
this scheme will be the pnmary scheme for providing long-term incentive arrangements to Executive Directors and other key
executives and that future grants of equity-based share options will be made under this scheme

Options previously 1ssued under the DSOS are exercisable between three and ten years from the date of the grant and are subject
1o the continued employment of the participant and the achievermnent of earnings per share perforrmance targsts The exercise
price was determined based on the market share price at date of grant Further detalls of the scheme are given on page 41 of the
Directors’ Remuneratton Report

Options previously 1ssued under the LTIP are exercisable between three years and three years and six menths from the date of
grant subject to the continued employment of the participant and achievement of earmings per share and share price performance
targets All awards under the LTIP have an exgrcise price of 25p, which 1s equivalent to the nominal value of the underlying
Ordinary share Full detalls of how the scheme operates are given on pages 40 to 41 of the Directors' Remuneratton Report

Options 1ssued under the PSP are exercisable between three years and threa years six months from the date of grant subject to
the continued employment of the participant and achievernent of share price performance targets All awards under the PSP have
an exercise pnce of 25p, which 1s equivalent to the nominal value of the underying Ordinary share Full details of how the scheme
operates are given on pages 39 to 40 of the Directors’ Remuneration Report

Details of the share oplions outstanding and the weighted average exerctse pnce of those options are as follows

2010 2009

Welghted Weighted

average average

Number of exercise Numkber of exercise

share price sharg price

options P options {p}

Cutstanding at beginring of period 1,945,548 48 2302452 45
Granted durning the period 1,672,945 25 1,644,292 25
Expired dunng the pernod (1,226,166) 79 (2,001,196) 25
Qutstanding at the end of the period 2,392,327 39 1,945,548 48

Qf the share options that expired dunng the period, 998,456 options expired due to failure to meet performance conditions and
227,710 lapsed n respect of leavers

The optons outstanding at 4 Aprl 2010 had a weighted averags remaining contraciual Iife of 2 5 years (2008 1 2 years)

In 2010, the aggregats of the estmated fair values of the options granted dunng the year under the PSP on the dates stated In
note 25 was £559,000 (2009 £263,000)

The far values of the PSP awards were calculated at the date of grant using a stochastic {Monte Carlo binomial) model The inputs
into the valuation models were as follows

2010 2000
Weighted average share price 80.2p 61 2p
Waeighted average exercise price 25p 25p
Expected volatility 50% 50%
Expected Iife 3.25years 3 25vears

Risk-free rate 198% 487%
Expected dindends - -

Expected volatiity was determined with reference to historical volatiity of the Group’s share price over the previous three years
The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on management's best estimate, for the effects of non-
transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations
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32 Share-based payments continued
The Group and Company recognised a total charge for equity-settied share options of £23,000 (2009 credit of £92,000)

Cash-settled share-based payments

In September 2006, the Company 1ssued to Richard Arkle, who was Chairman at that tme, a Share Appreciation Right {'Chairman
SAR') that requires the Company to pay the intrinsic value of the SAR at the date of exercise, conditional upon the achisvernent of
certain performance targets These performance targets have not been met and consequently the Chairman SAR has expired,
with no payment payable For furthar detaills regarding this arrangement please see page 41 of the Directors’ Remuneration
Report

Accordingly, at 4 April 2010, the Group and the Company has recorded a hability of £rul 2009 £14,000) in the statement of
financial position and a credit of £14,000 {2008 £40,000) in the Income statement, in respect of this arrangement

33 Retirement benefit schemes

Defined contribution schemes

The Company operates two Inland Revenue approved defined contribution schemes and makes contributions to a Group pension
plan Overseas the Group operates two defined contrbution schemes, one In the USA and one in Ireland

The total cost charged to the Group's income statement In the year was £1,446,000 (2009 £1,457,000) The total cost charged to
the Company’s iIncome statement in the year was £308,000 (2009 £340,000)

Defined benefit schemes

The Company mantains two Inland Revenue approved defined benefit schemes that are funded by payments held in independent
trusts Future accrual of retirement benefits under both schemes ceased on 31 March 2003 when the schemes were replaced
with defined contribution arrangements The last full actuanal valuation of the schemes was carned out by a qualfied independent
actuary In 1 August 2007 This vatuation has been updated on an approximate basis to 4 Aprnil 2010 and utiises the projected unit
credit valuation method

The key assumptions utlised are

Valuatien at

2010 2009
Discount rate 5.5% 7 0%
Expected return on scheme assets 6 3% 63%
Future pension Increases 36% 29%
Price inflation 3 8% 3 0%
The following mortaity assurmptions have been made

Males Females
Future Iife expectancy for a pensioner currently aged 65 (years) 221 250
Future Iife expectancy at age 65 for a non-pensioner currently aged 55 (years) 27 2595

2010 2008
Amounts recognised in income statement (note 6) £'000 £ 000
Interest cost (719} (775)
Expected return on scheme assets 636 737
Finance costs {183} (38)
No other amounts have been recogrised in the income statement (2009 £nif}
Actuanal losses of £516,000 (2009 £285,000) have been reported in the statement of comprehensive income

2010 2008
Amounts recogrused in batance sheot £'000 £000
Fair value of scheme assets 11,067 9,217
Present value of defined benefit cbligations (13,453) (11,053)
Deficit in scheme recogrised in the balance sheet (2,386) (1,836
Current habilittes 155 153
Non-current llabilities 2,231 1,683

2,386 1,836
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The Company has contributed £149,000 1o its defined benefit pension plans in the penod ended 4 April 2010 (2009 £149,000)

2010 2008
Movements in the present value 0f defined benafit obligations £'000 £000
Al beginning of penod {11,0563) (13,181}
Interest cost (719) (775}
Actuanal (lossesygains (3,247) 2,368
Benefits paid 1,566 515
At end of perniod {13,453) (11,053}

2010 2008
Movements in the fair vatue of scheme assets £000 £000
At beginning of period 9,217 11,519
Expected return on scheme assets 536 737
Actuarial gains/{losses) 2,731 (2,673}
Contnbuttons from the sponsoring company 149 149
Benefits paid (1,566) (515}
At end of penod 11,067 9,217

2019 2008
Compositon of assets £'000 £ 000
Equity instruments 7,833 6,408
Debt instruments 3,043 2,673
Property 191 136

11,067 9,217

None of the farr values of the assets shown above include any of the Company's own financial nstruments or any property
occupied or other assets used by the Company (2009 £nil)

Expected long-term rates of return

To develop the expected long-term rate of return on assets assumption, the Company considered the current tevel of expected
returns on nsk free investments (primarily government bonds), the histencal level of nsk premium associated with the other asset
classes in which the portioho 15 invested and the expectations ior future returns of each asset ctass The expected return for each
asset class was then weighted based on the asset allocation to develop the expected long-term rate of return on assets
assumptions for the portfolio

The expected long-term rates of return are as follows

2010 2009
% %

Equity instruments 68 71
Debt mnstruments 5.7 46
Property 68 71

6.3 63
The actual return on scheme assets for the year was a gan of £3,267,000 (2009 loss of £1,936,000)

2010 2009
Cumulative actuaral logses recognised in equity £'000 £ 000
At beginning of the year 719 1,004
Net actuanal losses recogmised in the year (516) (285)
At end of the year 203 719
Five yaar history of experence adjustments 2010 2009 2008 2007 2008
Farr value of scheme assets 11,067 9,217 11,519 11,778 11,148
Present value of defined benefit obligations (13,453) {11,053] (13,181} (14,614} (14,659
Deficit in scheme {2,386) {1,836) (1,662) (28360 (3.511)
Expenence adjustments on scheme labilities
£'000 55 (60} 493 - -
% scheme labilities 04% (0 5%} 4 0% - -
Experience adjustments on scheme assets
£:000 2,731 (2,673} {906) 12 1,478
% scheme assets 25% {29%) (8%} - 13%
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| Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements continued

For the 52 weeks ended 4 Apnil 2010 (53 weeks ended 5 April 2009)

34. Financial instruments

Capital nsk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities In the Group will be able to continue as geing concems while maximusing the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance The capital structure of the Group consists of debt,
which includes the borrowings disclosed in note 20, cash and cash equivalents disclosed i note 28 and equity attnbutable to
equity holders of the parent, compnising issued capital, reserves and retained earnings as contained in the statement of changes
n squity

The Board reviews the capttal structure on a regular basis including facility headroom, forecast working capital and capital
expenditure requirements

The Group has a revolving credit faciity, which after amortisation had an avalable mit of US$57 7m as at 4 Apnil 2010 (2009
Us$62 ¥m), comprising both a US Dollar and a Euro component At 4 Apnl 2010 the amounts drawn under this faciity were
US$217m and €13 5m The average combined utihsatior during the year was US$45 6m (2009 US$50 9m) In addition, the
Group has a further €6 8m of undrawn committed facilities available at 4 Apnl 2010

At 4 April 2010 the Group had undrawn commitied borrowing facities of £14 Om {2009 £11 4m)
The revolving credit facility 1s due to mature n March 2012

Based on the Group's projected financial performance the Board are confident that the combination of the abeve facilities
provides adequate iqudity headroom for the successful execution of the Group's operations and the Group will be able to operate
in agreement with the required covenant levels

The Group 1s not subject to externally impesed capital requirements

Financial instruments

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise bank borrowings and overdrafts, finance leases, cash and short-term
deposits The Group also enters into dernvative transactions, principally interest rate swaps to manage the interest rate rnisk ansing
from ts borrowings and forward currency contracts to manage the currency rsks arising from its operations

Set out below 1s a comparison by category of carrying amounts and farr values of all the Group’s financial instruments that are

carried in the financial statements
Book value Bookvalug  Fair value Fair valug

2010 2009 2010 2009
£'000 £'000 £'000 £ 000
Financial assets
Cash 18,220 16,877 18,220 16,877
Trade and other recevables 58,166 5B869 58,166 58,869
Financial habilities
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 25,638 31,662 25,638 31,662
Obligations under finance {eases 153 2 153 2
Trade and other payables 61,949 56,963 61,949 56,963
Dernivative financial instruments 37 248 3 248
Property provisions 6,804 7,371 6,804 7,371

Financial nsk management

The main nsks ansing from the Group’s financial Instruments are interest raie nisk, foreign currency nsk, credit nsk and liguidity
nsk The Board reviews and agrees policies for managmg these nsks and they are summanised below The Group also monitors
the market price nsk arising from all financial instruments

It s, and has been throughout the periods under review, the Group's policy that no trading in financial instruments shall
be undertaken

Interest rate risk
The Group's interest rate risk anses principally from borrowings 1ssued at vanable rates which expose the Group to cash flow
interest-rate risk

The Group manages Its exposure to Interest rate nsk by fixing 100% of the interest arising on its borrowings through the use of
Interest rate swap contracts

Management does not consider the risk ansing from finance leases to be significant
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The following table sets out the carrying amount, by maturty, of the Group's financial mstruments that are exposed 1o interest
rate nsk

Within 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5  More than
1 year years ysars years years 5 years Total
£'000 £'000 £ 000 £000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
Fixed rate
Obligations under finance leases (64) (51) (38) - - - (153)
Floating rate
Cash assets 18,220 - - - - - 18,220
Bank loans and borrowings (282) (26,347) - - - - (26,629

Interest rate sensitivity

During the year the Group was fulty hedged against interest rate nsk arising on its borrowings through the use of interest rate swap
contracts Had interest rates been 0 5% higher/lower in the year, and all other variables were held constant, Group profit before
tax would have been £56,000 higher / £28,000 lower (2009 £132,000 higher and lower}

Interest rate swap contracts

Under interest rate swap contacts, the Group agrees to exchange differences between fixed and floating interest rate amounts
calculated on agreed notional principal amounts Such contracts enable the Group to mitigate the nsk of changing interest rates
on the far value of interest rates onissued fixed rate debt held and the cash flow exposures on the issued vanable rate debt held
The far value of the interest rate swaps at the reporting date 1s determined by discounting the future cash flows using the curves
at the reporting date and the credit nsk inherent In the contract, and 1s disclosed below The average interest rate 1s based on the
outstanding balances at the end of the financial year

The following table details the notional principal amounts and remaining terms of nterest rate swap contracts outstanding at the
reporting date

Averags contract Notional princreal

fixed intarest amaount

2010 2009 2010 2009
Outstanding receive floating pay fixed contracts % % £'000 £ 000
Less than one year 22 39 29841 16,57
1-2 years 2.2 - 19,894 -
2-3 years 22 - 9,947 -
Fair value (371} {215)

The interest rate swap contracts are naot designated as either cash flow or fair value hedges and consequently the farr value
adjustment of £371,000 has been reflected in the results for the year (2009 £215,000) (note 6)

Forewgn currency risk

The Group operates internationally and 1s exposed to foreign exchange nsk ansing from vanous currency exposures, primanly with
respect to the US Dollar, Indian Rupee and Euro Foreign exchange nisk anses from future commercial transactions, recognised
assets and habilities and net investments in foreign operations

The Group utilises currency derivatives to hedge significant future transactions and cash flows At the balance sheet date the
Group had £nil (2009 £1,357,000) of US Dollar/indian Rupee forward exchange contracts in existence The Group has certam
investments in foreign operations, whose net assets are exposed to foreign currency translation sk The Group’s policy 1s to
hedge its related translation exposures through the designation of certain amounts of its foreign currency denorminated debt as a
hedging instrument

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency denorminated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the reporting date
are as follows

Liabilties Assels
2010 2009 2010 2009
£'000 £000 £'000 £000
Euro 16,685 18,666 15,311 13,210
LS Dollar 51,260 42,869 44,264 34,772
Inchan Rupee 8,508 5708 13,345 12,655
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Notes to the financial statements continued

For the 52 weeks ended 4 April 2010 (53 weeks ended 5 April 2009)

34. Financial instruments continued

Foreign currency sensitivity

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to & 10% change In exchange rates against the Sterling equivalents

The 109% rate used represents management’s assessment of the possible change in foreign exchange rates The sensitivity
analysis of the Group's exposure to foreign exchange nisk at the reporting date has been determined based on the change taking
place at the beginming of the financial year and held constant throughout the reporting penod

US$ mpact EURO impact INR impact

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

£'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £ 000
10% depreciation in rates
(i) Profit before tax (2,082) (1,187} (451) {262) (119) (348)
{1} Equity* {92) 389 {1,834) (1,680 (275) (62)
10% appreciation in rates
(1 Profit before tax 2,545 1,450 552 322 144 422
() Equity” 113 (475) 2,241 2,053 336 75

{}  Thisis manly attributable to the exposure on net USS/EURO sales oifset by gains aganst USS/EURO purchases and retranslabion of foreign currency balance shest items
{) Thisis manly zlinbutable o the 1ssue above and changa in far value of denvativas at tha end of the financial year and the impact of the franslation of foreign owned
subsldianes translated into Sterling
Excludes any deferred tax impact

Credit nisk
This refers to the nisk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group

The Group’s customers are predominantly large blue chip OEMSs, contract equipment manufacturers and distnbutors The Group
regularly reviews the credit worthiness of significant customers and credit references are sought for major new customers where
relevant The Board recognises that credit nsk 15 a feature of all businesses, especially international businesses However, It
believes that all reasonable steps to mitigate loss are taken

The net amount of trade receivables reflects the maximum credit exposure to the Group No ather guarantees or securty has
been given

Liquidity nsk
The Group manages quidity sk by maintaining adequate banking facihties, regular monitoring of forecast and actual cash flows
and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and labiliies included in note 20 1s a description of undrawn facilities as at
the balance sheet date

The following table analyses the Group’s financial habilites into relevant maturity groupings to show the timing of cash flows
assoclated with the financial habilities from the balance sheet date to the contracted maturity date The amounts disclosed
represent the contracted undiscounted cash flows

Carrying Contractual Within 1=-2 2-5 More than

amount cash flows 1 year years years Syears

2010 £000 £000 £ 000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Nen-derivative financial habthties

Trade & cther payables 61,949 61,949 61,949 - - -

Obligations under finance leases 153 172 72 57 43 -

Bank overdrafts and loans 26,629 26,629 282 26,347 - -

Property provisions 6,804 7.411 2,983 1,136 2,175 1,117

Denvative financial habilities

Interest rate swaps 3N s 206 175 - -

Carrying  Contractual Within 1-2 2-5 More than

amount cash flows 1 yBar years years Syears

2009 £ 000 £000 £ 000 £'000 £000 £000
Non-derivative financial habilities

Trade and other payables 56,9683 56,963 56,332 631 - -

Obligations under finance leases 2 2 2 - - -

Bank overdrafts and loans 31,662 31,662 - - 31,662 -

Property provisions 7.371 7.971 2,568 2,862 1,128 1,313

Dernvative financial habilities
Interest rate swaps 248 248 248 - - -
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35. Contingent habilhittes

As a global group, subsidiary companies, in the normal course of business, engage In significant levels of cross-border trading
The customs, duties and sales tax regulations associated with these transactions are complex and often subject to interpretation
White the Group places considerable emphasis on compliance with such regulations, including appropniate use of external legal
adwvisors, full compliance with all customs, duty and sales tax regulations cannot be guaranteed

Customs and excise authorities in Incha and the USA are currently involved in examining customs and duty declarations made by
subsidiary companies, Volex Interconnect {India} Pvt Ltd and Volex de Mexico SA de CV, across a number of years Although the
outcome of these investigations 1s uncertain and rellable measurement of any potential exposure not possible, the Directors are
confident that any hiability ansing from these matters will not be matenal to the Group

The Company enters into financtal guarantee contracts to guarantee the Indebtedness of other Group companies The Company
considers these to be insurance arrangements and treats the guarantes contract as a contingent hatity untl such tme as it
becomes probable that the Company will be required to make a payment under the guarantee

36 Related party transactions

Group

Transactions between the Company and its subsidianies, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation and are
not disclosed in this note

2010 2009

Compensation of key managemant - Directors of Parent Company £000 £ 000
Short-term employee benefits 1,553 852
Money purchase pension contributtons 50 88
Other long-term benefits - (159)
Share-based payments 36 43)
1,639 738

Gther long-term benefits n 2009 are shown as a credit balance due to benefits previcusly accrued reversing as the vesting
conditions were not achieved

Details of Directors’ remuneration, share optiens, pension contributions, penston entitlernents, fees for consulting services and
interests {or the penod are provided in the audited part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 43 to 45

Company
During the penod the Company levied the following charges on its subsidiary undertakings
2010 2009
£'000 £ 000
Management fees 6,131 4,633
Royalty fees 2,133 2,547
Interest 1,947 4,643

10,211 11,823

Amounts due to and from subsidiary undertaking are shown in notes 19 and 22
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Principal operating subsidiaries

United Kingdom
Volex Powercords Europe 1s a trading division of Volex Group ple

Volex Group Holdings Ltd 1s a wholly owned subsichary of Volex Group ptc which is registered in England and Wales and which
acts as a holding Company, as detaled below

Overseas
The principal overseas subsidiary undertakings, the business of which 1s the manufacture and/or sale of nterconnect and cable
assembly products, all of which are wholly owned, are as follows

Namas of entity Note Country of ncorporaton/ragistraiien and operation
Volex {Asia) Pte Ltd 1 Singapore
PT Volex Indonesia 2 Indonesia
PT Volex Cable Assembly 2 Indonesia
Volex Cable Assemblies (Phils) Inc 2 Phiippines
Volex Japan KK 2 Japan
Velex (Taiwan} Co Ltd 2 Tawan
Volex (Thatland) Co Ltd 2 Thaitand
Volex Cable Assembly (Vietnam} Pte Lid 2 Vietnam
Volex Cable Assemblies Sdn Bhd 3 Malaysia
Volex Cables (HK) Ltd 3 Hong Kong
Volex Interconnect (Inca) Pvt Lid 3 India
Volex Interconnect Systermns {Suzhou) Co Lid 3 China
Volex Cable Assembly (Shenzhen) Co Ltd 3 China
Volex Cable Assembly (Zhangshan) 3 China
Volex In¢g 1 USA
Volex Canada Inc 1 Canada
Volex de Mexico SA de CV 4 Mexico
Volex do Brasil Ltda 1 Brazil
Volex Europe Ltd 3 Ireland
Volex Poland SPzo o 1 Poland

1 Interests hald by Volex Group ple

2 Interests hald by Volex (Asia) Pta Lid

3 Interests held by Volex Group Holdings Ltd
4 Intergsts hald by Volex Inc
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Five year summary

Unaudited Unaudited Unaudied Unaudited Unaudited

IFAS IFRS IFRS IFRS IFRS

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Resuilts £'000 £'000 £ 000 £000 £000
Revenue — total Group 228,995 302,820 259,765 248,725 250,378
Revenue from continuing operations 228,995 265,116 223,426 214,584 217,673
Revenue from discontinued operations - 37,704 36339 34141 32,705
Gross margin — total Group 46,161 41,368 30,703 38,238 39,414
Gross margin from continuing operations 46,161 42,153 30,792 35,748 36,867
Gross margin from discontinued operations - (785) {88) 2,491 2,547

Operating expenses - total Group (32,808} (34,269) (26,365) (30,970) (42,683)

Operating expenses from continuing operations 32,808} (30,978 (23,474 4,548} (36,818
Operating expenses from discontinued operations - (3,291} (2,891) {6,422y (5,865
Operating profit? — total Group 13,353 7,099 4,338 7.269 (3,269)
Operating profit? from continuing operations 13,353 11,175 7318 11,200 49
Operating profit? from discontinued operations - (4,076} (2,980} {3,931) {3,318)
Operating exceptional items (3,095) (4,740} (2,676} (1,994) (8,598}
Share-based payment (charge)/credit (9) 132 132 (379 -
Profit{loss) on ordinary activities before taxatton 6,910 3,583 (853) 2.816 (6,658}
Depreciation & amortisation — centinuing operations 2,292 1,996 2,554 2,608 3,430
Depreciation & amortisation ~ discontinued operations - 621 432 336 491
Pence Pence Pence Pence Pence

Adusted earnings/loss} per share - total Group 14.8 39 (15 77 {1Q)
Basic earnings/{loss} per share — total Group 93 (34 1) 60) 15 (18 5)
Balance sheet £'000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £000
Non-current assets 10,570 11,228 10,287 11,550 13,837
Other assets and habilities 9,661 9,828 33,359 24,092 25532
20,231 21,056 43646 35642 39,369
Less net debt (7,571) (14,787) (21,010) (9,583) (13,274)
Net assets 12,660 6,268 22836 26,059 26,095
Gearing 60% 236% 93% 37% 51%

i Defined as operating prafit betore goodwill amortisation exceptional items and share-based payment charges/icredits)
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Annual General Meeting

THIS DOCUMENT IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION If you are in any doubt as to any aspect of
ihe proposals referred to in thrs document or as to the action you should take, you should seek you own advice from a
stockbroker, bank manager, solcitor, accountant, or other professional adviser duly authonised under the Financial Services and
Markets Act 2000

If you have sold or otherwise transferred all of your shares in Volex Group ple, please pass this document together with any

accompanying documents to the purchaser or transferee, or to the person who arranged the sale or transfar so they can pass
these documents to the purchaser or transferee who now holds the shares

Volex Group plc
(the ‘Company’)

{incorporated and registered in England and Wailes under number 00158956)

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice of Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at 10 Eastbourne Terrace, London W2 6L.G on 14 July 2010 at
10 30am (the ‘Annual General Meetng') 1s set out on pages 96 to 97 of this document

A Form of Proxy for use at the Annual General Meeting accompanies this document

Whether or not you proposed to attend the Annua! General Meeting, please complete and submit the Form of Proxy in
accordance with the instructions printed on it The Form of Proxy must be deposited at the offices of the Registrar of the
Company, Capita Registrars, Proxy Department, The Registry, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham, Kent, BR3 4TU not later
than 10 30am on 12 Juty 2010
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Dear Shareholder

The 2010 Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on Wednesday 14 July 2010 in accordance with the Notice of the
Meeting included on page 96 to 97 of the document The Form of Proxy 1s enclosed separately

The meeting will consider five items of ordinary business and five items of special business, details of which are set out below
Each resolution will be proposed as a separate resolution

Ordinary Business

Resolution 1 - Annual Reports and Accounts

Shareholders will be asked to receive and adopt the Accounts for the year ended 4 Apnl 2310 together with the Repoerts of the
Directors and the Auditors therein

Resolution 2 — Approve the Directors’ Remuneration Report
In accordance with Section 2418 of the Companigs Act 2006 (the *Act’) the Company 1s required to submit the Directors’
Remuneration Report to its shareholders for approval

Resolution 3 — Re-elaction of Richard Arkle
In accordance with the Company's Articles of Assocation, Richard Arkle, offers himself for re-election

Resolution 4 — Re-election of Michael McTighe
In accordance with the Company's Articles of Association, Michael McTighe, offers himself for re-election

Resolution § - Re-appointment of Auditors

The Company 1s required to appoint auditors at each general meeting at which its accounts arae presented, to hold office until the
next general meeting This resolution proposes that PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, having indicated ther wilingness to continue n
office, be re-appointed as auditors for the current financial year and that the Directors be authonsed to determine therr remuneration

Special Business

Resoluticn 6 - Authority to allot relevant secunties

Pursuant to section 551 of the Comparies Act, 2006 {'the Act’) the Directors may only 1ssue relevant secunties, including new
shares If the Company has given them prior authonty to do s¢ It 1Is common practice for public companies to renew this authority
each year at the annual general meeting The Board recommends that this authonty be renewed and paragraph (g) of resolution 6
will, If passed, authorise the Directors to allot the Company's unissued shares up to a maximum nominal amount of £4,735,130
which represents an amount equal to one-third of the aggregate nominal value of the Issued and unconditionally allotted ordinary
share capital of the Company All prevtous authorities under section 551 of the Act shall cease to have effect

In December 2008 the Association of Bntish Insurers 1ssued guidance on the approval of authonties to allot shares, in which it
stated that, in addition to requests for authonisation to allot new shares in an amount up to one-third of the existing 1ssued share
capital of a company, it would regard as routine, requests to authorise the allotment of a further one-third in connection with a
nghts 1ssue In the Iight of this, paragraph (b} of resclution 6 proposes that a further authonty be conferred on the Directors to allot
shares in connection with a nghts 1ssue up to a maximum aggregate nominal amount of £8,470,260 (such amount to be reduced
by the nominal amount of any relevant secunties 1ssued under the authonty conferred by paragraph (a) of resolution 6) This
represents an amount which 1s equal to two thirds of the aggregate nominal value of the Issued and unconditionally allotted
ardinary share capital of the Company

In the event that thrs further authority 15 exercised, the Directors intend to follow best practice as regards its use (including as to
the requirement for Directors to stand for re-election) as 1ssued by the Assoctation of British Insurers

The authorties sought in paragraphs {a) and (b} of resclution 6 are in substitution for all existing authorities granted in the
Company's articles of assocration or otherwise

The Directors have no present intention of exercising this authonty

Resolution 7 — Authonty to allot equity securities

Where Directors are authonised to allot equity securities, then pursuant to section 570 and section 573 of the Act, a company may
by special resolution, resolve that the Directors be empowered to allot equity securities for cash without first being required to offer
such shares to existing shareholders in accordance with section 561(1) of the Act At the 2009 Annual General Megting of the
Company, a special resolution was passed, pursuant 1o section 95 of the Companies Act 1985 providing for such authonsation to
expire at the next Annual General Meeting of the Company It 1s proposed that this authonty be renewed until the conclusion of the
next Annual General Megeting following the passing of this resolution or on 30th September 2011, whichever is earlier All previous
authorities under section 95 of the Compantes Act 1985 shall cease 1o have effect If approved, the resolution will authorise the
Directors, in accordance with Articles of Association, to Issue shares in connection with a nghts 1ssue and otherwige to 1ssue
shares for cash up to the aggregate nominal amount of £1,420,540 which represents approximately 10% of the issued ordinary
share capital of the Company as at 4 April 2010 The Board does not intend to issue more than 10% of the 1ssued share capital of
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the Company in ary rolling three year pencd without prior consultation with the Invesirment Committees of the Association of
British Insurers and the National Association of Pension Funds This authority also allows the Directors, within the same aggregate
imits, to sell retevant shares held by the Company as treasury shares for cash The Directors have no present intention of
exercising this authonty

Resolution 8 - Authonty to purchase own shares

At the Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company held 28th July 2008, shareholders authorised the Company to make market
purchases of its own shares If passed this resolution will allow for the renewal of the Company's authority to make market
purchass of its own ordinary shares of 25p each, up to a maximum of 8,523,234 shares (being approximately 15% of the current
1ssued ordinary share capital of the Company), such authority to expire at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of
the Company or on 30th September 2011, whichever is earlier The amount paid for @ach share (exclusive of expenses) shall not
be more than the higher of {1) five per cent above the average market value of an Ordinary Share as derived from the Dally Official
List of Londan Stock Exchange for the five business days before the purchase 1s made, (i the price of the last iIndependent trade
and current independent bid as derved from the London Stock Exchange Trading system or less than 25p per share The
Directors have no present intention of exercising this authority

In accordance with the Articles of Association, and in view of the deferment of payment of divdends in respect of cumulative
preference shares of the Company, holders of such cumulative preference shares are entitied to attend the vote, ether in person
or by proxy, at the Annual General Meeting

Resolution 9 - Electromic communications with shareholders
To authorise the Company to supply any document or Information to sharehaolders that 1s required or authorised to be sent or
supplied by the Company by making 1t available on a website or by other electronic means

Resolution 10 - Length of notice of general meetings other than AGMs

Under the Comparies Act 2006 prior to 3 August 2009, the minimum notice penod to be given for general meetings other than
Annual General Meetings was 14 days However, the Companies (Shareholders' Rights) regulations 2008, which came into force
on 3 August 2009 amended this requirement by iIncreasing the minimum notice peniod for general meetings of a isted company to
21 days but with an ability for such a company to reduce this penod back to 14 days prowvided that

(@ the company offers a facilty for shareholders 10 vote by electronic means This condition 1s met If the company has a faciity
enabling all shareholders to appoint a proxy by means of a website, and

(b) onan annual basis, a shareholders' resolution approving the reduction of the mimimurn notice period from 21 days to 14 days
15 passed

Resociution 10 therefore proposes as a special resolution that the mimmum penod of notice for all general meetings of the
Company other than annuat general mestings be reduced to 14 days The approval of this resolution will be effective until the
conclusion of the Annual General Meeting in 2011, when 1t 1s intended that the approval will be renewed

Recommendations

The Board of Directors of the Company consider the resolutions set out in the Notice of the Annual General Meeting on pages 96
to 97 of this document to be In the best interests of the Company and the shareholders of the Company as a whole and therefore
recommend that you vote in favour of these resolutions

Mike McTighe
Charrman
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the ninetieth Annual General Meeting of Volex Group ple (the ‘Company'} will be held at 10
Eastbourne Terrace, London, W2 6LG on 14th July 2010 at 10 30am for the following purposes

Ordinary Business
As ordinary business to constder and, it thought fit, to pass the following resolutions to be proposed as ordinary resolutions

1
2

3
4
5

To receve and adopt the Reports of the Directors and the Auditors and the Accounts for the year ended 4 April 2010

To approve the Director's Remuneration Report as set out in the Annual Report and Accounts 2010

To re-elect Richard Arkle as a Director

To re-elect Michael McTighe as a Director

To re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as auditors of the Company to hold office untl the conclusion of the next general

meeting of the Company at which the accounts are lad before the Company and to authonse the Directors to determme therr
remuneration

Special Business
As special bustness to consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions of which resolution 6 will be proposed as an
ardinary resolution and resolutions 7 to 10 will be proposed as special resolutions

To consider, and f thought fit, pass the followmng resoclutton which will be proposed as an ordinary resolution

6

(&

{b]

-~

®

()

96

THAT the Directors be and they are hereby generally and unconditionally authonsed pursuant to section 551 of the Companies
Act 2008 (‘the Act’) to allot

relevant securities {within the meaning of section 551 of the Act), up to an aggregate nominal amount of £4,735,130
representing a number of ordinary shares of 25 pence each {the ‘Shares’) equivalent to approximately one third of the 1ssued
share capital of the Company at the date of thus notice, and

equity securities {within the meaning of section 560 of the Act) up to an aggregate nominal amount of £9,470,260 representing a
number of ordinary shares of 25 pence each {the ‘Shares’) equivalent to approximately two thirds of the issued share capital of
the Company at the date of this notice (such an amount to be reduced by the aggregate nominal amount of relevant secunties
Issued under paragraph (a) above} In connection with a nghts issue to holders of Shares in proportion (as nearly as maybe) to
their holding of such Shares and so that the Directors may iImpose such exclustons or other arrangements as the Directors may
deem necessary or expedient to deal with equity securities representing fractional entitlements and with legal or practical
problems under the laws of, or the requirements of, any regulatory body or any stock exchange in any ternitory or otherwise

THAT, subject to the passing of resolution 6 as set out in the notice of this meeting, and in accordance with Article 17 of the
Articles of Assaciation of the Company, the Directors be empowered pursuant to section 57¢ and section 573 of the
Companies Act 2006 to allot equity securities (as defined in section 560 of the Companies Act 20086) for cash pursuant to the
general authonty conferred by resolution 6 as set out in the notice of this meeting and sell retevant shares (as defined In section
560 of the Companies Act 2006} held by the Company as treasury shares (as defined in section 560 of the Companies Act
2006} for cash, as if section 561(1) of the Companies Act 2006 did not apply to such allotment or sale, provided that this power
shall be imited to allotments of equity secuntres and the sale of treasury shares

In connection with or pursuant to an offer by way of nghts, open offer or other pre-emptive offer to the holders of shares in the
Company and other persons entitled to participate therein in proportion (as nearly as practicable) to their respective holdings,
subject to such exclusions or other arrangements as the Directors may consider necessary or expedient to deal with fractional
entitlerments or legal or practical problems under the laws of any termtory or the regulations or requirements of any regulatory
authonty or any stock exchange in any territory

otherwase than pursuant to sub-paragraph (1) above, up to an aggregate nominal amount of £1,420,540 and such power shall
expire on the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in 2011 or on 30 September 2011, whichever
s earher, but so that the Gompany may before such expiry make an offer or agreement which would or right require equity
securities to be allotted or treasury shares to be sold after such expiry, and the Directors may allot equity securtties or sell
treasury shares in pursuance of such offer or agreement as If the power conferred by this resolution had not expired
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8 THAT, the Company be generally and unconditionally authonsed, pursuant to Article 10 2 of the Articles of Association of the
Company and pursuant to section 701 of the Companies Act 2006, to make market purchases (as defined in section 693 of
the Companies Act 2006} of up to 8,523,234 Ordinary Shares of 25p each in the capital of the Company {being approximatsly
15 per cent of the current issued ordinary share capital of the Company) on such terms and in such manner as the Directors of
the Company may from tme to time determine, prowided that

the amount paid for each share (exclusive of expenses) shall be not more than the higher of (1) five percent above the average
market value of an Crdinary Share as denved from the Daily Official List of London Stock Exchange plc for the five business
days before the date on which the contract for the purchase 1s made, or (1) an amount equal to the higher of the price of the
last independent trade and current independent bid as denved from the London Stock Exchange Trading system or less than
25p per share, and

the authorty herein contained shall expire at the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held m 2011
or on 30 September 2011, whichever s earlier, provided that the Company may, before such expiry, make a contract to
purchase its own shares which would or might be executed wholly or partly after such expiry, and the Company may make a
purchase of its own shares in pursuance of such contract as If the authority hereby conferred hereby had not expired

{al

=
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9 THAT

(@) the Company may send or supply any document or information to shareholders that 1s required or authonsed to be sent or
suppled by the Company
{ under the Act, or
() pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, or
(w) pursuant to any other rules or regulations to which the Company may be subject
by making it avallable on a website or by other electronic means,

b} the relevant provisions of the Act shall apply,

{c} this resolution shall supersede any prowvision of the Arlicles of Association to the extent that it 1s inconsistent with this
resolution

10 THAT as permitted by section 307A of the Companies Act 2006 any general meeting of the Company (other than the Annual
General Meeting of the Company) shall be called by notice of at least 14 clear days in accordance with the provisions of the
Articles of Association of the Company provided that the authority of this Resoclution shall expire on the conclusion of the
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in 2011

By order of the Board,

(-

Nick Temple
Company Secretary

Volex Group plc
Registered in England and Wales No 00158956

Registered Office

10 Eastbourng Terrace
London W2 6LG
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Notes of the Notice of Annual General Meeting

1 Resolutions 1 to 6 are proposed as ordinary resolutions This means that for each of those resolutions to be passed, more
than half of the votes cast must be in favour of the resolutions Resolutions 7 to 10 are proposed as special resolutions
This means that for each of these resolutions to be passed, as least three-quarters of the votes cast must be In favour
of the resolution

2 Holders of ordinary shares and holders of preference shares are entitled to attend, speak and vote at the Annual General
Meeting convened by this Notice

3 In accordance with Regulation 41 of the Uncertificated Secunties Regulations 2004, only the holders of ordinary and holders of
preference shares entered on the register of members of the Company as at 6 00pm on, 12 July 2010 shall be entitled to
attend either in person or by proxy, and the number of ordinary and preference shares then registered in their respective
names shall determine the number of notes such persons are entitied to case at the meeting Changes to entries on the
register of members after 6 00pm on 12 July 2010, shall be disregarded in determining the nights of any person to attend or
vote at the meeting

4 A member entitied to attend, speak and vote at the above meetng may appomnt another person as his proxy to attend, speak
and vote on his behalf A member may appoint more than one proxy in relation to the meseting, provided that each proxy I1s
appointed to exercise the nghts attached to a different share or shares held by him A proxy need not be a member of the
Company Completion and return of a form of proxy will not preclude a member from attending and voting in person, should
he / she subsequently decide to do so

To appoint mors than ane proxy you may photocopy the form of proxy Please indicate the proxy holder's name and the number of
shares in relation to which they are authortsed to act as your proxy (which, in aggregate, should not exceed the number of shares
held by you) Please also indicate in the box provided, if the proxy Instruction 1s one of multiple mstructions beng given All forms
must be signed and should be returned together in the same envelope

5 To be valid, the instrument appointing a proxy, together with the power of attorney or other authorty (if any) under which it 1s
signed (or an office copy thereof or a copy thereof certified In accordance with section 3 of the Powers of Attorney Act 1971),
must reach tha Company's Registrars, Proxy Department, Capita Registrars, The Registry, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham,
Kent, BR3 4TU not less that 48 hours before the tme appeinted for holding the meeting

8 Any person to whom this notice 1s sent who i1s a person nominated under section 146 of the Companies Act 2006 to enjoy
Information nghts (@ ‘Nominated Person’} may, under an agreement between lim/her and the shareholder by whom he/she
was nominated, have a nght to be appointed {or to have someone else appointed) as a proxy for the Annual General Meeting
If a Norminated Person has no such proxy appomntment nght or does not wish to exercise i, he/she may, under any such
agreement, have a right to give instructions to the shareholder as to the exercise of voting nights

7 The statement of the nghts of shareholders in relation to the appomntment of proxies In paragraphs 5 and 6 above doas not
apply to Nominated Persons The nghts descnibed in these paragraphs can only be exercised by shareholders of the
Company

8 CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies by utiising the CREST electronic proxy appointment service may do
so for the Annual General Meeting to be held on 14 Juty 2010 and any adjournment(s} thereof by utilising the procedures
described in the CREST Manual, CREST Personal Members of other CREST sponsored members and those CREST members
who have appointed a voting service provider, who will be able to take the appropnate action on ther behalf

In order for a proxy appointment made my means of CREST to be valid, the appropnate CREST message (a ‘CREST Proxy
Instruction’) must be properly authenticated in accordance with Euroclear UK and Ireland Limited's ('EUROCLEAR') specifications
and must contain the infermation required for such instructions, as described in the CREST Manual The message must be
transmitted so as to be received by the Company's agent (ID RA 10) by the latest time for the receipt of proxy appointments
specified in this Notice of Annual General Mesting For this purpose, the time of receipt will be taken to be the time {as determined
by the tmestamp applied to the message by the CREST Applications Host) from which the Company’s agent 1s able to retneve the
message and enguiry to CREST In the manner prescnbed by CREST

CREST members and, where apphcable, thewr CREST sponsors or voting service providers should note that EURQCLEAR does
not make avallable special procedures in CREST for any particular messages Normal system timings and tmitations will therefore
apply in relation to the input of CREST Proxy Instructions it 1s the responsibiity of the CREST member concerned to take {or If,
CREST member 1s CREST personal member or spensored member or has appointed a vating service provider, to procure that his
CREST sponsor or voting service provider takes), such action as shall be necessary to ensure that a message 1s transmitted by
means of the CREST system by any particular ime In this context, CREST members and, where applicable, therr CREST
8ponsors or voling service providers are referred, in particular, to those sections of the CREST Manual concerning practical
Iimitatrons of the CREST systern and timings

The Company may treat as invalid a CREST Proxy Instruction in the circumstances set out in Regutation 35(5){a) of the Uncertified
Secunties Regulations 2001
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11

12

13

As at Monday 14 June (being the last business day pnor to the publication of this Notice) the Company’s rssued share capital
consisted of 56,821,563 ordinary shares of 25p each carrying cne vote each and 80,000 7% cumulative preference shares of
£100 each In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, in view of the deferment of the payment of
dividends in respect of the cumulative preference shares, holders of those shares are entitted to attend and vote whether In
person or by proxy at the 2010 Annual General Meeting Therefore, the number of total voting nghts in the Company (on a poll)
as at Menday 14 June are 56,901,563

Shareholders should note that it 1s possible that, pursuant to requests made by shareholders of the Company under section
527 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company may be required to pubksh on a website a statement setting out any matter
relating to

() the audit of the Company’s accounts (ncluding the auditor's report and the conduct of the audit} that are to be laid before
the Annual General Meeting, or

() any crrcumstance connected with an auditor of the Company ceasing to held office since the previous mesting at which
annual accounts and reports were laid in accordance with section 437 of the Companies Act 2006 The Company may not
require the shareholders requesting any such website publication 1o pay its expenses in complying with sections 527 or
528 of the Companies Act 2006 Where the Company is required to place a statement on a website under section 527 of
the Compantes Act 2006, 1t must be forward the statement to the Company's auditor not later than the time when 1t makes
the statement available on the website The business which may be dealt with at the Annual General Meeling includes any
statement that the Company has been required under section 527 of the Companies Act 2006 to publish on a website

In order to facilitate voting by corporate representatives at the meeting, arrangements will be put in place at the meeting so that

{) f a corporate shareholder has appanted the chairman of the meeting as its corporate representative to vote on a polt in
accordance with the directions of all of the cther corporate representatives for that shareholder at the meeting, then ona
poll those corporate representatives will give voting directions t¢ the chairman and the chairman will vote (or withheold a
vote} as corporate representative in accordance with those directions, and

(n) f more than one corporate representative for the same corporate sharehclder attends the mesting but the corporate
shareholder has not appointed the charrman of the meeting as 1its corporate representative, a designated corporate
representative will be nominated, from these corporate representatives who attend, who will vote on a poll and the other
corporate representatives will give voting directions to that designated corporate representative Corporate shareholders
are referred to the guidance 1ssued by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators on proxies and corporate
representatives (www 1csa org uk) for further details of this procedure The guidance includes a sample form of
appointment letter if the charrman i1s being appointed as described in () above

Copes of the service contracts and letters of appointed of each of the Directors will be available for inspecton at the registered
office of the Company during usual business hours on any weekday (Saturdays and public holidays excluded) and at the place
of the Annual General Meeting from at least 15 minutes pnor to and until the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting

Brographical details of each Director who 1s being proposed for re-election, including their membership of Board committees,
are set out on pages 32 1o 33 of the Report and Accounts 2010
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